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Financial Summary B 255 WE

o Revenue amounted to approximately RMB90,862 million, an increase of o  ZZEIWALHABAREK0,862EE T F
approximately 10.5%. 4310.5% °

. Net Profit Attributable to the Shareholders of the Parent amounted to e SERBAIREMNZENBOAARKE
approximately RMB5,287 million, an increase of approximately 20.4%. 5,287BEIT - EA#HI20.4% ©

. Basic Earnings Per Share was approximately RMB0.67, an increase of o HBREXEFNNAEARK067T  FFHA
approximately 21.3%. 21.3% °




Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the reviewed interim results of

the Company for the six months’ period ended 30 June 2019.

L.

Review of Operations

In the first half of 2019, the Chinese government insisted upon the
general keynote of making progress while maintaining stability, with
firm commitment to putting the philosophy of new development into
practice, promoting high-quality development and stepping up the reform
and opening-up of the country through strengthening the supply-side
structural reform. It has implemented the “Six Stabilities” propounded
by the Chinese Government and economic performance maintained
within a reasonable range, sustaining a trend of stability with positive
development. In the first half of the year, the gross domestic product
reached RMB45.1 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 6.3%.
On a quarter-to-quarter basis, it grew by 6.4% in the first quarter and

6.2% in the second quarter.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Company’s powertrain business
continued to exhibit the combination advantages and achieved remarkable
growth. The Company sold 394,000 units of engines, representing an
increase of 10.7%; 582,000 units of gear boxes, representing an increase

of 11.3%; and 458,000 units of axles, representing an increase of 26.5%.

During the reporting period, the heavy-duty truck industry remained highly
robust. The heavy-duty truck market delivered sales of 656,000 units in
total, representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.3%. During the reporting
period, the Company reported sales of 218,000 units of heavy-duty truck
engines, which grew by 10.5% year-on-year, and maintained its leading
position in the industry with a market share of 33.2%, up 3.9 percentage
points from the corresponding period of last year. Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Company Limited (BRFEE AL FEH R A ]), a controlling subsidiary
of the Company, reported aggregate sales of 87,000 units of heavy-duty
trucks for the first half of the year, representing a year-on-year increase
of 3.1%, with a 13.2% market share and ranking among the first-tier
enterprises in the domestic heavy-duty truck industry in the PRC, further
boosting its competitiveness. Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. (BRFEA 4588
i HRAEM AT, a controlling subsidiary of the Company, maintained
an absolute leading position in the industry with its aggregate sales of
582,000 units of gear boxes in the first half of the year, representing a
year-on-year increase of 11.3% and a market share of approximately
80.5% in the gear box market for heavy-duty trucks. KION Group AG
(“KION"), an overseas controlling subsidiary of the Company, generated
revenue of EUR4,360 million for the first half of the year, representing an

increase of 12.6% from last year.

Non-road engines are a key integral part of the Company’s “dual million
strategy”. During the Period, the construction machinery industry of the
PRC (among which forklift truck engines use internal combustion engines)
continued to deliver growth in sales volume, with an accumulated sale
of 418,000 units, a record high figure representing an increase of 4.6%
over the corresponding period of last year. The Company sold 74,000
units of engines for use in construction machinery, an increase of 7.5%.
Meanwhile, the Company sped up the expansion of other non-road
machinery markets including agricultural equipment and industrial power.
During the first half of 2019, the sale of engines for use in agricultural
equipment reached 26,000 units, an increase of 21.4%. The sale of
engines for use in industrial power reached 14,000 units, an increase of
19.6%.

o ()
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the Period, the Company adhered to the market-oriented
approach and accelerated product innovation and structural adjustments,
with remarkable growth in the sales volume of strategic products and
ongoing enhancement in market competitiveness. During the first half of
2019, the Company reported sales of 70,000 units of light-duty engines,
representing a 17.7% growth year-on-year; sales of 41,000 units of
WPIH/WP10H/10.5H engines, representing a 35.8% growth year-on-
year; and sales of 138,000 units of 12L and 13L engines, representing
a 21.6% growth year-on-year. During the same period, Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary of the Company,
accelerated the development of high-end products, responded positively
to the upgraded emission laws and regulations and achieved major
breakthroughs in areas such as tractors, mixers and natural gas tankers.
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., a controlling subsidiary of the Company,
continued to pursue scientific development and solidified technological
innovation, achieved groundbreaking enhancements in the high-end
platform-based development of mechanical gear boxes, and aimed to
achieve AT and AMT smart transmission products as the core factors
forming the initial drivers. Meanwhile, the Company proactively sought
for innovation in technology and business commercialization for its new-
energy transmission technology. KION, an overseas controlling subsidiary
of the Company, is a globally recognised high-end provider of forklift
trucks. It intensively integrated automation and digitalization to provide

holistic solutions for intra-logistics, so that customers would produce a

competitive advantage in their respective industries.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) T E ()

During the reporting period, focusing on changes in market demand and
the trend of structural upgrade in consumption, the Company fortified
market expansion, stepped up investments in innovation, solidified
management foundation, fostered optimization of product mix and went
high-end, hence achieved further enhancements in the overall operational
quality and effectiveness, and continued to sustain high-quality
development. Firstly, we focused on our core engine business and created
a competitive edge over our high-end products in full series and all rounds.
We fully utilized the strengths of our product offerings in both traditional
and high-end platforms and firmly secured our leading position amidst
the new round of emission upgrade. We embarked upon sales activities
such as “Work hard for the first quarter, Achieve a profit starting” and
“Achieve sales volume of one million units”, allocated resources in a
highly-efficient way, further explored target market segments, and
maintained a higher pace of development as compared to industry peers.
Secondly, we adhered firmly to the use of innovation to create a globally
open and coordinated system of research and development. Investments
in research and development were strengthened both in terms of breadth
and depth. Resources were integrated globally to establish innovation
centres for cutting-edge technologies in Chicago, Silicon Valley and
Detroit in the United States, Aachen in Germany and Tokyo in Japan,
thereby creating a top-notched global platform of innovation. Thirdly,
the Company sped up the implementation of its new-business, new-
energy and new-technology layout and expedited the replacement of
“Old-power” with “New-power”. Against the backdrop of Shandong
Province’s major strategic plan to replace “Old-power” with “New-
power”, the Company pushed forward the construction of its projects
on large-diameter high-speed high-end engines, fuel cell engines and
Linde Hydraulics; strategically deployed future technologies including big
data, smart driving, internet of vehicles and so forth on a global scale,
with a focus on key “bottleneck” technology. The Company pioneered in
investing in the commercialization of buses powered by hydrogen-fueled
batteries in places including Weifang and proceeded with the project on
developing 200-ton hydrogen-fueled mineral trucks in collaboration with
China Energy Group as scheduled. Fourthly, the Company innovated
upon systems and mechanisms, so as to raise customer satisfaction on an
ongoing basis. Guided by customer satisfaction and supported by precise
evaluation, the Company has established an effective PPM quality control
system in a scientific manner which serves as a mechanism to trace
responsibility and precisely evaluate issues arisen along the entire value
chain of sales and marketing, research and development, manufacturing
and procurement, thereby effectively conveying customers’ view, and
continually contributing to enhancements and improvements, and in turn

raising customer satisfaction on an ongoing basis.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

II.

During the reporting period, the Company’s revenue increased by 10.5%
compared with that in the corresponding period of 2018 to approximately
RMB90,862 million. The net profit attributable to shareholders of the
listed company was approximately RMB5,287 million, representing an
increase of 20.4% compared with that in the corresponding period
of 2018. The basic earnings per share was RMB0.67, representing an
increase of 21.3% compared with that in the corresponding period of
2018.

Dividends and Capitalisation of Reserve

On 20 June 2019, the Company’s 2018 profit distribution proposal
was considered and approved at the Company’s 2018 annual general
meeting. Based on the 7,933,873,895 shares available for distribution
after deducting treasury shares as at 31 December 2018, the Company
distributed to all shareholders a cash dividend of RMB2.80 (including tax)

for every 10 shares held, without any capitalisation of reserve.

On 29 August 2019, under the authority granted by the shareholders
of the Company, the Board considered and approved the distribution to
all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.50 (including tax) for every
10 shares held, based on the total number of shares of the Company of
7,933,873,895 shares, without any capitalisation of reserve. Please refer
to the announcement issued by the Company on 10 September 2019

for details on the closure of registers of members in determining the

shareholders who are eligible for the 2019 interim dividend.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) T E ()

III. Outlook and Prospects = A w] H R R RS

In the second half of 2019, global economic growth will remain stagnant,
dragged down by certain prolonged uncertainties, including US-Sino
trade friction, a blow to the global supply chain arising from technological
sanctions imposed by U.S., as well as Brexit. From the perspective of
major economies, the growth momentum of U.S. will slow down, external
demand will recover and temporary factors will gradually unwind and
the Eurozone economies will start to rebound. In terms of the emerging
economies indicators such as industrial output and investment remain
weak, and international trade is yet to recover. The economic growth rates
of developing countries are expected to remain stable at around 5%, with
the economic growth of emerging economies in Asia being significantly
ahead of those of other countries and regions. Facing considerable
uncertainties, the global economy is expected to grow at about 3.2%
this year. In the PRC, with the acceleration and deepening of the supply-
side structural reform, the progression in the replacement of “Old-
power” with “New-power” and the gradual implementation of counter-
cyclical adjustment policies such as the “Six Stabilities”, it is expected that
the economy of the PRC will achieve stable and healthy development.
However, the problem of unbalanced and insufficient development within
the PRC will remain prominent, which will exert new downward pressures
on the economy of the PRC. It is expected that the annual growth of the

economy will remain at about 6.2%.

The Company remains cautiously optimistic about the development of
the industry in which the Company operates in. Due to the higher base
for the corresponding period of last year, in the second half of 2019,
it is forecasted that the growth of the heavy-duty truck market will
slow down. More than 1,000,000 diesel-powered medium and heavy-
duty trucks have to be phased out in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region
and Fenhe-Weihe River Plain area by the end of 2020 pursuant to the
Three-Year Blue Sky Defending Plan ({§] & & X RAT & = F 17851 2))
promulgated by the State Council, which will serve as the driver for
vehicle replacement. Meanwhile, the economy of the PRC enters a new
normal state, but continues to possess great tenacity. It is expected that
the heavy-duty truck industry, as an indicator for the economy of the PRC,

will achieve stable and healthy development.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

In the second half of 2019, benefiting from the favorable factors such
as the combined effect of infrastructure investment and demand arising
from vehicle replacement, the construction machinery industry will
embark on road to recovery. In respect of the international market, new
growth potential for export trade will be further explored as a result of
the stepping up of the “Belt and Road"” initiative promulgated by the PRC.
As for the domestic market, stricter regulations on the environmental
protection by the PRC will promote the upgrading and replacement of
products. In terms of investments in real estates and infrastructure, the
growth rate rebound will further boost the demand for construction
machines, providing excellent opportunities for enterprises in the

construction machinery auxiliary industry.

Since the promulgation of the Three-Year Blue Sky Defending Plan ({ T
BB K IRETEB =178 5T 21)) by the State Council, the schedules for
adopting the China VI standards have gradually been put in place at
regional levels, promoting the use of gas-powered vehicles which meet
the China VI emission standards. Targeted regions have made great
efforts in facilitating early phasing out and upgrading of diesel-powered
trucks which meet the China Ill or below emission standards, and imposed
strict regulations on non-road mobile machinery with high emissions.
Leveraging on the synergy presented by its global collaborative research
and development, full series and all-rounded product portfolio, product
performance strengths, product advantages in market segments and
after-sales service warranty, the Company took pre-emptive actions and
has been making active responses to focus on research and development,
customers and ancillary services to fight the critical battle of emission
upgrade. The Board has full confidence in the Company’s future

development prospects.

For the second half of 2019, committing to the main theme of
“management innovation, R&D acceleration, seizing market share, setting
a new trend”, the Company will work strenuously on the following for

the battles that it must win:
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

Firstly, the Company will make great efforts to improve product
offerings, with the view to be well-positioned in the intense competition.
Adhering to the customer-oriented approach and fully capitalizing on the
advantages of possessing a full series and all-rounded product portfolio,
the Company will target at the segment markets, explore emerging
markets, keep abreast of regulations and industrial trends, continuously
optimize the structures of its products, market and business, with the view
to achieve its annual sales goal of one million units of engines. Secondly,
the Company will be committed to building a “four-in-one” innovative
system of new technology. Leveraging on the globally coordinated R&D
platform, the Company will coordinate its innovative resources, strengthen
the collaboration between industrial organizations and universities, and
speed up the R&D of all-rounded series of products. By systematically
laying out technological plans for our products, the Company will expedite
its exploration of cutting-edge technology and basic research, and fully
grasp the core technology. By triggering innovation and cultivating a team
of talents in research and development in the new era, the Company will
build a new “four-in-one” technological innovation system consisting of
“self-developed innovation+ open innovation+ professional innovation+
basic-research innovation”. Thirdly, the Company will establish a talent
management system at global level for its long-term development.
Being guided by strategies, guaranteed by ecosystem, and based on
mechanism, the Company will focus on the global strategic planning,
allocate human resources reasonably, strengthen recruitment of high-level
talents, and promote the joint collaboration with domestic and overseas
top universities, so as to build a team consisting of high-level talents
with cultural recognition, international outlook and ambition. Fourthly,
with its commitments to customer satisfaction, the Company will fully
carry out the PPM Quality Indicator System. By conducting discussions
and making improvements on quality, the Company will implement the
quality management philosophy and quality management measurement
of PPM at full throttle, so as to generate high-end products without
defects in its life cycle and become a globally recognized brand. Fifthly,
with the support of the information technology of the new generation,
the Company will speed up the pace of digital transformation, enhance
the level of smart manufacturing from an integrative level to becoming a
market leader, and take a leading role in terms of information technology,

cloud-based platforms and big data within the industry.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

Simultaneously, the Company will take guidance from the “2020-2030
Strategy” and further explore the “Belt and Road” initiative, strengthen
the creation of international brands and speed up the replacement of
"Old-power” with “New-power”, in order to expedite the construction
of a leading business system in respect of powertrain, hydraulics system,
smart logistics and new energy in the entire supply chain, in line with its
high-quality development. By achieving the transformation from market-
driven to product-innovation-driven, the Company will win the trust of
its customers through its competitive products, and develop into a well-

respected international enterprise with strong capabilities.

Appreciation

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all
our shareholders, the general public and our customers for their care and
support, as well as to all of our staff for their hard work and dedication in

the past half year!
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of

the results of operations of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2019

(“the Period") as follows:

L.

Industry Analysis

The Company is one of the vehicle and equipment manufacturing

conglomerates in the PRC with the best comprehensive strengths. It is

a leading company in the markets of powertrain, complete vehicles and

machines, hydraulic controlling parts and automotive electronics and parts

and components. It is equipped with the most comprehensive supply

chain of engines, gear boxes and axles and offers related aftersales market

services. Meanwhile, with the Group’s advantage in intelligent logistics, it

could provide comprehensive solutions to its customers.

1.

Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry

In the first half of 2019, the Chinese government insisted upon the
general keynote of making progress while maintaining stability, and
the economic performance sustained a general trend of stability.
In the first half of the year, the gross domestic product of the PRC
reached approximately RMB45.1 trillion, representing a year-on-year
growth of 6.3%. Affected by unfavorable factors including Sino-U.S.
trade frictions, Brexit and intensifying protectionism, there had been
mounting downward pressure on the global economy. Benefited
from policies like the Three-Year Blue Sky Defending Plan ( (3T
ERREB=F1TE5TE]) ) by the State Coundil of the PRC which
serves as the driver for vehicle replacement, the heavy-duty truck
industry remained highly robust. The heavy-duty truck market of the
PRC delivered sales of approximately 656,000 units in total during

the Period, representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.3%.

Construction Machinery

During the Period, fixed-asset investments in the PRC (excluding
agricultural households) reached approximately RMB29.9 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 5.8%. Investments in
property development reached approximately RMB6.2 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 10.9% or an increase of
approximately 1.2 percentage points. As such, the construction
machinery industry of the PRC (among which forklift truck engines
use internal combustion engines) continued to deliver growth in
sales volume, with a total sale of approximately 418,000 units
during the Period, representing an increase of 4.6% over the

corresponding period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

II.

3. Forklift Truck and Supply Chain Solutions
Industry
In the first half of 2019, with the slowdown of global economic
growth and weaker exports and capital expenditure, the
performance of Euro-zone economies was relatively unsatisfactory.
There were also uncertainties such as trade disputes, increasing
debts of developing countries and no-deal Brexit. As such, global
sales order for forklift trucks decreased from approximately 801,100
units in the corresponding period last year to approximately
759,500 units, representing a decrease of 5.2% year-on-year.
Except for the Asia-Pacific, all other regions recorded a negative
growth, among which North America showed the biggest fall of
15.0%.

The Group’s Business
An analysis of the Group’s business segments is set out in Note XIV.2 to
the consolidated financial statements. The following is an overview of the

operating conditions of the major products of the Group:

1. Sale of Engines

For Use in Heavy-duty Trucks

During the Period, despite the decrease in sales volume of the
heavy-duty truck market in the PRC, the Company adhered to its
market-oriented principle and increased research and development
investments, thereby raising its competitiveness in the market. The
Company sold a total of approximately 218,000 units of heavy-
duty truck engines in the first half of 2019, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 10.5%. The Company maintained
its leading position in the heavy-duty truck auxiliary industry with
its market share of 33.2%, representing a year-on-year increase of

approximately 3.9 percentage points.

For Use in Construction Machinery

During the Period, the construction machinery market continued
to deliver growth. The Company sped up the expansion of other
non-road machinery markets including agricultural equipment
and industrial power. During the Period, the Company sold
approximately 74,000 units of engines for use in construction

machinery, an increase of 7.5% year-on-year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Forklift Trucks Production, Warehousing
Technology and Supply Chain Solutions
Services

During the Period, the forklift truck industry showed a decline
due to global uncertainties. Nevertheless, KION actively pushed
forward the “2027 Strategy” and consequently had achieved
stellar performance across markets in various regions. In the first
half of 2019, the Group recorded sales orders for forklift trucks
of approximately 109,200 units, a slight year-on-year decrease
of approximately 1.2% from approximately 110,500 units in the
corresponding period last year. The aggregate value of sale orders
for forklift trucks increased by 1.7% to approximately EUR3,084
million in the first half of 2019. Overall sales orders on hand
amounted to approximately EUR4,197 million, a decrease from
approximately EUR4,309 million in the corresponding period last
year, or a year-on-year decrease of 2.6%. Before elimination of
intra-group sales, the forklift trucks production, warehousing
technology services and supply chain solution services business
contributed approximately RMB32,864 million to the Group’s sales

revenue during the Period.

Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks

During the Period, the Group reported an aggregate sales of
approximately 87,000 units of heavy-duty trucks, representing an
increase of approximately 3.1% from approximately 84,000 units
sold during the corresponding period of 2018. Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary of the Group,
advanced product upgrade and achieved tremendous breakthroughs
in the heavy-duty truck segment market and ranked among the
first-tier players in the domestic heavy duty truck industry in the PRC
in terms of sales. Before elimination of intra-group sales, the heavy-
duty trucks business contributed approximately RMB30,575 million

to the Group’s sales revenue during the Period.

Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes

During the Period, the Group sold approximately 582,000 units of
heavy-duty gear boxes, representing an increase of approximately
11.3% compared to the approximately 523,000 units of heavy-duty
gear boxes sold in the corresponding period in 2018, maintaining a
stable leading position in the industry. Before elimination of intra-
group sales, the gear boxes business contributed approximately

RMB8,588 million to the Group’s sales revenue during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Sale of Parts and Components of Engines and
Heavy-duty Trucks and Hydraulics Controlling
Parts

Apart from the production and sale of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and
sales of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, hydraulic controlling parts, etc. During the Period,
the Group’s sales of parts, components of engines and trucks and
hydraulic controlling parts increased by approximately RMB215
million from approximately RMB1,974 million in the corresponding
period of last year to approximately RMB2,189 million, representing

a year-on-year increase of approximately 10.9%.

ITI. Financial Review

The Group's Results of Operations

a. Revenue
The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB8,598
million or approximately 10.5% from approximately
RMB82,264 million in the corresponding period of 2018 to
approximately RMB90,862 million for the Period. Although
sales volume in the domestic heavy-duty truck market
recorded a downturn, the Company continuously retained a
moderately high momentum of development and recorded
growth in various key segments as the Company constantly
persisted the market-oriented approach and unceasingly
increased investments in research and development and
accelerated the progress of product upgrade to strengthen
our competitiveness in the market. Revenue from principal
operations increased by approximately 11.0% from
approximately RMB80,294 million in the corresponding
period last year to approximately RMB89,130 million for the
Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Profit from Principal Operations

During the Period, the Group generated profit from principal
operations in the amount of approximately RMB19,566
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB1,876
million or 10.6% as compared to approximately RMB17,690
million recorded in the corresponding period in 2018. The
Group concentrated on its main business, emphasized
technological research and cost control, giving advantages to
its products’ competitiveness in terms of cost, core technology
and quality, and widespread recognition in the market. The
Group's profit margin of principal operations maintained at a

high level of approximately 22.0%.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased by approximately
RMB104 million or 1.9% to approximately RMB5,370 million
in the Period from approximately RMB5,474 million in the
corresponding period of 2018. The decrease of distribution
and selling expenses was primarily attributable to the
Company'’s strict monitoring on expenses, causing effective
control of overall expenses. As such, the distribution and
selling expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased from
approximately 6.7% in the corresponding period of last year

to approximately 5.9% in the Period.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately RMB85 million or 2.7% from approximately
RMB3,196 million in the corresponding period of 2018
to approximately RMB3,281 million in the Period. Primary
expenses were under effective control, while the cause
of increase was primarily attributable to the increase in
depreciation and amortization. The general and administrative
expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased from
approximately 3.9% in the corresponding period of last year

to approximately 3.6% in the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

e.  Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT)
During the Period, the Group’s EBIT increased by
approximately RMB1,168 million or 15.0% to approximately
RMB8,947 million from approximately RMB7,779 million in
the corresponding period last year. The increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in sales amount, while the rate
of increase in expenses was slow and investment income
increased. Consequently, the Group’s EBIT margin increased

from approximately 9.5% in the corresponding period of

2018 to approximately 9.8% in this Period.

f. Finance Expenses

Finance expenses increased by approximately 149.5%
to approximately RMB141 million in the Period from
approximately RMB57 million in the corresponding period of

2018. This was mainly attributable to the decrease in interest

income for the Period.

g. Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses increased by 13.5% from
approximately RMB1,285 million in the corresponding period
of 2018 to approximately RMB1,458 million in the Period.
During the Period, the Group's average effective tax rate was

approximately 17.5%, which was approximate to 17.9% in

the corresponding period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

h.  Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group’s net profit for the Period increased by
approximately RMB1,011 million or 17.2% from
approximately RMB5,882 million in the corresponding period
of last year to approximately RMB6,893 million in the Period.
Net profit margin for the Period was approximately 7.6%,
which increased by 0.4 percentage points from 7.2% in
the corresponding period of last year. This was primarily
attributable to the good performance of various business

segments and effective cost control of the Group and

increase in investment income.

i.  Liquidity and Cash Flow

During the Period, the Group generated net operating cash
flows of approximately RMB5,426 million and cash inflow
from financing activities of approximately RMB15,609
million. A portion of such proceeds was applied to repaying
debts, paying for investments and paying for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment for the expansion of
the Group’s business. As of 30 June 2019, the Group's
gearing ratio (Interest-bearing debts/(Interest-bearing debts

+ Shareholders’ equity)) was approximately 33.9% (31

December 2018: approximately 32.9%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2. Financial Position

a.

Assets and Liabilities

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB232,347 million, of which approximately
RMB127,822 million were current assets. As at 30 June 2019,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB40,508 million (as at 31 December 2018: approximately
RMB38,210 million). On the same date, the Group’s total
liabilities amounted to approximately RMB166,486 million,
of which approximately RMB107,523 million were current
liabilities. The current ratio was approximately 1.19 (as at 31
December 2018: 1.22).

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB65,861 million, of which approximately
RMB42,412 million was attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the balance was minority interests. Interest
attributable to minority interest holders included the issue of
perpetual capital securities in the principal amount of US$775
million in September 2017. The borrowings of the Group as
at 30 June 2019 amounted to approximately RMB33,725
million, which included bonds of approximately R\MB13,068
million and bank borrowings of approximately RMB20,658
million. The bank borrowings included approximately
RMB11,716 million of fixed interest rate bank borrowings
and approximately RMB8,942 million of floating interest
rate bank borrowings. Borrowings repayable on demand or
within a period not exceeding one year were approximately
RMB11,266 million; borrowings repayable within a period
of more than one year but not exceeding two years were
approximately RMB2,376 million; borrowings repayable
within a period of more than two years but not exceeding

five years were approximately RMB6, 063 m|II|on and‘
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

borrowings repayable within a period of more than five
years were approximately RMB953 million. Other than Euro-
denominated borrowings, USD-denominated borrowings and
GBP-denominated borrowings equivalent to approximately
RMB17,155 million, RMB337 million and RMB242 million
respectively, the borrowings are Renminbi-denominated
borrowings. The revenue of the Group is mainly in Renminbi
and Euro. To prevent exchange rate risk arising from the
fluctuation of the USD exchange rate, contracts have been
entered into with financial institutions to swap the USD400
million USD-denominated bonds issued in September 2015
and the USD775 million USD-denominated perpetual capital
securities issued in September 2017 to Euro, and thus the
Group does not consider the currency risk facing its future
general cash outflow significant. As a policy, the Group
manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to shareholders through the optimization of the debts
and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior years.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2019, bank deposits and notes receivable
of approximately RMB21,108 million (as at 31 December
2018: RMB15,863 million) were pledged to banks to secure
the Group’s notes payable, letter of guarantee, letter of
credit etc. issued by banks. The pledged bank deposits carry
prevailing bank interest rates. The pledge will be released
upon the settlement of the relevant bank borrowings. The
fair value of the bank deposits as at the balance sheet date

was approximately the same as the carrying amount. Certain

other assets were also pledged by the Group to secure the
Group'’s borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

d. Contingencies

On 30 June 2019, the Group provided certain distributors
and agents with bank guarantee amounting to approximately
RMB3,129 million (as at 31 December 2018: approximately

RMB2,482 million) to secure their obtaining and use of

banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group provided guarantee for joint
liabilities in respect of failure of the leasee under finance lease
to settle instalment payments plus interest. Risk exposure in
respect of possible guarantee for joint liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB2,866 million (as at 31 December 2018:

approximately RMB2,303 million).

As at 30 June 2019, the Group's guarantee for borrowings
and other guarantee amounted to approximately RMB813

million (as at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB702

million).

e. Commitments

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB3,993 million (as at 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB3,584 million), principally for the capital
expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, plant and

equipment. The capital expenditure will be financed by

internal resources.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

3.

Other Financial Information

a.

Employees

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had approximately 78
thousand employees (including approximately 34 thousand
employees of KION). During the Period, the Group had
paid remuneration of approximately RMB11,783 million.
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merits,

qualifications and competence.

Major Investment, Acquisition and Disposal
The Group did not have any major investment, acquisition or

disposal during the Period.

Subsequent Events

On 29 August 2019, under the authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company, the Board considered and
approved the distribution to all shareholders of cash dividend
of RMB1.50 (including tax) for every 10 shares held, based on
the total number of shares of the Company of 7,933,873,895
shares, without any capitalisation of reserve.
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Auditors” Review Report

Deloitte

Deloitte Shi Bao (Yue) Zi (19) No. R00056
To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Weichai
Power Co., Ltd. (“Weichai Power”) which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 30 June 2019, the consolidated and company
income statements, consolidated and company statement of changes in equity
and consolidated and company cash flow statement for the period from 1
January to 30 June 2019 and notes to the financial statements (“interim financial
statements”). The management of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. is responsible for the
preparation of these interim financial statements. Our responsibility is to issue
our review report on these interim financial statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Review Standard for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants No. 2101 Review of Financial Statements. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct a review to obtain limited assurance as
to whether the interim financial statements are free from material misstatement.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and performing
analytical procedures on the data. A review provides less assurance than an
audit. We have not performed an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the interim financial statements are not prepared in accordance
with the requirement in Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32
Interim Financial Reporting in any material respect, or do not fairly reflect the
consolidated and company financial position of Weichai Power as at 30 June
2019 and the consolidated and company operating results and consolidated and
company cash flow of Weichai Power for the period from 1 January to 30 June
2019 in any material respect.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
(engagement partner)

Xie Yanfeng

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Li Yangang

29 August 2019
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28  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #SeE HIRBAR AT

: N o
Consolidated Balance Sheet S EaEAEER
30 June 2019 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2019F6 A30H (A E¥T)

[tem Note V 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
5 E S 201956 H30H 2018512 A31H

Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents EKES 1 APl TP 38,209,952,558.31
Financial assets held for trading THMLREE 2 6,558,250,278.29 4,115,199,600.23
Notes receivable JEW R IR 3 Pl ER e 18,056,440,277.52
Accounts receivable FEUWBE X 4 AR 0ER G 13,155,363,494.20
Receivable financing FEU R IE B A 5 3,165,473,130.72 6,936,224,398.10
Prepayments SN B 6 993,996,306.36 1,109,227,313.17
Other receivables Ho A i U 3R 7 994,001,644.57 1,087,148,524.03
Inventories T8 8 iR AR 20,674,287,133.47
Contract assets aRAERE 9 1,206,788,460.00 935,892,539.90
Assets held for sale BEFELE 24,237,289.50 5,525,306.60
Non-current assets due within one year —FRI N IERSEE 10 2,460,158,423.00 2,127,858,173.40
Other current assets Hibme&E 11 1,876,349,685.75 1,692,343,618.45
Total current assets RBEEAF Pl R e 108,105,462,937.38
Non-current assets EMEEE
Long-term receivables A FE IR 12 7,398,455,597.93 6,483,298,008.60
Long-term equity investments REAIRELE 13 4,658,941,420.65 4,463,591,313.13
Investment in other equity instruments HihgEm TERE 14 1,755,825,338.62 1,315,633,672.96
Other non-current financial assets HiERHEREE 15 225,371,927.00 192,949,412.40
Investment property WEMREHE 16 571,972,828.45 593,459,307.58
Fixed assets BEEBE 17 PERDCINMEA I 290 454,072,247.73
Construction in progress EEIR 18 4,525,997,755.85 2,848,101,239.62
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19 9,545,408,314.77
Intangible assets EBVEE 20 PR AW YA R 23,299,455,749.37
Development expenditure S 21 453,316,351.08 440,148,223.16
Goodwill SRS 22 23,085,316,276.41 23,037,386,296.04
Long-term prepaid expenses EHE#HER 23 242,486,994.40 228,459,134.85
Deferred tax assets REFTISEE 5,496,336,792.95 4,458,451,001.33
Other non-current assets HMIERFHEE 24 575,068,301.00 355,896,630.03
Total non-current assets IERBEESE el vkl kG 97,170,902,236.80
Total assets BEMAGT

VEYRLYRVAW/( Wil 005,276,365,174.18
= > T e o —




Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
30 June 2019 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2019 A HAR&E

o EEAEE (H)

201946 308 (A E¥T)

[tem Note V

EH MR

Current liabilities mEBE
Short-term loans EAEER 25
Financial liabilities held for trading RBEEMEE 26
Notes payable FE & 27
Accounts payable JE IR X 28
Contract liabilities EcR&E 29
Payroll payable JE A1 B8k T 357 T 30
Taxes payable ERT B 31
Other payables H M FE 3R 32
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREHNIETTERE 33
Other current liabilities HimghaE 34

Total current liabilities mBAESS

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Long-term borrowings REMER 35
Bonds payable ERES 36
Lease liabilities HEBRE 37
Long-term payables REAET R 38
Long-term payroll payable = B e A< B8 T 357 39
Accruals and provisions TEFtAE 40
Deferred income R Y e 41
Deferred tax liabilities BEFGRAE
Other non-current liabilities HindEns aE 42

Total non-current liabilities FERBEESS

Total liabilities

B fEAs

30 June 2019
201946 H30H

9,032,556,671.76
144,779,472.63
21,147,361,947.82
37,829,169,371.00
7,731,817,263.00
5,039,466,805.76
2,490,935,753.04
9,297,917,295.61
8,394,643,239.19
6,414,262,742.66

107,522,910,562.47

9,392,145,845.45
13,067,538,152.46
10,007,040,113.73
2,600,609,345.86
10,935,052,984.14
328,162,480.60
4,379,886,455.35
5,808,202,256.26
2,444,839,586.41

58,963,477,220.26

166,486,387,782.73

31 December 2018
2018%F12A31H

5,472,765,901.24
213,435,765.47
15,925,016,265.08
30,869,354,934.85
8,722,443,043.80
5,184,666,613.19
2,506,794,642.37
6,502,173,092.72
6,898,699,368.61
6,121,799,350.16

88,417,148,977.49

10,908,512,233.85
12,265,020,075.27

9,895,419,535.20
9,580,057,732.13

364,979,471.20
3,256,007,618.70
5,772,705,450.50
2,557,186,306.15

54,599,888,423.00

143,017,037,400.49

29



30 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #LeE HIRB AR AT

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) G EEAER ()
30 June 2019 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201946 A30H (AR T)
[tem Note V 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
A M n 20196 H30AR 201812 A31H
Shareholders’ equity B R A =5
Share capital A% 7% 43 7,933,873,895.00 7,997,238,556.00
Capital reserve BARNE 44 117,177,579.82 113,699,432.76
Less: treasury shares B EETERR 45 - 499,911,217.21
Other comprehensive income Hihira e 46 (SRRSO (1,570,594,557.01)
Special reserve EIEGE 47 177,657,471.51 155,056,854.10
Surplus reserve B NTE 48 237,736,834.40 674,283,390.61
Retained earnings Ko B FE 49 S e S 32,443,962,374.77
Total equity attributable to the shareholders BENEARREERST
of the parent AP AN GReHEE{0R 39,313,734,834.02
Minority interests D HRR R 50 PRIy T PE Y 22,945,592,939.67
Total shareholders’ equity AR iEzE A Gy SRR SPA Y 62,259,327,773.69
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMRRE R AR PEPIEYFEPARTAVPER205,276,365,174.18
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements. M R B R A S
The financial statements on pages 28 to 274 have been signed by: F23EEF2MAENPHERERBTIEFEAE
£
Legal representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA FESHIEAEA BITREAEZA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia

E Y5 BEE Z8
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201941 51HZE6H30H 1F 27 (A )

Consolidated Income Statement

1 January to 30 June 2019 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Net profit attributable to the shareholders

of the parent

BN QB RIRAFENE

Minority interests

LHBRREE

5,287,488,377.89

1,605,331,928.25

Incurred during Incurred in
[tem Note V this period previous period
HH iozahal AHRLERE THAE A
Revenue EERA 51 Cllspl el e Pl 82,263,906,908.88
Less: Cost of sales B HERAR 51 PuA R ER Y 64,335,849,214.51
Taxes and surcharges Gl 52 375,020,413.27 399,294,357.54
Distribution and selling expenses HEZ®A 53 5,369,736,377.62 5,473,595,476.28
General and administrative expenses EIEEH 54 3,281,155,705.90 3,196,179,093.83
Research & development expenses e & A 55 2,397,741,836.26 1,751,132,452.88
Finance expenses 5 &R 56 141,342,571.21 56,645,514.29
Incl:  Interest expenses HEeh: FIBEA 596,873,003.86 612,147,513.99
Interest income MEWA 479,664,629.04 563,067,891.29
Add: Other income o Bt ias 57 90,120,492.57 58,339,437.77
Investment income RE W 58 372,698,501.34 221,176,005.84
Incl:  Investment income from associates and Hep o HBEE
joint ventures MeaEhED
RE W 123,724,757.92 136,233,044.06
Gain or loss on fair value changes NABEZEHEZR 59 25,507,034.78 26,873,836.25
Impairment loss of credit ERRBEERX 60 (184,177,256.14) (105,247,274.82)
Impairment loss of assets BEREBRX 61 (267,253,210.66) (179,326,217.62)
Gain on disposal of assets BEREWE 43,971,693.24 4,186,159.48
Operating profit =V lbEs 8,277,224,418.22 7,077,212,746.45
Add: Non-operating income o EEINEA 62 103,809,834.47 142,190,971.81
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEINT 63 30,391,826.11 52,526,096.81
Total profit F 4258 8,350,642,426.58 7,166,877,621.45
Less: Income tax expense B TSR E R 64 1,457,822,120.44 1,284,648,536.55
Net profit pey 3| e 6,892,820,306.14 5,882,229,084.90
Incl:  Net profit from continuing operations Hep  BELEFHHE 6,892,820,306.14 5,882,229,084.90
Net profit from discountinued operations AR = -
Breakdown by attributable interests BERERED R

4,392,587,359.49

1,489,641,725.41
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Consolidated Income Statement (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2019 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

ltem
B H

o i AL AR ()

201941 51H5ZE6H30H 1F R (A E#T)

Incurred during

Note V
MsE R

this period
AEBAR

Net other comprehensive income after tax
Net other comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the parent after tax

Hipfr o Wam R IF8E
% q’&ﬁ ?E’J

138,288,663.93

(359,829,984.29)

(104,627.70)

404,196,316.01

Those other comprehensive income not to be T i%iﬁiﬁ BaE
reclassified into profit or loss L ith 4R & UK 25
Changes arising from re-measuring defined BN EREZ @A E
benefit plan HE)EE
Other comprehensive income not to be taken to WA TN TREEERN
profit or loss using the equity method Hira s
Change of fair value of investment in ﬁ’r&’fgﬁﬁlﬂ&ﬁ
other equity instruments NRBEZS
Those other comprehensive income to be BESBEEBRZN
reclassified into profit or loss Hihira e

Other comprehensive income to be taken to
profit or loss using the equity method
Cashflow hedging reserve
Exchange differences on foreign currency translation

REETABEEN
HisRa Wa

ReEnEEMHB

SNEM B HMRITEER

(4,361,463.39)
35,466,883.63
62,921,539.67

Net other comprehensive income attributable to

BERLBRROEMERS

(358,106,480.13)

6,673,002,489.94

minority owners after tax e i1 F 58
Total comprehensive income AW
Incl: He o

Total comprehensive income attributable to
the shareholders of the parent

5,425,777,041.82

1,247,225,448.12

Total comprehensive income attributable to FER 9 %Zﬁﬁﬁ HERE
minority interest W e 4258
Earnings per share B M= 65
Basic earnings per share EXRG R
Diluted earnings per share wEERKE

Incurred in
previous period

HA AR

(41,354,889.09)

17,362,053.85

(1,135,343.38)

(65,902,072.83)

1,002,941.82
(29,131,420.11)
36,448,951.56

(123,419,940.23)

5,717,454,255.58

4,351,232,470.40

1,366,221,785.18

0.55
0.55
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i VN

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity A DF A% AP fm 5t ) R

1 January to 30 June 2019 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Capital
[tem Note reserve
ER [iFd BX0E
|, Atend of previous year - MEEREE T9T23855600 11369943276
Add: Change in accounting polices 11+ &3t #E 33
=3
Il At beginning of period ) T9918855600 1369943276
II. Movements in current period = RESRESEE
(I} Total comprehensive income () EAkzEE

(1) Injection and reduction () RERAREDER

1. Captalinection from 1. RRRARR
sharefolders
2. Amount of share-based 1. RORRHARE
payment taken to BENLE ]
owners' equity (+-) 120180395
3. Cancellation of treasury 3 HEEENERR 6
shares repurchased EL (6336466100 -
4. Others (] S 1A
(1) Profit approprition (=) HEAR
1. Distioution to owners 1. HRENAR U
(@)
2. Distrbution to holders of 1 HhEARES
other equity nstruments of TERERNAR
subsidiares
(V) Special reserve (1) 2R
1. Appropriation during 1. BERR W4
the perod @4
2. Used during the perod ). KEER w4
@4
V. At end of period N ABHFRE TIRSTHE0 11717757982

201941 51HZE6H30H 1F 27 (A )

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
SENSLARRER

Other

Less:  comprehensive Spedal Surplus Retained Minority Total

income interests equity

Treasury shares

reserve reseve eannings Subtotal

i HERR

B BAR ek LEL BBAR  AOEAR hit B RRmEei

499912721 (1,570,594557.01)  155,056,854.10 67428339061 3244396237477 3931373483402 22,94559293967 6225932777369

(13,411,82083) (118967,18248)  (132,399,00291)  (161,772,201.36)  (294171,20421)

49991121721 (1584006377.44)  155,096,854.10 67428339061 3232497519229 39,181,335,831.11 22,783,820,73831 61,965,156,569.42

138,288,663.93 - 528748837789 SAL5TTT0N82 124722544812 6,673,002,48994

9738057097 97,380,507

1,201,603.95 1,468,627.06 267023101

(499,911,217.21) = - (436,546,556.21) = = =

= = = 22765811 278244157 5,058,984.68

- (220148469060) (222148469060)  (591,306,148.30) (2:812,790,838.90)

(99.65494221)  (99,654,342.21)

S4517,051.72 5451705172 1882288093 73339,93265

(31,916,43431) (31.916,43431)  (11312637.73)  (43229,072.04)

- (145T1771351) 177,657 47150

23173683440 35390978879.58  42,411,706.946.80  23,449,226978.72 65,860,933 925.52
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued) B D T RME 4 52 B 3R ()
1 January to 30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F 1 A1HZ6H30H 1L B (A R¥or)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

SERSLARRRR
Other
Share Capital ~ comprehensive Special Surplus Retained Minority Total
[tem Note capital resene income resenve reserve earnings Subtotal interests equity
4 HHBR
ER B i E50E EELt BERE BBE FARAAE it B RRERAR
I, At beginning of period - REENEE TOTRSHN  IBMBTAY (14990165203 VIBIGETIR ISR 2BIOTERLMEE  BATG06618684  21115UBEITON 5639141480385
Il Movements in current period - ABEEEHLE
() Total comprehensive income (-)gaksLs - - (35488009 - S 43004 404040 136622178518 571745425558
(1) Injection and reduction () RERARDER
1. Capital injection 1. RERAER
from shareholders - - - - - - S 00 1143972000
2. Acquisiton of additional ) BETRERR
shares in subsidiaries - (s - - (61681198187) (3825845860 (BR0E3LTEY (364316353 (1117,10639114)
3. Amount of share-vased payment 3 RbfARRER
taken to owners' equity b R K Yk - - - B KLy 16843810 29137097
4. Disposal of subsidiaries 4 REFRA - - - (4046248) - - (4648 (T8I (E6127712)
5. Others 5 B - - - - - - - IR0 1,331,361.00
(1) Profit appropriation (2)FIERE
1. Distrbution to owners 1. HERNAR 4
(@4 - - - - - (199930963900 (199930963900 (50987011077 (2.509,178,74877)
2. Distrbution to holders of 2 HPRERGER
other equity instruments of IERHENAR
subsidiaries - - = = = = - @IBReY 21835918
(V) Special reserve (1) E5ER
1. Appropriation during the period 1. RERR - - - S99 - S NI DT AT
2. Used during the period 2 REER = = R/ )] - SR G0 (38534

Il At end of period o REEREE 199723855600 11162016088 (154127654102 14391228347 - 3026270201052 3697419746955 2161438383578 58,588,581,305.33




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

1 January to 30 June 2019 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2019 FHEAZRE

/\ 1 v2s EL
EHHEMER
201941 51HZE6H30H 1F 27 (A )

Incurred during Incurred in
ltem Note V this period previous period
EH MR AERERE EERE A
I, CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES ~ —- & EHEEL

ReEne
Cash received from sales of goods or rendering EEEM - RHEE
of services WE R e 70,256,466,506.08 66,413,776,983.13

Refunds of taxes
Other cash received relating to operating

Yo B 0 B R IR
WE A BEEEHE

334,432,136.02

235,419,233.88

activities b 67 905,243,651.00 815,258,002.82
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities MEEEIR S RA/NT 71,496,142,293.10 67,464,454,219.83
Cash paid for goods and services EERD RSB
FRREEA 44,009,086,409.54 35,605,171,317.17
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TRHGEBIURART
MRS 13,199,506,398.82 11,810,894,126.45
Cash paid for all types of taxes YRAHEBERE 3,986,344,352.81 4,588,503,589.72
Other cash paid relating to operating activities ST E A B RS
BFHNRE 67 4,874,759,144.25 6,946,458,429.69
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating RESTENIR S /N E
activities 66,069,696,305.42 58,951,027,463.03
Net cash flows from operating activities EEEEELH
BeReds 68 5,426,445,987.68 8,513,426,756.80
II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - REEFHEAN
RAeme
Cash received from sale of investments WEHRERE MRS 7,317,876,585.00 2,365,000,000.00
Cash received from return on investments NERERZKE /M
R& 164,279,265.41 112,726,825.14
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REBRTEE EF
intangible assets and other long-term assets EENEMRBEE
QI Db R b 28,761,295.22 27,940,095.15
Net cash received for disposal of subsidiaries RETRAIREMEE

B WBINER S FE 68 -
WE AR AR S

BHENRE
RERBRSMANDE

BRETEE B

and other business units
Other cash received relating to investing
activities

130,019,045.68

6,718,716.30 =

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities 7,517,635,861.93 2,635,685,965.97

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets EEMEMER
BEYNHNES 2,419,040,870.86 1,506,264,665.87
Cash paid for acquisition of investments REXfMES 11,317,960,726.11 4,962,395,000.00
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries BEFRAEIREMERE
and other business units BASMNHNEEFE 8,175,005.00
Other cash paid relating to investing activities S EMEKEES
EHENFEE = 16,542,635.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities KEZHR &R NET 13,737,001,596.97 6,493,377,305.87
Net cash flows from investing activities REEBELN
HenaeF58 (6,219,365,735.04) (3,857,691,339.90)
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Incurred during

[tem Note V this period
EH MR A REE
Ml CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES = BEEYEEH
Hene
Cash received from capital contributions MU E W B3R & 102,593,389.77
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries from capital Hep: FREIRKDE
contributions of minority owners eSS
HRE 102,593,389.77
Cash received from borrowings R ERKEHRE 15,447,418,433.60
Other cash received relating to financing WEIHMmEBEEES
activities BFHNRS 58,956,621.40
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities BEFHHELMADE 15,608,968,444.77
Cash repayments of borrowings EREBINNES 12,840,238,759.74
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or profits AEIEF] - MEE R
and for interest expenses FEZNMEAE 1,247,867,955.77
Incl: Cash paid to minority owners for Heap: FREIE 4
distribution of dividends or profits DERE S
by subsidiaries REF) ~ )5 926,121,881.02
Other cash paid relating to financing activities S EMEEEES
BENES 67 520,462,094.40
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing
activities EZFBHRLML/NE 14,608,568,809.91
Net cash flows from financing activities EEETHELEW
BeneF8E 1,000,399,634.86
V. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE me EREHHES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS kReEEYNTE 33,459,332.68
V. NETINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH T ReKkREEEY
EQUIVALENTS R INER 240,939,220.18
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning m:B\yEsERREE
of period BYsrEE 34,379,938,275.41
VI CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END N BRASREASE
OF PERIOD BYsrEE 68 34,620,877,495.59

Incurred in
previous period

ik gk

11,439,720.00

11,439,720.00
10,882,017,564.00

118,360,326.57

11,011,817,610.57

8,885,785,122.80

1,167,477,025.37

752,018,795.61

1,166,637,841.81

11,219,899,989.98

(208,082,379.41)

(32,095,944.81)

4,415,557,092.68

26,254,590,256.11

30,670,147,348.79
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30 June 2019 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2019 FH#isRsE 37

nAEER

Note XV 30 June 2019
20196 A30H

19,393,806,793.13

1 25,805,610,482.40
3,356,345,720.46

3 22,318,583.87
111,320,168.25

4 325,043,818.04
2,171,150,802.59
124,652,668.74

51,310,249,037.48

214,082,200.00

5 14,882,444,246.66
1,127,494,669.86
2,796,990,762.74
1,522,279,301.86
517,187,887.96
341,073,643.76
1,074,402,846.88
2,266,184,774.12

Item
pizf= ME+h
Current assets MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents EKES
Notes receivable JE W =%
Accounts receivable JE L BR K
Receivable financing FEW RIE B &
Prepayments BT RRIE
Other receivables E & UK
Inventories rE
Other current assets HEmns&E
Total current assets MEVEESET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment in other equity instruments HEmERTIARE
Long-term equity investments REIRERE
Investment property "EEREHE
Fixed assets EEE
Construction in progress fERETIR
Intangible assets EREE
Goodwill (EES
Deferred tax assets BIEFTISTAE
Other non-current assets HEMIERBERE
Total non-current assets FERBEESF

24,742,140,333.84

Total assets

BEAF

76,052,389,371.32

R

201946 308 (A E¥T)

31 December 2018
2018412 A831H

19,192,409,975.78
21,026,407,121.15
1,069,759,568.00
385,395,385.93
501,826,716.43
1,971,178,990.99
164,194,933.94

44,311,172,692.22

170,082,200.00
14,531,123,322.77
1,372,826,553.46
2,561,908,781.20
922,996,632.68
447,349,640.19
341,073,643.76
949,075,808.16
2,266,184,774.12

23,562,621,356.34

67,873,794,048.56
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NEEE A EE ()
201946 4308 (A B¥T)

30 June 2019
201946 HA30H

11,653,275,006.97
12,215,285,038.90
2,238,848,753.57
948,588,557.39
431,567,995.94
4,259,355,785.05
1,640,347,234.38

33,387,268,372.20

24,864,786.05
5,515,822.60

814,174,257.69

844,554,866.34

34,231,823,238.54

7,933,873,895.00
695,679,231.81

(40,716,745.08)
84,175,626.96
2,871,365,767.98
30,276,188,356.11

41,820,566,132.78

Item Note XV
HH M+
Current liabilities mENa &
Notes payable e i
Accounts payable JRE 1 BR 3R
Contract liabilities cRAEE
Payroll payable A {F B8k T %5
Taxes payable ERXTE
Other payables ot AT 3K
Other current liabilities HfnehaE
Total current liabilities MEBEEE
Non-current liabilities ERBNEE
Long term payroll payable £ B P AT B 5
Long term payables RHEIER
Deferred income PEIE S
Total non-current liabilities SERBBEESE
Total liabilities BE&F
Shareholders’ equity (g
Share capital [N
Capital reserve /N
Less: Treasury shares o ETER
Other comprehensive income E iR & W a
Special reserve HIEHE
Surplus reserve PR YN
Retained earnings K5 R FE
Total shareholders’ equity IR E A FT
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMBRRERBE

76,052,389,371.32

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

11,756,416,668.11
9,543,570,906.39
1,481,303,661.91
916,685,488.49
569,997,419.03
1,783,055,862.95
1,681,702,830.61

27,732,732,837.49

13,444,746.89
5,515,822.60

803,454,411.80

822,414,981.29

28,555,147,818.78

7,997,238,556.00
1,084,612,950.62
499,911,217.21
(47,258,130.00)
74,867,864.57
2,811,115,722.19
27,897,980,483.61

39,318,646,229.78

67,873,794,048.56
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Incurred during

Item Note XV this period
HAE MizE+ R AR
Revenue EERA 6 24,408,563,211.01
Less: Cost of sales o B EKK 6 17,599,138,838.21
Taxes and surcharges <& K Bt on 153,054,486.06
Distribution and selling expenses HEER 687,984,414.93
General and administrative expenses EIEE 545,444,978.25
Research and development expenses fEEE A 1,063,328,580.45
Finance expenses s8R (110,962,502.64)
Incl:  Interest expenses He: FEER =
Interest income M EWA 117,309,188.63
Add: Other income s EAnlgas 39,487,227.95
Investment income B K= 7 610,885,819.43
Incl:  Investment income from associates Hrbh o BN
and joint ventures aRER
wE WS 60,137,591.48
Impairment loss of credit ERREREK (34,505,077.42)
Impairment loss of assets BEREEXKX (5,423,751.68)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets BERE
Wz /(%) (3,500,499.47)
Operating profit 52 IR 5,077,518,134.56
Add: Non-operating income JIEREIN N 5,988,231.28
Less: Non-operating expenses o BEINT 233,048.58
Total profit b FERE 5,083,273,317.26

Less: Income tax expenses

o SRR

616,701,382.41

Net profit

Incl:  Net profit from continuing operations

Net profit from discontinued operations

e ZAIE
Hep : HEEEFNHE
AR\ R R

4,466,571,934.85
4,466,571,934.85

6,541,384.92

6,541,384.92

6,541,384.92

Net other comprehensive income after tax HEnira W mRi g F58
Those other comprehensive income not to TRESHEERZN
be reclassified into profit or loss Hira s
Change of fair value of investment in HiERTAKE
other equity instruments AREEZE
Total comprehensive income AW

4,473,113,319.77

Incurred in
previous period

LA

20,805,365,797.30

14,779,298,756.16
185,368,366.78
801,514,911.15
675,608,621.79
668,380,978.13
(94,131,546.46)
101,980,818.34

26,145,452.76

574,891,386.08

53,294,536.99
(5,008,399.61)
(1,480,858.42)

1,440,810.51

4,385,314,101.07
3,226,106.66
2,591,527.97

4,385,948,679.76
599,796,226.05

3,786,152,453.71
3,786,152,453.71

(53,040,000.00)

(53,040,000.00)

(53,040,000.00)

3,733,112,453.71
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

1 January to 30 June 2019 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Other
Share Capital Less:  comprehensive Special Surplus Retained Total
Item Note capital reserve  Treasury shares income reserve reserve earings equity
BR i k& LN | BOEER  Aft&SRE BERE EROR AEHE  BREEGHT
. Atbeginning of period - AHEEE 799723855600 108461295062 49991121721 (4725813000) 7486786457 28111157219  27,897,98048361  39,318,646,229.78

FBERRILE

() HahE4E

() RRRAMELER
1. RRAKTAR

I Movements in current period o

(] Total comprefensive income

6,541,384.92

4,866,571,93485 447311331977
I} Injection and reduction

1. Acquisition of subsiciaries

by way of absorption 47,612,837.40 60,250,045.79 133,120,628.25 240,983,511.44
2. Cancelation of 2 HEEBERR
treasLry shares repurchased (63,364,661.00)  (436,546,556.21)  (499,911,217.21)
(I Profit appropriation (2) HEsR V4
1. Distribution to owners 1. HRENAR (R) 49 (2,221,484,690.60)  (2,221,484,690.60)
(V) Specia resene (M) ZEER
1. Appropriation during the perod 1. RERR 1321545580 1321545580
2. Used during the period ). TEER (3,907,693.41) (3,907,693.41)
Il Atend of period = TEHRHE 7,933,873,895.00 695,679,231.81 (40,716,745.08) 8417562696  2,871,365,767.98  30,276,188,356.11  41,820,566,132.78

1 January to 30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20181 H1HZE6H30H 1FAIE (A E#oT)

Other
comprehensive
Item Note Share capital Capital reserve income Special reserve Surplusreserve— Retained eamings Total equity
A s & BA0R Efitrala EGR BHLE RARAE REERA
. Atbeginning of period - FEEIRE 7,997,238,556.00 1,080313,374.62 25,491,500.00 5995893853 213683233158 25266,100907.25  36,565,935,607.98
Il Movements in current period o FEEREYLE
() Total comprehensive income (=) Helnss - - (53,040,000.00) = - 3T 3733124871
(I Injction and reduction (2) RREAGHOER
1. Acquiston of subsidiaies 1. RREHFAT
by way of absorption - 4,299,576.00 - - - - 4,299,576.00
() Profit appropriation (Z) HEAR L
1. Distribution to owners 1. SRENAR (B) % - = = - - (1999300639000 (1,999,309,639.00)
(V) Special reserve (m) EEBEE
1. Appropriation during 1. KEER
the period - - - 13,054,693.72 - B 13,054,693.72
2. Used during the period ). THER - - - (3,479,243.12) - - (347943.12)
Il Atend of period = FHERRE 7,997,238556.00  1,084,612,950.62 27,548,500.00) 69534389.13 213683233158 27,0594372196  38,313,613449.9
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Incurred Incurred
during in previous
[tem Note XV this period period

HE MaE+R KHRER FHEIE A
. CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ —-  E&EFELN
Bens
Cash received from sales of goods HEEM - REEH
or rendering of services W &R e 21,137,451,128.56 22,610,391,199.40
Other cash received relating to U B B A BT 2 E B
operating activities BFHEORe 532,788,731.62 348,052,819.94
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities EEEENIR & A /N 21,670,239,860.18 22,958,444,019.34
Cash paid for goods and services BEER  BX4H
TRMERE 17,428,443,912.89 14,368,875,075.33
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TRHEBIURS
BIXN®ED 1,046,134,778.25 836,196,703.57
Cash paid for all types of taxes ERMEERE 2,013,438,002.68 2,283,726,064.16
Other cash paid relating to operating activities T E A BAE R B
FHENERS 521,051,494.84 410,096,515.27
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating EEEERE R at
activities 21,009,068,188.66 17,898,894,358.33
Net cash flows from operating activities REEBELN
RemeFHE 8 661,171,671.52 5,059,549,661.01
II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES = BREEHELN
REene
Cash received from sale of investments Wl E W R IR S 876,585.00 211,615,695.00
Cash received from return on investments BB E W
ShElkoein 644,004,020.43 537,803,105.79
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REETEE  BF
intangible assets and other long-term assets AEMHEHMREEE
W Bl #9358 & 5 58 8,653,514.00 65,860.00
Other cash received relating to investing activities LB H fth B2 45 & E &
BEBNES 241,783,376.18 180,422.79
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities REESHRERANT 895,317,495.61 749,665,083.58
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BRETEE B
intangible assets and other long-term assets BEMAMRBEE
FAREEA 988,932,508.43 279,939,747.53
Cash paid for acquisition of investments KEL WIS 395,890,181.29 396,644,880.00
Other cash paid relating to investing activities S E A BRI
FHENRE - 822,270,140.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities BEZEHES T at 1,384,822,689.72 1,498,854,767.53
Net cash flows from investing activities REEBELEN

HEeREe B8 (489,505,194.11) (749,189,683.95)

41
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Company Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Incurred Incurred
during in previous
this period period
KERERH EHIR A
Ml CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES = EETHELR
Rene

Cash paid for distribution of dividend, profit
or interest payment

A ECRA - RIS EN

FEX MRS

35,210,522.95

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing EZ85FHRE R /NG
activities 35,210,522.95
Net cash flows from financing activities SERYEED
ReneF58 (35,210,522.95)
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATEON [ EX@HHIRE K
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReEEYMSE (27,322.50) 11,389.25
V. NETINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH - ReRBELEED
EQUIVALENTS el 171,639,154.91 4,275,160,843.36
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning m:EByRe RES
of period SEMHE 19,074,554,698.78 14,138,495,877 .47
VI.  CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF  ~+ HiHE4£EES

PERIOD

19,246,193,853.69

18,413,656,720.83
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Notes to Financial Statements

1 January to 30 June 2019

I. Corporate Background

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint stock company limited
by shares incorporated in Shandong, the People’s Republic of China. It
was established on 23 December 2002.

The RMB ordinary A shares and overseas listed foreign H shares issued by
the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. The registered address of
the Company’s headquarters is 197, Section A, Fu Shou East Street, High
Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province.
The Company operates in the transportation equipment manufacturing
industry. The major scope of operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) covers: Design, development, production, sale,
repair, import and export of engines and auxiliary products, automobile,
automobile axle and components, gear boxes and components and other
automobile components, hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors, hydraulic
valves, gears and gear transmission devices, ancillary casting and casting
products of hydraulic components, internal combustion engines, new-
energy powertrain systems and ancillary products; technical consultation
and technical services; leasing of self-owned houses; sale of steel; business
management service; forklift trucks production, warehousing technology
and supply chain solution services. For the aforesaid scope of operation,
operating permit(s) should be held for those operations requiring

administrative permission.

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate

holding company of the Group respectively.

These interim financial statements were approved by the board of

directors of the Company on 29 August 2019.

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements is determined

on the basis of control. Please refer to Note VI for changes this period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

II. Preparation basis of the financial statements

These interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32 Interim Financial

Reporting issued by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF").

These interim financial statements include selected explanatory notes,
which are provided for easy understanding of the Group’s important
events and transactions leading to its financial position and change of
results of operations since the financial statements for the year 2018.
These selected notes do not include all information and disclosures
required under the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises for a
full set of financial statements. As such, these statements shall be read in

conjunction with the financial statements for the year 2018.

The interim financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

Other than certain financial instruments, these financial statements
have been prepared at historical costs. Disposal group held-to-sale are
carried at the lower of carrying amount or the net value of fair value less
selling expenses. If the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions for

impairment shall be made according to relevant provisions.

Under historical cost method, the amount of assets was measured at the
fair value of cash or cash equivalents or consideration paid at the time
of purchase. Liabilities were measured at the amount of money or assets
and liabilities due to the current obligations actually received, or a present
obligation of the contract amount, or the measurement of cash or cash
equivalents in accordance with daily activities to repay the debts of the

amount expected to be paid.
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BUBELKABFTERE - HEFENRE
B RREOEEEAAEERELE
BERROFEANEIR BENRELR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

II.

Preparation basis of the financial statements
(Continued)

The fair value refers to the amount, at which both willing parties engaged
to a fair transaction who are familiar with the condition exchange their
assets or clear off their debts under fair conditions. Whether fair value is
observable or measured by valuation techniques, the measurement and

disclosure in these financial statements were all based on it.

For financial instruments which are transferred at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair
value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that

the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

Fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs of the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date.
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly.

3 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Interim Report 2019 A HAR&E
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates
Accounting policies and accounting estimates are formulated based on
the actual characteristics of production and operation. These are reflected
in the identification of leases, provision for credit losses in respect of
receivables, classification of fixed assets and depreciation estimation,
classification of intangible assets and long-term pre-paid expenses and

estimation of amortization.

1. Accounting period
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year. The accounting period for these interim

financial statements is from 1 January to 30 June.

2. Functional currency
The functional currency of the Company and the currency used in
preparing these interim financial statements were Renminbi. The
amounts in the financial statements were denominated in Renminbi,

unless otherwise stated.

The subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the Company
may determine their own functional currencies based on the major
economic environment in which they operate the business. In
preparation of financial statements, their functional currencies shall

be translated into Renminbi.

3. Business cycle
Business cycle refers to the period from the purchase of assets used
for processing to the realization of cash and cash equivalents. The

business cycle of the Company is twelve months.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4,

The accounting treatment of business
combinations involving enterprises under
common control and business combinations
not involving enterprises under common
control

Business combination includes business combinations involving
enterprises under common control and business combinations not

involving enterprises under common control.

Business combinations involving enterprises under
common control

A business combination involving enterprises under common control
is a business combination in which all of the combining enterprises
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before

and after the combination, and that control is not transitory.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained in a business combination
shall be measured at the carrying amounts on the financial
statements of the acquiree as at the combination date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained
by the acquirer and the carrying amount of the consideration
paid for the combination (or the aggregate face value of shares
issued as consideration) shall be adjusted to share premium under
capital reserve. If the capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb the

difference, any excess shall be adjusted against retained earnings.

Costs that are directly attributable to the combination are charged

to profit or loss when incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4.,

The accounting treatment of business
combinations involving enterprises under
common control and business combinations
not involving enterprises under common
control (Continued)

Business combinations not involving enterprises under
common control

A business combination involving enterprises not under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
enterprises are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties

before and after the combination.

Combination cost refers to the fair value of assets paid, liabilities
incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the acquirer
for acquiring control of the acquiree. For business combinations
of entities not under common control achieved in stages through
multiple transactions, the combination cost shall be the sum of the
consideration paid on the date of acquisition and the fair value, as
at the date of acquisition, of the equity interests in the acquiree

held prior to the date of acquisition.

The fees paid to intermediaries including audit, legal services,
appraisal and so forth and other related administrative expenses
incurred by the acquirer for the business combination are taken to

profit or loss for the current period when incurred.

The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
acquiree qualifying for the conditions of recognition acquired by the
acquirer in the business combination are measured at fair value on

the acquisition date.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B SR & & 51 i 5

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

4. The accounting treatment of business 4, EA—EHTHMER—ZH
combinations involving enterprises under Th¥EHNEHEER
common control and business combinations E(E)

not involving enterprises under common
control (Continued)

Business combinations not involving enterprises under
common control (Continued)

Where the combination cost is larger than the portion of fair value
of net identifiable assets of acquiree acquired in combination,
the difference is recognized as goodwill as an asset, and initially
measured at cost. For those with combination cost lower than
the portion of fair value of net identifiable assets of acquiree
acquired in combination, re-verification is first carried out on the
measurement of the fair value of all identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities as well as the combination cost. For those
with combination cost lower than the portion of fair value of net
identifiable assets of acquiree acquired in combination after re-

verification, they are taken to profit or loss for the current period.

Goodwill arising from the business combination shall be recognized
separately in the consolidated financial statements and measured at

cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Basis for preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The scope of consolidated financial statements is determined on the
basis of control. Control is achieved when the investor has power
over the investee, has rights to achieve returns from its involvement
with the investee, and has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns. Once the relevant facts and situation which alters the

elements that define control changes, the Group shall re-evaluate

control.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

5.

Basis for preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control

of the subsidiary.

For a subsidiary disposed of by the Group, the operating results and
cash flows before the date of disposal (the date when control is
lost) are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash

flows, as appropriate.

For a subsidiary acquired through a business combination not
involving enterprises under common control, the operating results
and cash flows from the acquisition date (the date when control is
obtained) are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement

of cash flows, as appropriate.

No matter when the business combination occurs in the reporting
period, subsidiaries acquired through a business combination
involving enterprises under common control or the party being
absorbed under merger by absorption are included in the Group’s
scope of consolidation as if they had been included in the scope
of consolidation from the date when they first came under the
common control of the ultimate controlling party. Their operating
results and cash flows from the beginning of the earliest reporting
period or from the date when they first came under the common
control of the ultimate controlling party are included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of cash

flows, as appropriate.

The significant accounting policies and accounting periods adopted
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

5.

Basis for preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The effect of all intra-group transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries and among subsidiaries on the consolidated financial

statements is eliminated on consolidation.

The portion of subsidiaries’ equity that is not attributable to the
Company is treated as minority interests and presented as “minority
interests” in the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders’
equity. The portion of net profits or losses of subsidiaries for the
period attributable to minority interests is presented as “minority
interests” in the consolidated income statement below the “net

profit” line item.

When the amount of loss for the period attributable to the minority
shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds the minority shareholders’
portion of the opening balance of shareholders’ equity of the
subsidiary, the excess amount is still allocated against minority

interests.

Acquisition of minority interests or disposal of interest in a subsidiary
that does not result in the loss of control over the subsidiary is
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Company’s interests and minority interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. The
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is adjusted to capital reserve under shareholders’ equity.

If the capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, the

excess are adjusted against retained earnings.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

6. Classification of joint arrangements and 6. SERHESERHABDRKE

accounting treatments for joint operations

Joint arrangements include joint operations and joint ventures. The
classification is determined by considering the structure, legal form
and contract terms of the arrangement according to the rights
and obligations of the joint parties in the joint arrangements. A
joint operation refers to the arrangement whereby the parties have
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the

parties only have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.

The Group adopts equity method for computing the investments in

joint ventures. For details, see Note Ill. 12.

The following items should be recognized by the Group in relation
to its sole and shared ownerships in the joint operation: solely held
assets, as well as jointly held assets according to its share; solely
assumed liabilities, as well as jointly assumed liabilities according to
its share; income derived from its entitled share of production of
the joint operation; income derived from the sales of production of
the joint operation according to its share; solely incurred expenses,
as well as expenses incurred by the joint operation according to its
share. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses related to the joint
operation are computed according to requirements applicable to

specific assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = H % & 5} Bt 5% X & 5145 5
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

6. Classification of joint arrangements and 6. SERHESERHADRKE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

accounting treatments for joint operations
(Continued)

If the Company invests or sells assets, etc. to the joint operation
(except when the assets constitute business), the part pertaining to
other participants in the joint operation among the profit or loss
due to the transaction will be recognized only before the assets are
sold to a third party by the joint operation. Where asset impairment
losses are incurred in respect of assets invested or sold, the Group

recognizes the losses in full amount.

If the Group purchases assets, etc. from the joint operation (except
when the assets constitute business), the part pertaining to other
participants in the joint operation among the profit or loss due to
the transaction will be recognized only before the assets are sold to
a third party. Where asset impairment losses are incurred in respect
of assets purchased, the Group recognizes the losses to the extent

of its share.

Recognition criteria for cash and cash
equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-term
(usually mature within 3 months from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation

Foreign currency operations

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition, in
the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the spot exchange rate prevailing on the transaction dates. On the
balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are translated
into Renminbi using the spot exchange rate prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from the difference
between the spot exchange rate on that day and on the date of
initial recognition or the previous balance sheet date are taken to
profit or loss in the current period except for the following: (1) The
exchange difference in respect of special borrowings denominated
in foreign currencies that meet the criteria for capitalization are
capitalized during the capitalization period as a cost under the
relevant assets; (2) The exchange difference in respect of hedging
instruments used for hedging for avoiding foreign exchange rate
risks is accounted for using hedge accounting; (3) For monetary
items classified as at fair value through other comprehensive
income, exchange difference arising from the change in other gross
carrying amounts other than amortized costs is taken to other

comprehensive income.

Non-monetary foreign currency items measured at historical cost
shall still be measured at the amount in the functional currency
translated at the spot exchange rate prevailing on the transaction
date. Non-monetary foreign currency items measured at fair value
are translated at the spot exchange rate prevailing at the date on
which the fair values are determined. The difference between the
amount in the functional currency after translation and the amount
in the original functional currency is accounted for as fair value
change (inclusive of exchange rate change) and is taken to profit
or loss for the current period or recognized as other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation (Continued)

Translation of foreign currency financial statements

To prepare the consolidated financial statement, the financial
statements denominated in foreign currency of a foreign
operation are translated to RMB in compliance with the following
requirements: all assets and liabilities on the balance sheet are
translated at the spot exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet
date; all equity items are translated at the spot exchange rates at
the dates on which such items arose; income and expenses and
profit appropriation items in the income statement are translated
at the spot exchange rate at the date of transaction; all exchange
differences of assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity resulting
from the translation are recognized as other comprehensive income

and taken to shareholders’ equity.

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the spot exchange rate as of the
date on which the cash flows occur. The effect of exchange rate
changes on cash and cash equivalents is presented separately as an
adjustment item under “effect of changes in exchange rate on cash

and cash equivalents” in the cash flow statement.

The opening balances of the year/period and prior year/period’s

figures are presented according to the translated amounts of the

financial statements of the prior year/period.

Interim Report 2019 EiR4E 55

PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201918 1HZ6H30H 1F 7

=R HEBUOR o' u A

(
8

)
IERBMIIERRITE
(&)

SNEER SRR ITE
ARBAHIBRE - FIMELHI)
MBI RRIRA T A T B AARK
WK AEABRENAEAE A
ERERRAERERANNPES
P ¢ RS TE B R R B
ERTH  MBREHHAEERRE
BABS R EENE R RRSBE
AMEERERH : FHREERE
B8 & A A MR EEE &
B R A RS WL A
MNBR RS -

SNEREREBNRBINFRARNEAE
WE - RARSREFEBAMANHIE
M ER - FRAHER - ERE
MERPUIEXEHHRAS KRS
EEVMNTE |EBIIR -

/BB LF PERBIRR
/B BBRRTEROBREIT -




56  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

MBI RHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation (Continued)

Translation of foreign currency financial statements
(Continued)

When control over the Group's foreign operation is lost due to
the disposal of ownership interests of foreign operation or partial
disposal of equity investment or other reasons, exchange differences
of foreign currency statements attributable to the shareholders
of the parent company related to such foreign operation and
presented under shareholder’s equity item in the balance sheet are

all transferred to profit or loss for the current period.

In partial disposal of the equity investment or other reasons that
lead to the reduction of the proportion of interests in foreign
operation but there is no loss of control over such foreign
operations, the difference of foreign currency translation related to
the part of foreign operation disposal will be attributed to minority
interests and will not be taken to profit or loss for the current
period. In partial disposal of equity interest in an overseas associate
or joint venture, the foreign currency translation difference related
to the foreign operation shall be taken to profit or loss for the
current period according to the proportion of the disposal of the

foreign operation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial

instrument.

Where financial assets are purchased or sold in a regular way, assets
to be received and liabilities to be borne for it are recognized on the
date of transaction, or sold assets are derecognized on the date of

transaction.

The financial assets and financial liabilities were initially recognized
at fair value. For the financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) for the current
period, related transaction expenses are directly taken to the profit
or loss for the current period; for other types of financial assets
and financial liabilities, related transaction expenses are included
in the initial recognized amount. For accounts receivable excluding
significant financing components or regardless of financing
components of contracts less than one year initially recognised
based on Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.14-
Revenue (“Standard on Revenue”), they are initially measured at

transaction price defined based on the Standard on Revenue.

Effective interest method is the method that is used in the
calculation of the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial

liability and in the allocation and recognition of the interest income

or interest expense over the accounting periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash flows through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group shall estimate the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
assets or liabilities (for example, early repayment, extension, call and

similar options) but shall not consider the expected credit losses.

Amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount
at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount

and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.1

Classification and measurement of financial assets

After initial recognition, the Group shall measure different
types of financial assets at amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or

loss.

If the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
and the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows, the
Group shall classify the financial asset into a financial asset
measured at amortized cost. Such financial assets mainly
include: cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts

receivable, other receivables and long-term receivables, etc.

If the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
and the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows and sell such
financial assets, the Group shall classify the financial asset into
a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive

income. Such financial assets primarily include receivable

financing.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €RTITH(E)
9.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets 01 e MEEMYEHEGG=

(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets classified
as at FVTPL and those designated as at FVTPL which are
presented in held-for-trading financial assets. Those due over
one year and expected to be held for over one year since
the balance sheet date are presented in other non-current

financial assets.

o A financial asset which does not satisfy the criteria
for a financial asset classified as being measured at
amortized cost or a financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income shall be classified as a

financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

o At initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset as measured at fair value
through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces accounting mismatch.

On initial recognition, the Group may, based on a individual
financial asset, irrevocably designate a non-trading equity
instrument investment which is non-contingent consideration

and recognized in business combination not involving

enterprises under common control as financial asset

measured at FVTOCI. Such financial assets are preser

investment in other equity instruments
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)
The Group’s purpose of holding the financial assets is for

trading if one of the following conditions is satisfied:

o The Group's purpose of holding the relevant financial

assets is primarily for recent sale.

° The relevant financial assets are, on initial recognition,
a part of the centrally-managed identifiable financial
instrument portfolio, and objective evidence indicates

that short-term profit model exists in the near future.

3 The relevant financial assets are derivative instruments.
However, derivatives that meet the definition of
financial guarantee contracts and those designated as

effective hedging instruments are excluded.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. #WMIA(HE)
9.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets 9.1 TREEMNHDEHGE
(Continued) (&)
9.1.1 Financial assets at amortised cost 9.1.1 UK KT Em 2 B
BE
The financial asset at amortized cost is subsequently NEBRK AT ENSHE

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gain or loss arising from derecognition,
impairment or amortization is recognized in profit or

loss.

The Group recognizes interest income on financial
assets measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. The Group calculates interest income
based on the gross carrying amount of financial
assets multiplied by the actual interest rate, unless the
financial assets become credit-impaired financial assets
in subsequent reporting period. For those financial
assets, the Group shall apply the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financial asset in subsequent reporting period. If the
financial assets no longer has credit impairment during
the follow-up period as a result of an improvement
in its credit risk, and this improvement may be linked
to an event that occurred after the application of the
above regulations, the Group calculates interest income
based on the gross carrying amount of financial assets

multiplied by the actual interest rate.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

9.1.2 Financial assets classified as at FVTOC!

Impairment gains or losses on a financial asset classified
as at FVTOCI and the interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and exchange gains and
losses shall be recognized in profit or loss. Except for
them, changes in fair value of such financial assets shall
be recognized in other comprehensive income. The
amount of such financial asset recognized in profit or
loss of each period is equal to the amount deemed as
measured at amortized cost all the time and recognized
in profit or loss of each period. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
transferred from other comprehensive income to profit

or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. #WMIA(HE)
9.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets 9.1 TREEMNHDEHGE
(Continued) (&)

9.1.2 Financial assets classified as at FVTOCI (Continued) 912 U BEFEHAE

After designating a non-trading equity instrument
investment as a financial asset at FVTOCI, the changes
in fair value of such financial assets are recognized
in other comprehensive income. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are transferred from other comprehensive income to
retained earnings. During the period that the Group
holds these non-trading equity instrument investments,
the Group has established the right of collecting
dividends, whose economic benefit will probably flow
into the Group, and the amount of the dividends can
be reliably measured, then the Group will recognize

dividend income in profit or loss.
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9.1.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss KAanEBE;EARE
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BE
Financial assets at FVTPL shall be subsequently AAREEERHEEE
measured at fair value. Gains or losses from change in FFAEHESRNEREE

fair value and dividends and interest income related

to such financial assets shall be recognized in profit or

loss.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~& % & 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €I A(HE)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items 9.2 @M T ANKHMIARRIE
The Group shall recognise a loss allowance for expected AEEHUEBRKAAENS
credit losses on financial assets at amortized cost, financial BMEE - »BANUAREBE
assets classified as FVTOCI, a lease receivable, contract assets SR EEHTAEMESRE
and financial guarantee contracts that are not designated as MemEE - HERKK &
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. BEENRNLNAABENEA
HEHHAZHEZNERE
BN B B HER & A LATE BR S
REAREMETRESHE
B FERIB KA o
The Group makes a loss allowance against amount of HRBWAERBRHEHR S
expected credit losses during the whole life of the receivables e ERIE - AREERKHA
and contract assets arising from transactions adopting (hEeERNFE21HF-HE)
Standard on Revenue and the lease receivables arising from HENTFHEROEEEK
transactions adopting Accounting Standards for Business R AEEERBHEENEEF
Enterprises No. 21 — Leases. BEHANEBERIBERSER

BIEKER -
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1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = % % & 5 BUR & & 51 A6 5
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. LRI A(HE)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items 92 BT AKHMIER BE

(Continued)

For other financial instruments, at the balance sheet date,
the Group assesses changes in credit risk of relevant financial
instruments since initial recognition. If the credit risk of
the above financial instruments has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures loss allowance
based on the amount of expected credit losses during the
whole lifetime; if credit risk of the financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group recognises loss allowance based on 12-month ECL
of the financial instrument. Increase in or reversal of credit
loss allowance is included in profit or loss as loss/gain on
impairment. Except financial assets classified as at fair value
through other comprehensive income, allowance for credit
losses decreases the carrying amount of the financial assets.
For financial assets at FVTOCI, the Group recognises credit
loss allowance in other comprehensive income and does not
decrease the carrying amount of such financial assets in the

balance sheet.

The Group measures loss allowance at the full lifetime ECL of
the financial instruments in the previous accounting period.
However, at the balance sheet date, for the above financial
instruments, if significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition no longer applies, the Group measures loss

allowance for the financial instrument at 12-month ECL

at the balance sheet date for the current period. Relevant g

reversal of loss allowance is included in

current period as gain on impairme
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial instruments and other items

(Continued)

9.2.1 Significant increases in credit risk

The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk
of the relevant financial instruments has increased
significantly since the initial recognition at each balance
sheet date. While determining whether the credit risk
has significantly increased since initial recognition,
the Group takes into account the reasonable and
substantiated information that is accessible without
exerting unnecessary cost or effort, including qualitative
and quantitative analysis based on the historical data
of the Group, external credit risk rating, and forward-
looking information. Based on the single financial
instrument or the combination of financial instruments
with similar characteristics of credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of default of financial instruments
on the balance sheet date with that on the initial
recognition date in order to figure out the changes
of default risk in the expected lifetime of financial
instruments. For financial guarantee contracts, the
date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition in the application of criteria related to the

financial instrument for impairment.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €WMIA(E)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items 92 R T ARHAEMIARRE
(Continued) (#8)
9.2.1 Significant increases in credit risk (Continued) 9.2.1 R AEZEEM(E)

Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk

When triggering one or more of the following
quantitative and qualitative criteria, the Group believes
that the credit risk of financial instruments has

increased significantly:

o Quantitative criteria are primarily that the
probability of default of the remaining duration
of the reporting date rises by more than a certain

proportion compared with the initial recognition

o Qualitative criteria primarily include major
adverse changes in the debtor’s business or
financial position, the debtor’s internal credit
rating is actually lowered or is expected to be

lowered, etc.

At the balance date, the Group assumes that credit
risk of the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the Group
determines that the financial instrument is only exposed
to lower credit risk. If the risk of default of a financial
instrument is low, the borrower is highly capable of
meeting its contract cash flow obligations in the short
term, and the financial instrument is considered to have

a lower credit risk even if there is an adverse change

in the economic situation and operating environme

over a longer period of time, but it may not ne
reduce the borrower’s perfor :

obligations.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items
(Continued)
9.2.2 Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired include

observable data about the following events:

(1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(2) A breach of contract by the debtor, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

(3)  The creditor, for economic or contracted reasons
relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty,
granting to the debtor a concession which
will not otherwise be granted in any other

circumstances;

(4) It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganizations;

(5)  The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties of

the issuer or the debtor.

Interim Report 2019 A HAR&E

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201918 1HZ6H30H 1F 7

= E B AR Ko Ek Al
(%)
9. ZWIA(HE)
9.2 T AKHEMIER RE
(&)
922 BE#EEHBERZ G
BE
EASBEIERHE CmEE
RAEBEREELB T
BB HESHEE
B ZemEERADE
EERRENSREE -
CREECEEEARE
MEEeE T EEE
=

TN

(1) BEAITHEBAH
EERUBREE

2) BEBAERAGR -
MEMNERAE

(3) BERAHNEEDR
A BT R 2 A B R
REXARZE
BTEBAEER
HEMERTHTIE
M ERES

(4) EBARATEHRE
KRETHMHBFE
4

(5) BEIHLEBH AR
BRBEERZE R
BEEWGEB™MSH

69



70  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #SeE HIRBDAR AT

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. EWMIA(E)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items 92 R T ARHAEMIARRE

(Continued) (&)
9.2.3 TR HIEKmETE

9.2.3 Recognition of expected credit losses

The Group assesses the expected credit losses of
financial instruments based on individual and group
basis. The Group recognises the credit loss on
receivables, lease receivables, contract assets, etc., of
significant amount and insignificant amount but with
special credit risk on an individual asset basis, and
otherwise recognises credit loss of relevant financial
instruments on a group basis. The Group considers
the credit risk characteristics of different customers
and evaluates the expected credit losses of accounts
receivable on the basis of groupings by age, by quality
of credit history and by overdue age. The Group
considers various credit risk characteristics including
instrument type, credit risk ratings, collateral type,
date of initial recognition, remaining term to maturity,
industry, geographical location of the debtor and the

value of collateral relative to the financial asset, etc.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items
(Continued)
9.2.3 Recognition of expected credit losses (Continued)

The Group determines expected credit losses of
relevant financial instruments using the following

methods:

o For financial assets, a credit loss is the present
value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group under
the contract and the cash flows that the Group

expects to receive.

. For lease receivables, a credit loss is the present
value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group under
the contract and the cash flows that the Group

expects to receive.

3 For a financial guarantee contract, credit loss
is the present value of difference between the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the

Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €@MTIA(HE)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items 92 R T ARHAEMIARRE
(Continued) (&)
9.2.3 Recognition of expected credit losses (Continued) 923 FEHIERHELWEE
(4&)

e For credit-impaired financial assets at the balance s HREBEEBERXRHA
sheet date, credit loss is the difference between BEBELEEAREDN
the gross carrying amount of financial assets and THMEE  FHAAE
the present value of expected future cash flows KEZEHEER
discounted at original effective interest rate. HAFEEIZRER

F =738 89 1 5 R
KB RENRE
ZEMER -

The Group's measurement of ECL of financial AEBEFESMITAELS

instruments reflects factors including unbiased E BN A ERBRAE

probability weighted average amount recognised by =BE BBAFE— R

assessing a series of possible results, time value of Al B8 B 45 SR T e E YRR

money, reasonable and supportable information related BERMEFH SR B

to historical events, current condition and forecast KHER: TEEARBX

of future economic position that is available without AEANETVENEIN
undue cost or effort at the balance sheet date. MAKE AR EBNE
B AEIE - BRI A
Ko R R A AR R TR Y &
BHAEKEBENER °
9.2.4 Write-off of financial assets 9.2.4 HEE & E

The Group shall directly reduce the gross carrying EAEETHAEESRS

amount of a financial asset when the Group has no MEEARIIRERELN

reasonable expectations of recovering a financial 2EKF A WER - HE

asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off RS % < Al A E ) AR T R

constitutes a derecognition of the relevant financial - B ERRRBAERES
asset. BEERK LR
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €WMIA(E)
9.3 Transfer of financial assets 93 SREEMNER

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

The Group shall derecognise a financial asset when one of
the following conditions are satisfied: (1) the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, (2)
the financial asset has been transferred and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is
transferred to the transferee; or (3) although the financial asset
has been transferred, the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset but has not retained control of the financial

asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, and it
retains control of the financial asset, the Group will recognize
the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
in the transferred financial asset and recognize an associated
liability. Relevant liabilities are measured using the following

methods:

o If the transferred financial asset is measured at
amortized cost, the carrying amount of relevant
liabilities is the carrying amount of continuing
involvement in the transferred financial asset less the
amortized cost of the rights retained by the Group (if
the Group retains rights for the transfer of the financial
asset) plus the amortized cost of the obligations
undertaken by the Group (if the Group undertakes
relevant obligations for the transfer of the financial

asset), and the relevant liabilities are not designated as

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. #WMIA(HE)
9.3 Transfer of financial assets (Continued) 9.3 SRMEEMNEYL (&)
. If the transferred financial asset is measured at fair ° WHESHEENLNALE

value, the carrying amount of relevant liabilities is the
carrying amount of continuing involvement in the
transferred financial asset less the fair value of the
rights retained by the Group (if the Group retains rights
for the transfer of the financial asset) plus the fair value
of the obligations undertaken by the Group (if the
Group undertakes relevant obligations for the transfer
of the financial asset), and the fair value of the rights

and liabilities is measured on a stand-alone basis.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that satisfies
the derecognition criteria, for financial assets classified
as at amortized cost and financial assets at FVTOCI, the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset transferred and the sum of the consideration received
from the transfer and accumulated amount of the fair value
changes originally taken to other comprehensive income
corresponding to the derecognized part shall be taken to
profit or loss for the current period. Where the financial
asset to be transferred by the Group is a non-trading equity
instrument investment designated as at FVTOCI, accumulated
gains or losses previously taken to other comprehensive

income are transferred out from other comprehensive income

and taken to retained earnings.

B8R HREENE
EEESREE S ARE
BEemEENKREEER
EXRKERBOERN (20
RAGEREMEEEY
RETHEBEEN)WAAR
BEWNEAEEAED
EB(MRAKERES R
EEBBRETHER
BINRAEE  ZEF
MEBHNRIABERR
BUERFEFNRIAE
e

TREERREBEMERILE
R BRAEBEREE
ERIEER A EREEERE
BEERMEEMBEINEER
REAEMBEERENORAE
EEERETHET HER LHER
BOMESB LM ERFAE
HiES - EAKEEBNER
BEREERNAABEE
BEESHAAHE MR RED
FERGURRZTERE - 28l
FHAEMb A W REHFE
HBRUEEMERREPE
o AR TR -




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

9.3 Transfer of financial assets (Continued)

For a part of transfer of a financial asset that satisfies
the derecognition criteria, the carrying amount of the
transferred financial asset is allocated between the part
that is derecognized and the part that is continuously
involved, based on the respective fair values of those parts
on transfer date. The difference between the sum of the
consideration received for the part of the derecognition and
the accumulated amount of the fair value changes originally
taken to other comprehensive income corresponding to the
derecognized part and the carrying amount on the date of
derecognition for the derecognized part shall be taken to
profit and loss for the current period. Where the financial
asset to be transferred by the Group is a non-trading equity
instrument investment designated as at FVTOCI, accumulated
gains or losses previously taken to other comprehensive
income are transferred out from other comprehensive income

and taken to retained earnings.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that does not
satisfy the derecognition criteria, the Group will continuously
recognize the transferred financial asset in its entirety.
Considerations received should be recognized as a financial
liability.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity

instruments

Financial instruments or their constituent parts issued by

the Group are classified into financial liabilities or equity

instruments on initial recognition on the basis of the

substance of the contractual arrangements and the economic

nature but not only its legal form, together with the definition

of financial liability and equity instruments.

9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss and other financial liabilities.

94.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL consist of financial
liabilities held for trading (including derivative
instruments of financial liabilities) and those
designated as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are presented as held-for-trading financial
liabilities or other non-current liabilities according

to their liquidity.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)
94.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

If one of the following conditions is met for
a financial liability, it suggests that the Group

recognises financial liability held-for-trading:

o The purpose of undertaking the relevant
financial liability is mainly for the purpose

of repurchasing in the near future.

° The relevant financial liability is, upon initial
recognition, a combination of identifiable
financial instruments that are centrally
managed and there is objective evidence
that the Company has recently adopted

short-term profit-making methods.

o The relevant financial liability is a derivative
instrument, except for derivatives that
qualify for financial guarantee contracts
and derivatives that are designated as

effective hedging instruments.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €W TA(E)

9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity

9.4 EMEBEMEEZTEND

instruments (Continued) |(E)

9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)
94.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

9.4.1 2B ER B K E

The Group designates a financial liability as FVTPL
on initial recognition when the financial liability
satisfies one of the following criteria: (1) such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces
accounting mismatch; (2) The financial liability
forms part of a group of financial liabilities or a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the documented risk management
or investment strategy of the Group, and
information about the grouping is reported to
key management personnel on that basis; (3) The
qualified hybrid financial instrument combines

financial liability with embedded derivatives.

Held-for-trading financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value, and any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value

and any dividend or interest income e

the financial liabilities are

|oss.

9411 M AR EBEZE

HEHT AEHE
ZNeRAaE(E)
REBHEKFE TS
Bz —E/E
& EVHRERE
AAEE BIAAR
EBEFEEHLE
SFAEMBEENS
MEE  (WZIEE
BESE R S B E R
LEFER ()R
BAEEEXER
XHEH AN ERE
BRERRK - B
ARBEEAEMRY
cHABEEEHE
MEEMESRAE
BEETEBME
BEE WEAS
EAE N =
MREARERE A B R
& Q) E IR
BEBRAMMETLIA

MEARBR -

o RBMSBARR
FRRBERTE

=] =

(&



Interim Report 2019 FH#AsksE 79

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201918 1HZ6H30H 1F 7

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 5} B 5K & & 51 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. SR TA(E)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity 9.4 2RIEBEMESZTAEMND

instruments (Continued) HE)

9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities 94.1 BB ENSERIE
(Continued) (#)
94.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

HE8 A8 8E

ZeRAaE(E)
For the financial liabilities designated as FVTPL, HRIEETEAUR
changes in fair value arising from changes in the AREBEFEEHE
Group’s own credit risk are included in other B AZHEZN
comprehensive incomes and other changes in TREE Zem
fair value recognised in profit and loss. Upon BEREAEERBR S
derecognition of the financial asset, cumulative EAREREE S|
changes in fair value arising from changes in HRAREBEEZE
the own credit risk previously recognised in AEMERE W
other comprehensive income are transferred EMARBEEEZS
and included in retained earnings. Dividends or FTAEHIBE - %
interest incomes earned on the financial liabilities cRBEKRILER
are recognised in profit or loss. If the impact of B - 2 RIEH AE A
the change in credit risk of such financial liability mealmmnE FE
dealt with in the above way would create or MRk 285 e
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, HARBERF#
the Group shall present all gains or losses on that BEE AL Tk

liability (including the effects of changes in the

credit risk of that liability) in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ¥ % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) )
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. £WMIEA(E)

9.4 2RIEEMESZTAEND
H(E)
941 THEBEMN BRI E

9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Continued)
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

amortisation are recognised in profit or loss for
the period.

(Continued) (%)
9412 Other financial liabilities 9412 AR RA M
The Group shall classify all financial liabilities BEMAEBB T
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, 6 AL IR
except for financial liabilities, financial guarantee L2 VUN Tt
contracts that arise when a transfer of a financial SRAEMT KA
asset does not qualify for derecognition or when SRAE  MHE
the continuing involvement approach applies, REFIOEME
and gains or losses arising from derecognition or MEEDRBUAR
BRAGEN SR

BE - WEHRAR
EITREIE K
RSB EES
WS LB KREFTA

EHEE -

When the contractual cash flows are changed AEBRZHHTF
due to the renegotiation or modification of e MR B HE
the contract made between the Group and &R - REZRE
the counterparty and the renegotiation or B AR AT 1R AT
modification does not result in the derecognition EMemMBERL
of the financial liability that is subsequently B BEBHAR
measured at amortised cost, the Group shall ReRBRER{L
recalculate the carrying amount of the financial ) REBENE
liability and shall recognised related gains or EZemARNKR
losses in profit or loss. The carrying amount of EEE - A5 HE
the financial liability shall be recalculated as the MBRBRETAE
present value of the renegotiated or modified MBm - EREE
contractual cash flows that are discounted at the S N
financial liability’s original effective interest rate. EEE - ARER
Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying BB HE R
amount of the modified financial liability and HHERADRE

RemMBENRE

are amortised over the remaining term of the
modified financial liability.

BRAMEFRMBRE



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

9412 Other financial liabilities (Continued)

94121 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder of the
contract for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
financial guarantee contracts that are
not designated as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, or arise
when a transfer of a financial asset does
not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach,
are measured at the higher of amount
of loss provision and the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation
amount determined based on the relevant
requirements under the Standard on

Revenue upon initial recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2019

II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €WMIA(E)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity 9.4 2RIEEMESZTAEND
instruments (Continued) (&)
9.4.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities 9.4.2 LF B EHAR IR
The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of SREBENHREEELE

it) when the underlying present obligation (or part of it)
is discharged. An agreement between the Group (the
debtor) and the creditor to replace the original financial
liability with a new financial liability with substantially
different terms is accounted for as a derecognition of
the original financial liability and the recognition of a

new financial liability.

When the Group derecognises a financial liability or
a part of it, it recognises the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of the
financial liability) derecognised and the consideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or new

financial liabilities assumed) in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 5} B 5K & & 51 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. SR TA(E)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity 9.4 2RIEBEMESZTAEMND

instruments (Continued) B(E)

9.4.3 Equity instruments 943 #m T A

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
(including refinanced), repurchased, sold or cancelled
by the Group are recognised as changes of equity.
Changes of fair value of equity instruments is not
recognised by the Group. Transaction costs related to

equity transactions are deducted from equity.

The Group recognises the distribution to holders of the
equity instruments as distribution of profits. Dividends

paid do not affect total amount of shareholders’ equity.

The Group is entitled to extend the term of the
perpetual bonds issued by the subsidiaries of the
Company for an indefinite number of times. The Group
is also entitled to defer payment of coupon interest
on its perpetual bonds. The Group is not contractually
obliged to pay cash or other financial assets. The
perpetual bonds are classified as equity instruments

and presented as minority interests in the consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.5

9.6

Derivatives and embedded derivatives

Derivatives include forward foreign exchange contracts,
cross currency swap and interest rate swap instruments,
etc. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value at the
date when the derivative contracts are entered into and are

subsequently re-measured at fair value.

For hybrid contract constituted by embedded derivatives
and host contract, if the host contract is a financial asset,
the embedded derivative is not separated from the hybrid
contract, and the hybrid contract shall be taken as a whole
to which the accounting standards on the classification of

financial assets apply.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Where the Group has a legal right that is currently
enforceable to set off the recognised financial assets and
financial liabilities, and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the financial asset and settle the financial liability
simultaneously, a financial asset and a financial liability shall
be offset and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet. Except for the above circumstances, financial assets
and financial liabilities shall be presented separately in the

balance sheet and shall not be offset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B SR & & 51 i 5
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)
10. Inventories 10. &

Inventories include raw materials, finished goods, materials under
entrusted processing, self-made semi-finished goods and work-in-

progress and second-hand forklift trucks etc.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of inventories comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs. The actual
cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by using weighted
average method, first-in-first-out method or specific identification
method. Low value consumables are amortized by using immediate

write-off method.

The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower of
cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher than
the net realizable value, a provision for impairment of inventories
is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If factors that
previously resulted in the provision for decline in value of inventories
no longer exist, so that the net realizable value is higher than the
carrying amount, the amount of the write-down is reversed. The
reversal is limited to the amount originally provided for the decline
in value of inventories. The amount of the reversal is recognized in

profit or loss for the current period.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The

provision for decline in value of inventories is made on an individual

basis or a category basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

11.

Assets held-for-sale

A non-current asset or disposal group shall be classified as held
for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction (inclusive of non-monetary asset swap with

commercial substance) rather than continuous use.

A non-current asset or disposal group classified as held for sale
must also satisfy the following conditions: (1) according to the
practice of disposing of this type of assets or disposal groups in a
similar transaction, a non-current asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition; (2) the sale will likely
occur as the Group has made a resolution in respect of a disposal
plan and obtained a firm purchase commitment from a buyer, and
the sale is expected to be completed within one year.

The Group measures the no-current assets or disposal groups
classified as held for sale at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Where the carrying amount is higher
than the net amount of fair value less costs to sell, carrying amount
should be reduced to the net amount of fair value less costs to sell,
and such reduction is recognised in impairment loss of assets and
included in profit or loss for the period. Meanwhile, provision for
impairment of held-for-sale assets are made. When there is increase
in the net amount of fair value of non-current assets held for sale
less costs to sell at the balance sheet date, the original deduction
should be reversed in impairment loss of assets recognised after the
classification of held-for-sale category, and the reverse amount is
include in profit or loss for the period, except for the impairment
loss of assets recognised before classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held-for-sale are
not depreciated or amortized. Interest and other costs of liabilities in
disposal groups classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments

Basis for determining joint control and significant
influence

Control exists when the investor has power over the investee; is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and has the ability to use its power over the investee
to affect its returns. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control over an economic activity, and exists only when decisions
relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies. When determining
whether an investor is able to exercise control or significant
influence over an investee, the effect of potential voting rights of
the investee (for example, warrants and convertible debts) held
by the investors or other parties that are currently exercisable or

convertible shall be considered.

Determination of initial investment cost

For a long-term equity investment acquired through a business
combination involving enterprises under common control, the
initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment is the
attributable share of the carrying amount of the shareholders’ equity
of the acquiree on the date of combination in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party. The difference
between the initial investment cost and the carrying amount of
cash paid, non-cash assets transferred and liabilities assumed
adjusted to capital reserve. If the balance of capital reserve is not
sufficient, any excess is adjusted to retained earnings. For issuing
equity securities as consideration, the initial investment cost of the
long-term equity investment is the attributable share of the carrying
amount of the shareholders’ equity of the combining party on the
date of combination in the consolidated financial statements of the
ultimate controlling party. The aggregate face values of the shares
are accounted for share capital. The difference between the initial
investment cost and the aggregate face values of the shares issued is
adjusted to capital reserve. If the capital reserve is insufficient to be

written down, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 5 B R & & 51 i 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

12. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 12. RERERE(E)

Determination of initial investment cost (Continued)

As for the long-term equity investment acquired through business
combinations not involving enterprises under common control, the
initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment shall be

taken as the merger cost on the acquisition date.

The intermediary fees such as auditing, legal services, appraisal and
consultation and other related administrative expenses incurred by
the combining party or the acquirer for business combination shall

be taken to profit or loss of the current period when incurred.

The initial measurement of the long-term equity investment
obtained by means other than the long-term equity investment
formed by business combination shall be accounted for at cost.
Where additional investment results in significant influence or
joint control (but not control) over the investee, the cost of long-
term equity investment is the sum of the fair value of the original
equity investment plus the additional investment cost determined in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments.

Recognition method for subsequent measurement and
profit or loss

Long-term equity investment calculated by cost method

The Company's financial statements adopt the cost method to
calculate long-term equity investment in subsidiaries. Subsidiaries

refer to investees which can be controlled by the Group.

The long-term equity investment calculated by cost method is
measured at the initial investment cost. Adding or recovering
investment adjusts the cost of long-term equity investment. The
current investment income is recognised according to the cash

dividend or profit declared to be distributed by the investee.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 12. RERERE (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

Recognition method for subsequent measurement and
profit or loss (Continued)

Long-term equity investment calculated by equity method

The Group's investment in associates and joint ventures is calculated
by equity method. Associates refer to invested entities to which the
Group can exert a significant influence, and joint ventures are joint
arrangements in which the Group has only the right to the net assets
of the arrangements.

When equity method is adopted, if the initial investment cost of
long-term equity investment is greater than the fair value share of
identifiable net assets of the invested entity, the initial investment
cost of long-term equity investment shall not be adjusted; If
the initial investment cost is less than the fair value share of the
identifiable net assets of the invested entity, the difference shall
be recorded into the current profits and losses, and the long-term
equity investment cost shall be adjusted at the same time.

When equity method is adopted, the investment income and other
comprehensive income shall be recognised respectively according
to the share of net profit and loss and other comprehensive income
realised by the invested entity, and the carrying amount of long-
term equity investment shall be adjusted at the same time; the
carrying amount of long-term equity investment shall be reduced
accordingly by calculating the portion to be enjoyed according
to the profit or cash dividend declared by the invested entity; the
carrying amount of long-term equity investment shall be adjusted
and included in the capital reserve for other changes in the owner’s
rights and interests of the invested entity except net profit or
loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution. When
recognising the share of the net profit or loss of the invested entity,
the net profit of the invested entity shall be adjusted and recognised
on the basis of the fair value of the identifiable assets of the
invested entity at the acquisition date. If the accounting policies and
periods adopted by the invested entity are inconsistent with those
of the Group, the financial statements of the invested entity shall
be adjusted in accordance with the accounting policies and period
of the Group. The investment income and other comprehensive
income shall be recognised accordingly. For transactions between
the Group and associates or joint ventures, the assets invested
or sold do not constitute business, and the gains and losses of
internal transactions are offset by the shareholding attributable
to the Group. On this basis, the investment gains and losses are
recognised. However, the unrealised internal transaction losses
between the Group and the invested entity shall not be offset if
they belong to the impairment losses of the transferred assets.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

12. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 12. RERERE(E)

Recognition method for subsequent measurement and
profit or loss (Continued)

Long-term equity investment calculated by equity method
(Continued)

The Group discontinues recognising its share of net losses of
the investee after the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment together with any long-term interests that in substance
form part of its net investment in the invested entity is reduced to
zero. If the Group has incurred obligations to assume additional
losses of the investee, estimated liability is recognised according to
the expected obligation, and recorded as investment loss for the
period. Where net profits are subsequently made by the invested
entity, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits exceeds the share of losses previously

not recognised.

Disposal of long-term equity investment

At the time of the disposal of long-term equity investment, the
difference between its carrying amount and the actual consideration
obtained shall be taken to profit or loss for the current period. For
long-term equity investment calculated by equity method, the same
basis as that adopted in the direct disposal of assets or liabilities
by the invested entity shall be adopted and the part that would
otherwise be taken to other comprehensive income is accounted for

proportionally.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
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13. Investment property 13. REMEHE
Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital KEEEME  2ELABRNESHE
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right KIGE SAMEREMEBENEM
that is leased out and a building that is leased out. EeEedEntinERAE - 2l
HEVEREEY) -
An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the AR ELRAKANETVE
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably B HEEAMEHESBENELES
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs o INRERZEERBHKENZR
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment AR A BB ARG A S st 2
property. Otherwise, subsequent costs are recognized in profit or E'J§+7\T§§’|E)%i1ﬂﬁﬁi$ o WA R
loss for the period in which they are incurred. ARG AEHELZE -
The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its REBRARAEAGREEFE
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on HITREE  CTHEREGNERA
the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows: BERATRITES B - IR AT
Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
B EA TBEHEE
ltem 1B B s (F) EE(%) FHEER(%)
Land use rights + b A A 48.5-50 0 2.00-2.06
Houses and buildings B EZEY 14.5-30 0-5 3.17-6.90
14. Fixed assets 14. BEEE
A fixed asset is recognized only when the economic benefits ErEEEAEREFENLENRR
associated with the asset will probably flow to the Group and the ATREMAREE - B ARG 5
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure METERA TUER HETEES
incurred for a fixed asset that meet the recognition criteria shall BE B L e ZmRIEES
be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the carrying amount FFABTEEENAN - WK IEHEREE
of the component of the fixed asset that is replaced shall be BMEHHEEEE TR - REAER

derecognized. Otherwise, such expenditure shall be recognized in FFAE Bt o

profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. EEEE (&)
Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased EEEERBERAETIRE - B8
fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any BEETEENKABRIEBEEBZR A
directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working AiE UkAFRTEEZRTETE
condition for its intended use. Other than fixed assets arising AERARERIFTEAN T EERER
from the use and appropriation of safety funds, special reserve ZEEAEMEMS L - BREARRA
offset against the cost of fixed assets, and equivalent amounts of TEHEEBEANETEE BRI
accumulated depreciation recognized; the straight line method or REEEENK AR ZEREE - I
double-declining balance method is adopted for the depreciation of WRER SN EFITE 29 KE
fixed assets of the Group. EETEENMTERRAEREZNERS

BRERROART IR

The expected useful lives, net residual value rates and annual ZHETEEMRRBEN EASS
depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows: FEIREREEHERRAOT ¢
Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
Tast e A TR EE FIEE
ltem HA g (F) BE(%) (%)
Land ownership T Hb T A #E Indefinite
EHR 0 0
Houses and buildings EREEY 10-50 0-5 1.90-10.00
Machinery and equipment 2SR 3-15 0-5 6.33-33.33
Electronic equipment BFRE 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
Vehicles et 4-10 0-5 9.50-25.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AEMNERRLR
leased out (long-term) (Note) (&8 (GE) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AEANXERRLR
leased out (short-term) (Note) (528) () 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Others HAfb 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
Note: For self-owned fixed assets leased out by the Group as lessor under T AEBEEALBAKLEAINBEAERE
operating lease, those leased for a period of not more than 12 months are o g % 23 Hﬂ_ij ZRoR 7.

presented under forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term) and

those leased for a period of more than 1 year are presented unde
trucks and equipment leased out (long-term).
a ——

of a fixed asset and the depreciati_dh me

each year-end, and makes adjustfri nts if | e - _ ' 4 ¥



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

15.

16.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including all
necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction
period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the
construction gets ready for its intended use and other relevant

expenses.

A construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the asset

is ready for its intended use.

Contract asset and liability

Contracts with customers will be presented in the Group’s balance
sheet as a contract liability or a contract asset, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance and the customer’s

payment.

Contract asset

Contract assets refer to the Group's right to receive consideration
for the transfer of goods to its customers, which depends on
factors other than the passage of time. The Group’s unconditional
(i.e., depending only on the passage of time) right to collect

consideration from customers is shown separately as receivables.

The Group's method for determining and accounting for expected
credit losses which are related to contract assets are detailed in
Note III.9.

Contract liability

A contract liability is presented in the balance sheet where an
amount of consideration has been received or is receivable by the
Group prior to the Group performing by transferring the related

good or service to the customer.

The Group offsets the contract assets and contract liabilities under
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
17. Borrowing costs 17. B RER
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group BHRER REAEERERMEAE

in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or

sale.

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of

the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) expenditures for the asset are being incurred,

(2)  borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) activities relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset

for its intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its
intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are

recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
17. Borrowing costs (Continued)
During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be
capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as

follows:

EMERAEHAERELENT
of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest expense BEER REIRENTFERF
B AR E W Er &R

o

(1) where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the amount (1)

incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank

it

interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds or any
investment income on the temporary investment of those

funds.

R —REFX  RERTFE
EXHBREMEREINE

(2)  where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the amount (2)

of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is determined

by applying a weighted average interest rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of accumulated expenditure

on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose

B X A BOR AR A
—RERE TN RGFE
HEE e

borrowings.

HRENMGHMEEERELES
EBiET  BEREINBREANEAL
ERHERR L BHIEF ZIMOIEIE
Bl BhEREREERB3MEA
B EEERERNERL - P
PRBENERERERLER 7
ABHESE  BEEEENBREREL
ERBEHMS -

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption
is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs
incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the
current period until the acquisition, construction or production is

resumed.
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1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
18. Intangible assets
An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. However, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with a fair value that can
be measured reliably are recognized separately as intangible assets

and measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according to the
period over which it is expected to generate economic benefits for
the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the

Group.

The original useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5
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18. B EE
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TERASNEE - BHRA LB
T BT T ARR - HARAE
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- BB AR AELEEL
e EEHE -

BRAERREGERAEETRERE
NS HREEEASSH - BEBR
HAASEGREEFZHARNES
ERSHITHRENETVEE -

BERBEVEENRBERSHOT

[tem Useful lives (years)
H B EREm(F)
Patents = 3-20
Trademark rights PR AR 10,/ Indefinite THEE
License FFRT I 315
Land use rights -+ b {F FA 4 30-50
Orders on hand EFFTE 1-25
Customer relationship BEPBIR 2-17
Software Egts 2-10
Others Hith 3-10

Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants that
are developed and constructed by the Group, and relevant land use
rights and buildings, are accounted for as intangible assets and fixed
assets, respectively. Payments for the land and buildings acg irec
are allocated between the land use rights a

they cannot be reasonably aIIocatéd

buildings are accounted for as fixed assets.

AEBMEGOH L MERE  BEES
BYEERE - ATTHERERES
By - MR i RREREEY
DRERENAENMETEERS -

A ] el




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

18.

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using
the straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible
asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life
and amortization method at least at each year-end and makes

adjustment if necessary.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This category of
intangible assets will not be amortized and will be reviewed every
accounting period based on its useful life. If evidence indicates
that its useful life is limited, the asset will be accounted for in
accordance to the policy for intangible asset with definite useful life

stated above.

The Group classifies the expenditure on an internal research and
development project into expenditure in the research phase and
expenditure in the development phase. Expenditure on the research
phase is recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure in the development phase is capitalized when
the Group can demonstrate all of the following: (i) the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale; (i) the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (iii) how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. Among other things, the Group
can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; (iv) the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
and (v) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development. Expenditure in
the development phase that does not meet the above criteria is

recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is incurred.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (7

19. Impairment of assets 19. EERME

The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets,
contract assets and assets related to contract costs and assets
classified as held-for-sale, using the following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready for
intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow expected
to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines
the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. Identification of an asset group is based on whether major
cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. A provision for impairment of
the asset is recognized accordingly.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups,
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable
segment determined by the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

19.

20.

Impairment of assets (Continued)

In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset

groups, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss of assets is recognized, it cannot

be reversed in subsequent accounting periods.

Long-term prepaid expenses
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using straight-line

method with amortization period as follows:
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21. Payroll 21. B T &P

Accounting treatment for short-term remuneration

Short-term remuneration actually incurred during the accounting
period in which the staff members provide services are recognized
as liability and taken to the profit and loss for the current period or
the costs of the relevant asset. The Group recognises the amount of
employee benefits that actually occurred and charged to profit or
loss for the current period or cost of relevant assets. Non-monetary

benefits is measured at fair value.

During the accounting period in which employees render service,
medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and other social security contributions and housing
provident fund paid by the Group, as well as labour union funds
and employees’ education expenses extracted by requirement are
taken into account in determining the amount of staff remuneration
based on the required accrual basis and proportions and in turn the
corresponding liabilities, which are charged to profit or loss for the

current period or cost of relevant assets.

Accounting treatment for post-employment benefits
Post-employment benefits are classified into defined contribution

plans and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plan

In the accounting period in which employees render services, the
amount payable under the defined contribution plan is recognised as
liability and charged to profit or loss for the current period or cost

of relevant assets.

The employees of the Group participate in pension insurance and
unemployment insurance administered by local governments, as

well as annuity plan. The relevant expenditure is recognized, when
incurred, in the costs of relevant assets or the profit or los s for

current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

21.

Payroll (Continued)

Accounting treatment for post-employment benefits
(Continued)

Defined benefit plan

The benefit obligation under defined benefit plan based on the
formula determined by projected unit credit method would be
vested to the service period of the staff and charged to current
profit or loss or cost of relevant assets. Some overseas subsidiaries
of the Group operate defined benefit pension plans, under which

contributions shall be made to a separately-administered fund.

The service costs and the net interest on the net liabilities and net
assets under the defined benefit plan would be taken to the current
profit or loss or cost of relevant assets. The changes generated from
the re-measurement of the net liabilities or net assets under the
defined benefit plan (including actuarial gains or losses, return on
assets under the plan, less the amount included in the net interest
on net liabilities or net assets under defined benefit plan, changes
under the effect of maximum assets, less the amount included in
the net interest on net liabilities or net assets under defined benefit

plans) would be taken to other comprehensive income.

Net interest is calculated by multiplying the net liabilities or net assets
under the defined benefit plan with the discount rate. Changes in
the net obligations under the defined benefit plan are recognized
under cost of sales, selling expenses, general and administrative
expenses, research & development expenses and finance expenses
in the income statement. Costs of services include costs of services
for the current period, costs of services for previous periods, and
gains or losses on settlement. Net interest includes interest income
accrued upon assets under the plan, interest expenses incurred

due to obligations under the plan, and interest under the effect of

maximum assets.
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21. Payroll (Continued) 21. BT E M (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

Accounting treatment for severance benefits

Where the Group provides severance benefits to its employees,
payroll payable arising from such severance benefits are recognized
on the earlier of the following dates and included in profit or loss
for the current period: when the Group is unable to unilaterally
withdraw the severance benefits provided under its plan to
terminate working relationship with employees or redundancy
plan; or when the Group recognizes costs or expenses relating to

reorganization involving the payment of severance benefits.

Other long-term staff benefits

For other long-term staff benefits, the items conforming to the
conditions of defined contribution plan are treated according to the
requirements in the defined contribution plans, whereas the rest are
recognised and measured as net liabilities or net assets under other
long-term staff benefits according to the defined benefit plan. At
the end of reporting period, staff costs under other long-term staff
benefits are recognised as three components, namely service cost,
net interest on net liabilities or net assets under other long-term
staff benefits and changes upon re-measurement of net liabilities or
assets under other long-term staff benefits. The total net amount of
these items is included in profit or loss for the current period or the

cost of relevant assets.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

22. Accruals and provisions 22. ATtAE

Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent
liability assumed in business combinations not involving entities
under common control, the Group recognizes an obligation related
to a contingency as a provision when all of the following conditions

are satisfied:

(1) the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2) itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the

Group will be required to settle the obligation;

(3)  the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to

the best estimate.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination from
the acquiree is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it
is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognized
in accordance with the general guidance for provisions above; and
the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative

amortization recognized in accordance with the guidance for

revenue recognition.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

23.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments can be distinguished into equity-settled
share-based payments and cash-settled share-based payments.
Equity-settled share-based payments are transactions of the Group
settled through the payment of shares or other equity instruments

in consideration for receiving services.

Equity-settled share-based payments made in exchange for
services rendered by employees are measured at the fair value of
equity instruments granted to employees. Instruments which are
vested immediately upon the grant are charged to relevant costs
or expenses at the fair value on the date of grant and the capital
reserve is credited accordingly. Equity instruments of subsidiaries
granted to employees of subsidiaries are taken to minority interests
in the consolidated financial statements. Instruments of which
vesting is conditional upon completion of services or fulfillment
of performance conditions are measured by recognizing services
rendered during the period in relevant costs or expenses and
crediting the capital reserve accordingly at the fair value on the date
of grant according to the best estimates conducted by the Group
at each balance sheet date during the pending period based on
subsequent information such as latest updates on the change in the
number of entitled employees and whether performance conditions
have been fulfilled, and etc. Equity instruments of subsidiaries
granted to employees of subsidiaries are taken to minority interests

in the consolidated financial statements.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or
not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that

all non-market conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based payment are
modified, as a minimum, services obtained are recognized as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognized
for any modification which increases the total fair value of the

instrument granted, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
23. Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. Where
employees or other parties are permitted to choose to fulfill non-
vesting conditions but have not fulfilled during the pending period,
equity-settled share-based payments are deemed cancelled.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award.

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured in
accordance with the fair value of liability calculated and confirmed
based on the shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Group. If the right may be exercised immediately after the grant,
the fair value of the liability undertaken by the enterprise shall, on
the date of the grant, be included in the relevant costs or expenses,
and the liabilities shall be increased accordingly. If the right may
not be exercised until services are completed or until the specified
performance conditions are met during the vesting period, the
services obtained in the current period shall, based on the best
estimate of the information about the exercisable right, be included
in the relevant costs or expenses at the fair value of the liability
undertaken by the enterprise, and the liabilities shall be increased
accordingly. On each balance sheet date prior to settlement of
the relevant liabilities and on the settlement date, the fair value of

the liability is re-measured and any change of fair value is taken to

profit or loss for the current period.

WREUE T A S AR RO A
AR BB BE R INETTHEEIE - SR
BRWMARERN S - BT HMA
RESTR R R IEM TR IGITEE SR
HARBREN  FREUHENERZEER
BRI ST ERIE (B R - IRE T
MiEm T A UHEHNEDRTAERTH
REMBTOFHESTAEANER
WEUEM D T AR - AFRSRER
REE ) B STSHIERBOM G BV 18 B0
TR -

NReEENROIN - RBAEE
AEENUBENDIEMEETARE
BABBRENABENAAEETE -
BT RIUBIAIITHN - R T H K
BERENAABEFAKAKER -
HEENRE  TREFHANRYE
FEIREXEGH A ATHEN &
EFMARERITREBEANKERF
RER  ERAEABENAAREE
1 2 ARG M IR 5T AR ANk &
R EZmEERRE EREAEESE
ANBEEERBERANRGEER
HEENARBESHAE  HEH
STAE HEE -




106  weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #55E H IR HE R A

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019417 1H26H30H 1 57

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
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24. Revenue 24. WA

The Group recognises revenue based on the transaction price
allocated to such performance obligation when a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. A performance obligation represents the commitment
that a good or service that is distinct shall be transferred by the
Group to the customer. Transaction price refers to the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange of transferring goods or services to a customer, excluding
the amount received on behalf of third parties and the amount that

the Group expects to return to a customer.

It is a performance obligation satisfied during a period of time if
one of the following conditions is met: (1) the customer obtains and
consumes economic benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs; (2) the customer is able to control goods
in progress during the Group’s performance; (3) goods generated
during the Group’s performance have no alternative use, and
the Group is entitled to payments for performance completed to
date. Otherwise, the Group will recognise revenue at the point in
time when the customer obtains control of the relevant goods or

services.

If there are two or more of performance obligations included in
the contract, at the contract inception, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each single performance obligation based on
the relative proportion of stand-alone selling prices of goods or
services promised in single performance obligation. However, if
there is conclusive evidence indicating that the contract discount
or variable consideration is only relative with one or more (not the
whole) performance obligations in the contract, the Group will
allocate the contract discount or variable consideration to relative
one or more performance obligations. Stand-alone selling price is
a price at which the Group would sell goods or services separately
to a customer. The stand-alone selling price cannot be observed
directly, the Group estimates the stand-alone selling price through
comprehensive consideration of all reasonably acquired relative

information and maximum use of observable inputs.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

24. Revenue (Continued) 24. WA (48)

Variable consideration

Where variable consideration exists in the Group’s contracts, the
best estimate of variable consideration is arrived at using either
an expected value or most likely outcome method. Transaction
price comprising the variable consideration does not exceed the
amount that it is highly probable that there will not be a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized when
the uncertainty is resolved. On each balance sheet date, the Group
re-estimates the amount of variable consideration that should be

included in the transaction price.

Consideration payable to customers

Where consideration payable to customers exists in a contract, it is
set off against transaction price and is applied against revenue for
the current period at the later of the point at which the relevant
revenue is recognized and the point of payment of (or commitment
to pay) consideration to customers, unless the consideration payable

is for obtaining other distinct goods or services from the customers.

Sales with quality assurance terms attached

For sales with quality assurance terms, if the quality assurance
provides a separate service to the customer other than ensuring
that the goods or services sold meet the pre-determined standards,
the quality assurance constitutes a single performance obligation.
Otherwise, the Group will account for the quality assurance

obligation in accordance with the “Accounting Standards for

Business Enterprises No. 13 — Contingencies”.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued)
24. Revenue (Continued)

25.

A principal/an agent

The Group determines whether it is a principal or an agent at the
time of the transaction based on whether it owns the control of
the goods or services before the transfer of such goods or services
to the customer. Where the Group is in control of that good or
service prior to transferring the same to a customer, the Group
is a principal, and revenue shall be recognized based on the
total consideration received or receivable. Otherwise, the Group
is an agent, and revenue shall be recognized at the amount of
commissions or service charges expected to be entitled to collect,
and such amount shall be determined based on net amount of total
consideration received or receivable less amounts payable to other
related parties, or based on the pre-determined commissions or

proportions.

Except for the income arising from contracts with customers,
income of the Group includes interest income and lease income
from daily operating activities. For details of relevant accounting

policies, please refer to Note lll. 9 and Note Ill. 27.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply with
the conditions attached to it and it can be received. Government
grant is classified as asset-related government grant and income-
related government grant. Government grant for purchasing,
building or otherwise forming long-term assets is recognized as
one related to assets. Otherwise it is recognized as one related to

income.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of monetary asset,
it is measured at the amount received or receivable. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of non-monetary asset, it is
measured at fair value; if fair value is not reliably determinable, it is

measured at a nominal amount.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

25.

26.

Government grants (Continued)

An asset-related government grant is recognized as deferred
income and recognized in profit or loss by stages over the useful life
of the related assets in a reasonable and systematic way. However,
a government grant measured at a nominal amount is recognized
directly in profit or loss for the current period. A government grant
related to income is accounted for as follows: if the grant is a
compensation for related costs expenses or losses to be incurred
in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred income,
and recognized in profit or loss over the periods in which the related
costs are recognized; if the grant is a compensation for related costs
expenses or losses already incurred, it is recognized immediately in

profit or loss for the current period.

Government grant related to daily operations is recognized in
other income. Government grant not related to daily operations is

recognized in non-operating income.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, except that it is a goodwill adjustment arising from business
combination, or transactions or events recognized directly in
shareholders’ equity or other comprehensive income, in which case
they are recognized in shareholders’ equity or other comprehensive

income.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority

calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and
liabilities according to the tax laws, deferred taxes are provided using
the liability method.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
26. Income tax (Continued) 26. i858 (&)

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary ERREATRER T ZERGBIAERE

differences, except: EAEHREE - BRIE:

(1) where the taxable temporary differences arise from the (1) FERFEHEEZEELEUTR
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an SHEEN: BENVBEE
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the R HEEBUTEENRZS
following characteristics: the transaction is not a business FEENEEXBENVBE
combination; and at the time of the transaction, it affects RRRHGTRLESGF I
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible loss. BEXRSBERBETEEGHA

BONTEEMABTGEERA
EAEE -

(2) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with (2) HREFRR] - GEDLERE
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, B EIRE B ENT TR
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences MER . ZERUEZREON
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary BEBESIE B B E B 1 =
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. EEABRORRETETE

B o

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary HNEMEREEZR  sEmSEIA

differences, carryforward of deductible tax losses from prior years BEFEEHENBBMB TR - A

and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable £ AR Al sEEL1S A Ak 3N m] 3K 0 T

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary B 2= 2 - AT 30 & 18 FO R ZOE R A9

differences, and deductible tax losses and tax credits can be utilized, RIREMNTIFTSRE AR @ R B E

except: ERIRIEFTSEIEE - BRIE

(1) where the deductible temporary differences arises from a (1) aEMNEEHEEZELEUTR
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the SHELN  ZRHTRLE
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor G TARSEAERRETE
taxable profit or deductible loss is affected. ZedNBE T EEMT A

BELAENER -

(2) in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated

with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventu : —_— SE=wizlN:
a deferred tax asset is only recognized to the _
is probable that the temporary difference:
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
26. Income tax (Continued)

27.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance

sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future
periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Deferred tax
assets previously written down are reversed to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities presented on a
net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Leases
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease at inception/modification date. Such contract will not be

reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are

subsequently changed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 i 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

27. Leases (Continued) 27. HE(#E)

The Group as lessee

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the
Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of
the lease (i.e. the date on which the leased asset is made available
by the lessor for the Group’s use. The right-of-use asset is initially

measured at cost. This cost includes:

. the initial measurement amount of the lease liabilities;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less the relevant amount of any lease incentives received

(where lease incentives are available);

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease.

After the commencement date of the lease, the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets shall be adjusted when lease liability is re-

measured.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term is depreciated over the remaining useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of its remaining
useful life and the lease term.

right-of-use asset and accounts for the recogni
losses according to “Accounting Standards
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B SR & & 51 i 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

27. Leases (Continued) 27. HE(#)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

The refundable rental deposits paid by the Group are accounted
for under financial instrument and are measured at fair value at
initial recognition in accordance with the “Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments”. The difference between the fair value and
the nominal amount at initial recognition is treated as an additional

lease payment and is included in the cost of the right-of-use asset.

Lease liabilities

Except for share-term leases and leases of low value assets, at the
commencement date of a lease, the Group initially measures the
lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as discount rate (the

Group could not determine interest rate implicit in the lease).

Lease payment refers to the amount paid by the Group to the lessor
relating to the right to use an underlying asset during the lease

term, including:

J fixed payments and in-substance fixed payments less
the relevant amount of any lease incentives (where lease
incentives are available);

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

o the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to

be exercised by the Group;

3 payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease

term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate;
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 5 B R & & 51 i 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

27. Leases (Continued) 27. AE(HE)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a ratio, are
initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement
date of a lease. Variable lease payments that are not included in the

measurement of the lease liability are recognised in profit or loss or

related asset costs when incurred.

The Group calculates the interest expense of the lease liabilities for

each period of the lease term based on a fixed periodic interest rate.

After the commencement date of the lease, the Group re-measures

the lease liabilities and adjusts the corresponding right-of-use asset
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in the following circumstances: BEENEREEE

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the o HHEHZMNEEERERN
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case i RBEARLRN  AEE
the Group re-measures the lease liabilities by discounting REHEHAENRENEETE
the present value of revised lease payments using a revised TR R ENBREEHT =
discount rate; HEEBE

e the expected lease payments under a guaranteed residual s WBEERSBKERTHENEE
value or the index or rate determining the lease payments KERAREERENRBEHIE
change, in which cases the Group re-measures the lease e ELFIRELS  AEE
liabilities by discounting the present value of revised lease RREFHENEENIEMR
payments using the original discount rate. FREGFENREENFER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
27. Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group elects not to recognize the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for short-term leases and low-value asset leases of
vehicles, machinery and equipment and office buildings. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. A lease
of low value asset refers to a single lease asset which, when new,
is of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised in profit or loss or the cost of
underlying assets on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably expects
that the effects on the financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Lease modifications
If the lease changes and meets the following conditions, the Group
will account for the lease modification as a separate lease:

o the lease modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more leased assets;

o the consideration increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and
any adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group re-allocates the consideration in the revised
contract, re-determines the lease term and re-measures the lease
liability by discounting the present value of the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
lease modification.
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1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

27. Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor
Separating components of a lease
For a contract that contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group shall allocate the consideration of the contract by applying
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.14 — Revenue
in respect of allocation of transaction price, on the basis of their

respective stand-alone selling prices.

Classification of leases
Leases that substantially transfer all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases;

otherwise, it is an operating lease.

Refundable lease deposits

The Group applies Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments,
to initially recognise the refundable lease deposits at fair value. The
difference between fair value and nominal value is considered as

additional lease payments by the lessee.

The Group records operating leasing business as a lessor

The Group recognises lease payments from operating leases as lease
income on a straight-line basis in different periods over the lease
term. The Group capitalises initial direct costs incurred in relation to
an operating lease and apportions such amount over the lease term
on the same basis as that used for lease income. Such amount will

be taken to profit or loss for the current period by stages.

The Group recognises any variable lease payments relating to

operating lease not included in the lease payments as income, in

profit or loss for the current period as incurred.
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IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 5} B 5K & & 51 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

27. Leases (Continued) 27. HE(#E)

The Group as lessor (Continued)

The Group records finance leasing business as a lessor

On the commencement date of the lease, the Group adopts the
net lease investment as the recorded value of the financial lease
receivables and derecognises the finance lease assets. The net lease
investment is the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the
present value of outstanding lease payments at the commencement
date of the lease which are discounted using the interest rate

implicit in the lease.

Lease payments refer to the amount that the Group should collect
from the lessee for the purpose of transferring the leased assets

during the lease term, including:

o fixed payments and in-substance fixed payments required
to be paid by lessee, less any lease incentives (where lease

incentives are available);

3 variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

3 the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to

be exercised by the lessee;

3 payments for exercising the option to terminate the lease, if
the lease term reflects that the lessee will exercise an option

to terminate the lease;

o any residual value guarantees provided to the Group by the
lessee, a party related to the lessee and an independent third

party that is financially capable of discharging the obligations

under the guarantee.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

27. Leases (Continued) 27. HE (&)
The Group as lessor (Continued) REBERTEMEA(E)
The Group records finance leasing business as a lessor AEBEAHEANCEBEHE X
(Continued) ﬁ(@)

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate are
initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement
date of a lease. Variable lease payments that are not included in the
measurement of net lease investments are recognized in profit or

loss for the current period as incurred.

Interest income in each period during the lease term are calculated
and recognized by the Group using the fixed periodic rate of

interest.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease

as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

If the finance lease changes and meets the following conditions, the

Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease:

o the modification expands the scope of the lease by increasing

the right to use one or more leased assets;

o the consideration increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and

any adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the

circumstances of the particular contract.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

27. Leases (Continued) 27. HE(8E\)
The Group as lessor (Continued) REEEALEBA(E)
Lease modifications (Continued) HEEF (&)

If the modification of the finance lease is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group will account for the lease modification in

the following cases:

o If the lease is classified as an operating lease when the
modification becomes effective at the commencement date,
the Group begins accounting for the lease modification as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification and uses
the net lease investment before the effective date of the lease

modification as the carrying value of the leased asset;

o If the modification is effective at the commencement date
and the lease is classified as a finance lease, the Group
accounts for such modification in accordance with the
“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 —
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments” in

respect of the modification or re-negotiation of contracts.

Sale and leaseback transaction

The Group as a seller (lessee)

The Group determines whether the asset transfer in the sale
and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.14 — Revenue.
If the transfer of assets is not a sale, the Group continues to
recognize the transferred assets and recognizes a financial liability
in equal amount to the transfer income, and accounts for the
financial liabilities in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments. Where the transfer of assets is a sale, the
Group measures the right-of-use assets formed by the sale and
leaseback based on the portion of the original asset’s book value
that is related to the use rights obtained from the leaseback, and
only recognizes the relevant gains or loss that relates to the rights

transferred to the lessor.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)
27. Leases (Continued) 27. HE (&)

Sale and leaseback transaction (Continued) ErEBRZ S (&)

The Group as a buyer (lessor) REEERET (HHEA)

If the asset transfer in the sale and leaseback transaction is not ERARRGTNEEEZTENH

a sale, the Group does not recognize the transferred asset, but EN AEBTHERFEZEE -

recognizes a financial asset in equal amount to the transfer income BHERA-HEEZWASENERE

and accounts for the financial asset in accordance with Accounting B UWiRB(OESHERIE225 —

Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and CRTEBRANAE)HZeMEE

Measurement of Financial Instruments. If the asset transfer is a sale, HITERIE ZEEEEBNEE

the Group will account for the asset purchase according to other B AEEREBEEMERANGESS

applicable accounting standards and account for the asset lease ERHEERBETIERE Y

accordingly. BEHMEETEER -

28. Hedge accounting 28. EMEE

For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group's hedging is MEHEeHFFEMS AEENEH

classified as follows: RESER:

(1) Fair value hedges refer to the hedging against the risk of fair (1) 2AREEEH REEHCER
value change in respect of definite commitments which are BEENBE HWABIONET
not yet recognized (other than exchange rate risks) of assets A (REXRRBRINORARE
and liabilities already recognized. BEEBHEMETHER -

(2) Cash flow hedges refer to the hedging against the exposure 2) BRER=EH BRIEHRER
to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a EZPRBETHES - L]
particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or eREZHRNEEEREE
a highly probable forecast transaction, or a foreign currency HBE - RAGZEENTEHRR
risk in an unrecognized firm commitment. SEBHEESERR @ —

AAERNEEAEESHOE
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)
28. Hedge accounting (Continued) 28. EH gt (M)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally FEEHRBEMIRE  ANEBEYHEER

designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the FETIERIETE @ WEETHERER

Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management BR - R E IR B AR A E e B IR AR A

objective and the risk management strategy. The documentation RIERNEZE X - ZXIFEAEELR

includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, TH wWwEHER  HEHRRMME

the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess B ARAREEHERER TG

the hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to o EMAMM  REEHIANND

changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable AREENBERELEDEMEHEEE

to the hedged risk. Besides, the Group assesses on an ongoing HER S| ESER AL BEK

basis whether such hedging relationships are complying with the BEeRELHMEE - Itid XEH

hedge effectiveness requirements as at the commencement date EEHRKBBRUEBHEBENEE

and in subsequent periods. The Group recognises that the hedging HERRSRAERA R EETT

relationships meet hedge effectiveness requirements when they T o EHARE M E NYEMER - &

meet all of the following requirements: SERTENHEERREREREE

b

. There is an economic relationship between the hedged item e WEHBEEMEHTIAZMET
and the hedging instrument. TELBAR -

. The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes ° WEHEEMNESRT AKLTERA
that result from that economic relationship. REENEBEEZSZSS AR

BB TME AL o

. The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as o EHBEAMEHILE  FHUA
that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that SEEREMNWENREIEH
the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging EENHEETEHNERTA
instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that ERBEZL -

quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness EHAERERESRLENRETHR
requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management SEMAMEER - BIEEZENH
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the ROEREREREZERANEN A%

same, the Group rebalances the hedging relationship. B EHBERETHFE -
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

28. Hedge accounting (Continued) 28. EH g (4E)

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised
(with the exception of rollover of the hedging strategic component
or unfulfilled replacement), if its objective of risk management
changes, so that the hedge relationship no longer satisfies the
objective of risk management, or if the hedge no longer fulfills the
other conditions under the accounting requirement of a hedge, the

Group will cease the adoption of such hedge accounting.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are

accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges
The Group's fair value hedge is a hedge against interest rate risk (risk

of fair value change) of the fixed rate debt instruments.

Gains or losses arising from a hedging instrument are recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. Gains or losses in respect of
the hedged item attributable to hedged risk are recognized in profit
or loss and the carrying amount of the hedged item that is not

measured at fair value is adjusted.

For fair value hedge relating to debt instruments carried at
amortized cost, the carrying amount of the hedged items is adjusted
and amortized to profit or loss over the remaining term of the
hedge using the effective interest rate method. Amortization begins
on the date of adjustment but no later than the point when the

hedged item ceases to be adjusted for hedging gains and losses.

Where the hedged items are firm commitments not yet recognized,
upon designation of the hedging relationship, the accumulated
change in fair value arising from the hedging risk of the firm
commitments are recognized as an asset or a liability, and related

gains and losses are taken to profit or loss for the current period.

When the Group obtains assets or undertakes liabilities by :

performing firm commitments, the initial recognised amount of the
assets or liabilities is adjusted to include the accumulated change in

fair value of the recognised hedged items.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
28. Hedge accounting (Continued) 28. EFES (&)

Cash flow hedges

The Group'’s cash flow hedge include hedges of the expected sales/
procurements, foreign currency financial instruments, foreign
exchange risk on firm commitments and interest rate risk of variable

rate debt instruments (exposure to variability in cash flows).

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is recognized in other comprehensive income, while the ineffective

portion is recognized in profit or loss.

If the expected transaction being hedged is subsequently recognized
as non-financial assets or non-financial liabilities, or when the
expected transaction of non-financial assets or non-financial
liabilities becomes the firm commitment under applicable fair
value hedges, the amount of cashflow hedging reserve originally
recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred out and
taken to the initial recognized amount of that asset or liability item.
For other cashflow hedges, during the same period in which the
expected cashflow being hedged affects profit or loss, for example
when the expected sale occurs, the cashflow hedging reserve
recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred out and

taken to profit or loss for the current period.

When the Group no longer applies hedging accounting to cashflow
hedges, if the future cashflow being hedged is still expected to
occur, the amount previously taken to other comprehensive income
is not transferred out until the expected transaction actually occurs
or the firm commitment is performed; if the future cashflow being
hedged is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated amount
of cashflow hedging reserve shall be transferred out from other
comprehensive income and taken to profit or loss for the current

period.
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IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

29.

30.

31.

Profit appropriation
Interim and final cash dividends of the Company are recognized as

liabilities upon approval by shareholders in general meeting.

Safety funds

Safety funds provided for as required were included in cost of
product or the current profit and loss, and credited in special
reserve. And the funds are treated separately depending on
whether fixed assets are resulted when being used: funds related
to expenditure is offset against special reserve directly while those
forming fixed assets will consolidate expenditure incurred and
recognized as fixed assets when such assets are ready for their
intended use, at the same time offsetting equivalent amounts in the
special reserve and recognizing equivalent amounts of accumulated

depreciation.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal
organization structure, managerial requirements and internal
reporting system, identifies reportable segments based on operating

segments and discloses segment information by operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that meets all

the following conditions:

(1) it engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses;

(2) its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
management to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

(3) the Group is able to obtain relevant accounting information
such as its financial position, operating results and cash flows

of such segment.

If two or more segments have similar econo
meet certain conditions, then they can bg_ég'gﬁ:

operating segment.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EREFTHEFMEE

estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that will affect the
reported amounts and disclosure of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and
assumptions could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments which have
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements.

Confirmation of functional currency

Since the Company owns a number of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and branch organizations, when recognizing its
functional currency, multiple factors are taken into consideration
to recognize the major economic environment of their operating
locations. Under circumstances with multiple factors and no obvious
functional currency, the Group uses judgment to confirm its

functional currency. Such judgment is the best to reflect economic

influence of the underlying transactions, events and environment.
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32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EREBFTHEFMMEE (F)

estimates (Continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Sale and leaseback sub-leases

To fund leases, industrial forklift trucks are generally sold by
KION GROUP AG (“KION", a subsidiary of the Company) and its
subsidiaries (“KION Group”) to finance partners. The industrial
forklift trucks are then leased back to companies under KION Group
(head leases), which sub-lease them to external end customers
(described below as”sale and leaseback sub-leases”). These head
leases generally have a term of four to five years. Taking into
account the fact that the finance partners can only lease the
industrial forklift trucks to KION Group, at rental rate determined
based on transfer income plus an agreed rate of return, and the
leased assets are to be owned by KION Group upon expiry of the
term of the head leases, the management of the Group considers
that under the sale and leaseback sub-leases arrangements, the
control over the respective leased assets incidental to the head
leases are remained by KION Group, the asset transfer is not
considered as a sale. As such, the Group continues to recognize
the transferred assets and at the same time recognizes a financial

liability that corresponds to the amount of the transfer income.

Indirect leasing arrangement

KION Group sells industrial forklift trucks to finance partners,
who then lease them to external end customers (abbreviated
below as “indirect leasing”). Taking into account the contract
terms and historical commercial practice, KION Group repurchases
from finance partners the transferred industrial forklift trucks at
agreed prices or market prices when the term of indirect leasing
expires, the management of the Group considers that KION Group
still maintain control over the corresponding leased-out assets,
and asset transfer under the indirect leasing arrangement is not
considered a sale. As such, the Group continues to recognize the
transferred assets, and the present value of the Group’s obligations
to repurchase is recognized as a liability. The difference between
the transfer income and such liability is accounted for in accordance

with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 21 — Leases.
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32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EAEFTHEFMMEE ()

estimates (Continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Method of ascertaining of performance progress for contracts
(only applicable to situations where control is transferred within
a period of time)

The input method is adopted by the Group to ascertain the progress
of performance of contracts. In ascertaining performance progress,
products for which control is not yet transferred to customers are
deducted. Specifically, the performance costs actually incurred on
a cumulative basis as a percentage of estimated total costs is used
to ascertain progress of performance. Performance costs actually
incurred on a cumulative basis include direct and indirect costs
incurred by the Group in the course of fulfilling its performance
obligations, but does not include costs that are not proportional
to the performance progress of the Group, such as costs of
products or materials not yet installed, used or consumed. The
Group considers that contract prices are ascertained on the basis
of performance costs, and the adjusted costs actually incurred as a
percentage of expected total costs can essentially reflect truly the

performance progress of the Group.

As the period of validity of such contracts is relatively long and may
span over a number of accounting periods, the Group shall review
and revise budget as the duration of the contracts continues, and

adjust the amount of recognized revenue accordingly.

Business model

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the business model of the Group’s management of financial assets.
In judging the business model, the Group considers corporate
appraisal, methods of reporting the results of financial assets to
key management members, risks affecting the results of financial
assets and its management, as well as the methods of remunerating
relevant business managers and so forth. In assessing whether the
objective is to collect contractual cash flows, the Group needs to
analyze and judge the reasons for disposing of the financial assets
before maturity, time, frequency and value of the financial assets

and so forth.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EREFTHE MG ()
estimates (Continued)
Judgments (Continued) # (&)
Contractual cash flow characteristics BRBETRERE

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
When it is necessary to judge whether the contractual cash flow
is only the payment of the principal and the interest based on the
outstanding principal, including the assessment of the correction
of the time value of money, it is necessary to judge whether there
is a significant difference compared with the benchmark cash flow.
For financial assets with early repayment features, it is necessary
to judge whether the fair value of the early repayment features is
minimal.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future accounting
periods, are discussed below.

Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets

The Group uses the expected credit loss model to assess the
impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets. The
application of the expected credit loss model requires significant
judgments and estimations, and all reasonable and evidenced
information, including forward-looking information, should be
considered. In making such judgments and estimations, the Group
infers the expected changes in the debtor’s credit risk based on the
historical repayment data in combination with economic policies,
macroeconomic indicators, and industry risks.

Provision for losses in respect of accounts receivable and contract
assets is measured at the amount of the expected credit losses
during the entire subsistence. Regarding the accounts receivable
and contract assets for which impairment matrix is applied (on
a group basis) to determine credit losses, the Group relies on
common risk profiles to classify them into different groups. Such
common risk profiles include ages, overdue ages, credit risk rating
and so forth. Regarding receivables and contract assets which are
individually significant or are individually insignificant but have
special credit risks, impairment testing is conducted |nd|v1dua|Iy
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

32.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets
(Continued)

Where the result of re-estimation is different from the existing
estimation, the difference will affect the profit of the period of
changes in estimates and the carrying amount of the accounts

receivable and contract assets.

Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets

(other than goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life)

At the balance sheet date, the Company makes its judgment as to
whether there is any evidence indicating potential impairment of
non-current assets other than financial assets. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful life shall be tested for impairment when there is
any indication of impairment in addition to the annual impairment
testing. Other non-current assets other than financial assets shall be
tested for impairment if there is any evidence indicating that their
carrying amount cannot be recovered. When the carrying amount
of an asset or asset groups is higher than the recoverable amount,
which is the higher of the net amount of its fair value less costs of
disposal and the present value of the future cash flows expected to
be derived from the asset, it indicates impairment. The net amount
of the fair value less costs of disposal is determined by making
reference to the price in a sale agreement in an arm’s length
transaction or the observable market price less the incremental
costs directly attributable to such assets disposal. In projecting the
present value of future cashflow, the management is required to
estimate the projected future cashflow of the asset or asset group
and select an appropriate discount rate for determining the present

value of future cashflow.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EREFTHE MG ()

estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill and trademarks

The Group determines whether goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life are impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the asset group to
which goodwill and trademarks are allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the asset group and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.

Defined benefit plans

The management of the Group recognizes net liabilities under
defined benefit plans based on calculating model of the present
value of the defined benefit obligations less fair value of the assets
under the plan. The present value of defined benefit obligations
comprises of various assumptions, including term of benefits and
discount rate. Inconsistency between the future events and such
assumptions may subject the net liabilities under defined benefit

plans on the balance sheet date to material adjustment.

Fair value

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are measured at fair value
on the financial statements. The aforesaid measurement is on the
basis of some assumptions. Fair value may differ significantly if

future events deviate from such assumptions.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused deductible
temporary differences and deductible losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and deductible losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together

with future tax planning strategies.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = H % & 5} Bt 5% X & 5145 5
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EREBFTHEFMMEE (F)

estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for decline in value of inventories

Provision for decline in value of inventories is recognized on the
basis of the net realizable value of inventories. The management'’s
judgments and estimates are required for determining the net
realizable value of inventories on the basis of clear evidence, taking
into consideration of purpose of holding the inventories, effect
of subsequent events and other factors. The difference between
the actual outcome and original estimate will affect the carrying
amount of inventories and provision or reversal of decline in value

of inventories during the estimated revision period.

Recognition of accruals and provisions related to quality
warranty of products

The Group estimates the obligation related to quality warranty
of products based on contractual terms, current knowledge and
historical experience. The Group reasonably estimates maintenance
fee charge and makes relevant provision based on all relevant data
including historical data on and current situation of maintenance,

product upgrade and market changes.
Estimated useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets and
intangible assets at least once at the end of the year. Estimated
useful lives are determined by the management based on
historical experience of similar assets and expected technological
advancement. Corresponding adjustment to depreciation and

amortization expenses for future periods will be made in case of

substantial changes in previous estimates.

Bt N (48
AEBNUFER AR FERFEHE
MERAKERES - BEFENTER
FEBREEEEISEEEE X
BEERAFENEN - EEREX
PREENTZESAENER LFH
HIETAEET - BRAERER LG
B ZERBEM RSN ENRET BT
ENEREEERTEKEEENIE
HEm -

HEE i B B REVARI AT B E AT
E7d

AEEREARGR - REMBRE
SRR HEREGERIEEBNER
ETHE - ARBEZBELRERK
- ERREBR  EmIGE - M5
BE2HMARERR  BREBX
TR BT > WAT R ER -

BIFE & E RN R EL G A& H
FIR
AEEEIREBFFERT » HEE
BENEBVEENRERSHET
B BAERASoREEEENY
FRBEEERLRRYEABRRME
M ER - BEUENGBFELEEKR
BER - BRI AR RGBT E
REHER -




132  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. M4 R HERA

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EREBFTHEFMMEE (F)

estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Limitations on the estimation of variable consideration

In estimating variable consideration, the Group considers all such
information as shall be reasonably obtained, including historical
data, current data and projected data, thereby estimating the
amount of possible consideration and the probability to the
extent of such quantities as shall be reasonable. If it is estimated
that multiple outcomes are possible for the contracts, the Group
estimates the amount of variable consideration based on the
expected value approach. If it is estimated that only two outcomes
are possible, the variable consideration is arrived at using the
most likely outcome method. Variable consideration is included
in the transaction price to the extent it is highly probable that
there will not be a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized when the uncertainty is resolved. In assessing
whether it is highly probable that there will not be a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized when
the uncertainty relevant to the variable consideration is resolved,
the Group also considers the possibility of reversal of income and
the ratio of reversed amount. On each balance sheet date, the
Group re-assesses the amount of variable consideration, including
re-assessing whether the estimation of variable consideration is
limited, to reflect the circumstance as at the end of the reporting

period as well as changes during the reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 5} B 5K & & 51 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

33. Change of accounting policies 33. BT BREE

New Standard on Lease

With effect from 1 January 2019 (the “date of first adoption”),
the Group has adopted the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 21 — Leases (the “New Standard on Lease”; the
standard on lease before amendment is referred as the “Original
Standard on Lease”) amended by MOF in 2018. For accounting
policy on leases after the amendment, please refer to Note IIl.27.

For the contracts already existed before the date of first adoption,
the Group chose not to re-assess whether they were of lease or

included lease on the date of first adoption.

For the contracts signed or changed after the date of first adoption,
the Group has assessed whether the contracts were of lease or
included lease according to the definitions stated in the New
Standard on Lease. The definitions stated in the New Standard
on Lease do not have major impacts on the scope of the Group's

contracts fulfilling the definitions of lease.

The Group as lessee

The Group adjusted the beginning amount of the retained earnings
and other relevant items on financial statements on the first date of
adoption when the New Standard on Lease was first adopted based

on the cumulative impact of first adoption of the New Standard on

Lease without adjusting the information for the comparable period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

The Group as lessee (Continued)
For the operating leases before the first date of adoption, the
Group adopted one or more than one simplified treatments as

follows based on each lease option:

Leases to be completed within 12 months of the first date of

adoption shall be treated as short-term leases;

When measuring the lease liabilities, a single discount rate is

adopted for leases with similar characteristics;

The measurement of right-of-use assets does not include

initial direct cost;

For the leases with extension option or termination option,
the Group determines the lease term based on the exercise
of options in practice prior to the first date of adoption and

other latest developments;

The Group assesses whether the contracts with leases are
onerous before the first date of adoption according to
“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.13 —
Contingencies” and adjusts the right-of-use assets based
on the provision for loss made in the balance sheet before
the first date of adoption as an alternative to performing an

impairment review on the right-of-use assets;

For the change of the lease before the first date of adoption,
accounting treatments shall be in accordance with the final

arrangements of the change of the lease.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)

New Standard on Lease (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

For the operating leases before the first date of adoption, the
Group assumed that the New Standard on Lease is adopted to
measure right-of-use assets once the lease term commenced, with
the carrying amount discounted using the incremental borrowing

rate at the first date of adoption.

For the finance leases before the first date of adoption, the Group
measured the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at the original
carrying amounts of the assets under finance lease and the finance

lease payable respectively on the first date of adoption.

On the first date of adoption, the Group made the adjustments as
follows in connection with the adoption of the New Standard on

Lease:

The Group recognized lease liabilities of RMB17,418,755,002.55
and right-of-use assets of RMB10,847,665,335.76 on 1 January
2019. For the operating leases before the first date of adoption,
the Group measures the lease liabilities according to the present
value discounted at the incremental borrowing rate on the first date
of adoption, where the range of discount rate of the incremental
borrowing is between 0%-15%. Based on each lease option, the
Group measured right-of-use assets according to the assumption

that the carrying amount under this standard was adopted once the

lease term commenced.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)
New Standard on Lease (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
The reconciliation information of the lease liabilities recognized
by the Group on 1 January 2019 and the major operating lease
commitments disclosed in the 2018 annual financial statements is as

follows:

Item
BIsRE|
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= E B AR &g a4

(%)

33. BT BUREE (&)
STHEZRR (&)
KEBERATA (E)
RNEBEMR2019F1A1ABRANAE
BEHE2018FEMBEHREFHEEN
BAREHEFRANADE2NOT -

RMB
ARBTT

1 January 2019
2019%1A1H

1. Operating lease commitments as at 31 —
December 2018

2018412 A31 A& E&EE

3,595,922,598.51

Lease liabilities according to the present value
discounted at the incremental borrowing
rate on the first date of adoption

Less: Recognized exemption — short-term
lease

Lease liabilities recognized for adopting the
New Standard on Lease and relevant to the
original operating leases

Add: Finance lease payable as at 31 December
2018

2. Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019

Presented as:

Non-current liabilities due within one year
Lease liabilities

RERNITREESERFERNETEN
HERE
3,120,052,462.73
W R -RAEE
98,369,947.08
WITHHELERERANARLCERE
HEMEEaRE
3,021,682,515.65
0 2018FE12 A3 1A ENBMEHE R

14,397,072,486.90

“2019F1A1RTEEAR 17,418,755,002.55
PRA

—FRIEERESEE 5,529,206,378.87

HEAE 11,889,548,623.68

The composition of the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets as

at 1 January 2019 is as follows:

Item

EH

20191 A EFERABREEMNRAEE
BRI :

RMB
ARBTT

1 January 2019

Right-of-use assets:
Right-of-use assets in respect of the o
leases recognized before the first d

adoption ;
Assets under financial lease recogr
the Original Standard on Lease

Total:
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1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Change of accounting policies (Continued) 33. Bt BREBE(E)

New Standard on Lease (Continued)

The Group as lessor

The Group did not make any transitional adjustment for leases in
which the Group is a lessor and such leases were accounted for
according to the New Standard on Lease since the first date of

adoption.

On the first date of adoption, for the renewed leases for the existing
leased properties which the Group has signed but whose lease
period has not commenced, they will be deemed as a change with
respect to the existing lease contracts on the first date of adoption.
Such change had no impact on the balance sheet as of 1 January
2019. However, since 1 January 2019, the lease receivables after
the change in the lease terms after the change will be recognized as

rental income on a straight-line basis.

Since the first date of adoption, the Group allocates the
consideration in respect of the contract in accordance with the
principles of transaction price allocation described in Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue. The change

had no material impact on the financial statements of the period.

Sales and leaseback transactions

For the sales and leaseback transactions which existed before the
first date of adoption, the Group did not reassess, on the first
date of adoption, whether the transfer of assets complies with the
requirements on accounting treatment for sales pursuant to the

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue.

For the transactions after the first date of adoption, the Group,
as a seller and lessee, applied the requirements under Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue to assess
and determine whether asset transfer in a sales and leaseback
transaction constitute sales. If the transfer of assets in the sales and
leaseback transaction does not constitute a sale, the Group would

determine the proceeds as financial liabilities.
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IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)

New Standard on Lease (Continued)

Sales and leaseback transactions (Continued)
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(%)
33. B BRBE (&)

Except the adjustments and effects caused by the change stated

in “Format of presentation in financial statements”, the primary

effects on the financial statement as at 1 January 2019 due to

the change in accounting policies caused by the aforesaid New

Standard on Lease are as follows:

The Group

[tem
HE

31 December 2018
2018%12A31H

FAEEER (&)
EXBELR 5 (&)

EOREZEN

= B Ak R | un A

EatsrEE 2RI

ERGTHRREE H2019F1A18

MM BEHRROEE

A EE

Adjustment for
the Change in
Accounting Policies

BHERAE AT

AWM -

1 January 2019
2019F1A1H

Fixed assets

Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Non-current liabilities due within
one year

Total current liabilities

Lease liabilities

Long-term payables

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Other comprehensive income

Retained earnings

Total equity attributed to the owners

of parent
Minority interests
Total owners’ equity

Total liabilities and owners’ equity

ElE&E

EREELE
EREFEREE
FRBBEA
BEA
—FREBOFRDEE

mEBAEAE
HERE
REEAR
EEFMEREE
FRBAERT
BfEAT
Hibhra e
RAAEMB
FERERAMAEES
Af
YRR S
IREY: Foca

The Company

New Standard on Lease does not have im|

financial statements as at 1 January

ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%v¥“

[——

29,454,072,247.73

4,458,451,001.33
97,170,902,236.80
205,276,365,174.18

6,898,699,368.61
88,417,148,977.49

9,895,419,535.20
5,772,705,450.50
54,599,888,423.00
143,017,037,400.49
(1,570,594,557.01)
32,443,962,374.77

39,313,734,834.02
22,945,592,939.67

(8,169,185,573.01)
10,847,665,335.76
169,776,384.27
2,848,256,147.02
2,848,256,147.02

666,638,424.89
666,638,424.89
11,889,548,623.68
(9,534,504,532.92)
120,744,835.64
2,475,788,926.40
3,142,427,351.29
(13,411,820.43)
(118,987,182.48)

(132,399,002.91)
(161,772,201.36)

21,284,886,674.72
10,847,665,335.76
4,628,227,385.60
100,019,158,383.82
208,124,621,321.20

7,565,337,793.50
89,083,787,402.38
11,889,548,623.68
360,915,002.28
5,893,450,286.14
57,075,677,349.40
146,159,464,751.78
(1,584,006,377.44)
32,324,975,192.29

39,181,335,831.11




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

33.

Change of accounting policies (Continued)
Format of presentation in financial statements

Starting from the preparation of the Interim Financial Statements
for the year 2019, the Group has adopted the Notice on Revising
and Circulating General Corporate Financial Statement Formats
2019 issued by the MOF on 30 April 2019 (Cai Kuai [2019] No.6,
abbreviated hereinafter as “Cai Kuai Notice No. 6”). Pursuant to Cai
Kuai Notice No. 6, revisions have been made to the presentation
of items in balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement
and statement of changes in owners’ equity. “Notes and accounts
receivable” is separated into two items namely “notes receivable”
and “accounts receivable”; “notes and accounts payable” is
separated into two items namely “notes payable” and “accounts

n. o u

payable”; “receivable financing” and “special reserve” are added;

presentation details of “other receivables”, “non-current assets

"o noou "o

due within one year”, “other payable”, “deferred income”, “other

equity instruments”, “research and development expenses”,

“interest income” under “finance expenses”, “other income”,

noou

“non-operating income” and “non-operating expenses”, “capital
contribution from the holders of other equity instruments” are
clarified or revised. Further, requirements about presentation of
provision for losses made in respect of loan commitment and
financial guarantee contracts have been set out; the item of
“gains arising from de-recognition of financial assets measured
at amortized cost” has been added under “investment income”;
the presentation location of some items in income statement has
been adjusted; and where government grant should be put in cash
flow statement has been clarified. In response to the change of
the aforementioned presentation items, comparative data from the
previous period have been re-stated. Such changes in accounting
policies do not have impacts on the consolidated and company net

profit and shareholders’ equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2019

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)
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Format of presentation in financial statements (Continued)

Major impacts of the retrospective adjustment arising from the

changes in accounting policies stated above on the balance sheet as

T EETBOR B E S| A B A
2018F 12 A3TAMEEBRBRER

at 31 December 2018 are as follows: EEMT
The Group rEH
RMB
AR#® T
Closing balance Adjustment arising Closing balance
before changes in from changes in after changes in
[tem accounting policies accounting policies accounting policies
B BREEA BHBERES SHBKET %
= FRHE RBEE FRHHE
Notes receivable e R & 18,056,440,277.52 18,056,440,277.52
Accounts receivable FEUER 3K 13,155,363,494.20 13,155,363,494.20
Notes receivable and accounts [T E S
receivable 38,148,028,169.82 (38,148,028,169.82)
Receivable financing Al ERE 6,936,224,398.10 6,936,224,398.10
Notes payable AR 15,925,016,265.08 15,925,016,265.08
Accounts payable JERT IR 30,869,354,934.85 30,869,354,934.85
Notes payable and accounts payable  JE Z & & Ef IR 50 46,794,371,199.93 (46,794,371,199.93)
Other current liabilities HieRBaE 6,321,615,150.06 (199,815,799.90) 6,121,799,350.16
Deferred income EIEW = 3,056,191,818.80 199,815,799.90 3,256,007,618.70
The Company KA A]
RMB
ARE#® T
Closing balance Adjustment arising Closing balance
before changes in from changes in after changes in
Item accounting policies accounting policies accounting policies
BEREE B AT SEREED SERREEBR
HE FRERE 8
Notes receivable R R 7

Accounts receivable

Notes receivable and accounts
receivable

Notes payable

Accounts payable

Notes payable and accounts pa&/ablé
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)
Format of presentation in financial statements (Continued)
Major impacts of the retrospective adjustment arising from the
changes in accounting policies stated above on the cashflow
related to government grants received as included in the cashflow

statement for the period from 1 January to 30 June 2018 are as

follows:
The Group rEH
RMB
AR T
Incurred in previous Adjustment arising Incurred in previous
period before changes from changes in period after changes
[tem in accounting policies accounting policies  in accounting policies
SHBKREER BHREET SHBEERR
L] FEEAR MR gt
Other cash received relating to U B A B4 4 E B
operating activities BENRE 786,156,825.82 29,101,177.00 815,258,002.82
Other cash received relating to WEIMEM R EES
investing activities BENRE 29,101,177.00 (29,101,177.00) =
The Company KA A
RMB
AR#T
Incurred in previous Adjustment arising Incurred in previous
period before changes from changesin  period after changes
[tem in accounting policies accounting policies  in accounting policies
S BEREER BHBRER SHBKET R
BH FEREAR RER FERE A
Other cash received relating to B E BT E S
operating activities BFENHS 324,683,819.94 23,369,000.00 348,052,819.94

Other cash received relating to

investing activities

WEIM A EREEE
ARNRSE

23,549,422.79

(23,369,000.00)

180,422.79
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)

Swap of non-monetary assets
On 9 May 2019, the MOF issued the amended Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No.7 — Swap of Non-monetary
Assets (Cai Kuai [2019] No.8, abbreviated hereinafter as the “New
Standard on Swap of Non-monetary Assets”), which has become
effective since 10 June 2019. Pursuant to New Standard on Swap
of Non-monetary Assets, revisions have been made to the definition
of swap of non-monetary assets; scope of the application of the
standard is clarified; requirements about the points of time of
recognition of assets transferred in and derecognition of assets
transferred out, as well as the principle of accounting treatments in
case of inconsistency in the point of time of the recognition of assets
transferred in and the point of time of the derecognition of assets
transferred out; accounting treatment on the swap of non-monetary
assets has been refined; and requirement about disclosure has been
added. As required by New Standard on Swap of Non-monetary
Assets, adjustments were made according to New Standard on
Swap of Non-monetary Assets for the swap of non-monetary assets
occurred between 1 January 2019 and the effective date on 10
June 2019. No retrospective adjustment is required to make for the
swap of non-monetary assets occurred before 1 January 2019. The
adoption of New Standard on Swap of Non-monetary Assets does
not have major impacts on the Group's financial statements for the
period.

Debt restructuring
On 16 May 2019, the MOF issued Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises — No.12 Debt Restructuring (Cai Kuai [2019]
No.9, abbreviated hereinafter as the “New Standard on Debt
Restructuring”), which has become effective since 17 June 2019.
Pursuant to New Standard on Debt Restructuring, revision has been
made to the definition of debt restructuring; scope of application
of the standard is clarified; revision on the accounting treatment of
debt restructuring has been made; the requirement on disclosure
of debt restructuring has been simplified. As required by New
Standard on Debt Restructuring, adjustments were made according
to New Standard on Debt Restructuring for the debt restructuring
occurred between 1 January 2019 and the effective date on 17
June 2019. No retrospective adjustment is required to make for the
debt restructuring occurred before 1 January 2019. The adoption of
New Standard on Debt Restructuring does not have major impacts
on the Group'’s financial statements for the period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IV. Taxation
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1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. FEFHERBRE

rates

Value-added tax (VAT)
B4 {8 B

City maintenance and construction tax

YT A AR AR

Before 1 April 2019, for the Group's PRC subsidiaries, output VAT is
calculated by applying 16%, 10% and 6% to the taxable income for
normal taxpayers, but the Group may pay it after deducting deductible
input VAT for the current period. After 1 April 2019, for the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, output VAT is calculated by applying 13%, 9% and 6% to
the taxable income for normal taxpayers, but the Group may pay it after
deducting deductible input VAT for the current period.

20194 R 1B Z AIASER AN F R —MRAT ARETKAK
16% ~ 10% ~ 6% M B EFHE AT - WL E B FAR 0 H I8
M ENZETHOLEN  2019F4 818214 - AEBIRAFAA
—RRANTEARET U ARI13% » 9% * 6% TR EIHIER - WiK
B EBParENaEER R RN Z\AHUEED -

The basis of computation and applicable rate of VAT primarily applicable
to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set out below:

AEBEENFRABETEZERANBER RKBEIERBREINRAOT

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
BB BREXR B=
Amount of taxable added-value Germany 19%
JE AR 75 38 (B 3R =

Value-added tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws
and regulations in force in the respective countries.

HBEREERREE/EORBERERETE

It is levied at 7% or 5% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

BRERBMAEREBT %K5% 8
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 ik 3R B 5 (4
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F
IV. Taxation (Continued) g ~BiIE (%)
1.  Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. TEHRERHRE(E)

rates (Continued)

Education surcharge — Itislevied at 3% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

A &M M REBHNE RETE3 %I -

Local education surcharge — ltislevied at 2% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

77 H B B0 BRERBMNRERN2%:T8 -

Corporate income tax — Itislevied at 15% or 25% on the taxable profit, except that for overseas
SR subsidiaries, it is levied at the statutory tax rate of the countries or regions

in which the subsidiaries operate.
RIGINFRRIRAMERR « MREVEEFEAHIN - BEMETIR
FERMTLFTISEER15%K25% T 40 -

—  The basis of computation and applicable rate of corporate income tax

primarily applicable to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set

out below:
REEFIEFEFRARFEZBAABEMERETAELERH X
R

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
BRI BABEX H=
Amount of taxable income Germany 30.82%
FEATATISER T2

Income tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws and
regulations in force in the respective countries.

Hib BRI SRR BEE MR AR ARERE

Tax benefits 2. BWER

Value-added tax HEH

In accordance with the Notice Concerning Exemption from Value- KRRz FRABIRAE TEGRA
wab -~ ERBGRBCER
AE 3 A T AH B B Y

= = 2% 3707 [ ==l

added Tax and Consumption Tax applicable to Special-purpose - RIRER BT I
Military Vehicles ( (BERE AR 12 E 5 e BUL E R E BB A # ERFRERR
41 ) issued by MOF and State Administration of Taxation, the sale nEf

of special-purpose military vehicles to army and armed |

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a

exempted from value-added tax.



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the Company

The Company was recognized as a high-tech enterprise on 27
November 2008. The Company continued to be recognized as a
high-tech enterprise in 2017 and is therefore entitled to enjoy a

preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2017 to 2019.

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.,
Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Torch
Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear
Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd., Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel
Engine Co., Ltd., Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology Co., Ltd.,
Baudouin (Weifang) Power Co., Ltd. and Linde Hydraulics (China)
Co., Ltd. were recognized as high-tech enterprises in 2017 and are
therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Hande Axle (Zhuzhou) Gear Co., Ltd.,
Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd. and Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs
Co., Ltd. were recognized as high-tech enterprises in 2018 and are
therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 2018 to 2020.

Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. was recognized

as high-tech enterprises on 15 December 2016 and are therefore

entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 15
December 2016 to 15 December 2019.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirement of Cai Shui [2015] No. 34, Shaanxi
Fast Automotive Components Import and Export Company Limited
meets the criteria of a low-margin small-scale industrial enterprise
and is subject to corporate income tax at the reduced rate of 20%
based on its taxable income which is taken as 50% of its income

(equivalent to a 10% tax rate for corporate income tax).

Pursuant to the requirement of the Notice Concerning Issues on
Taxation Policies Relating to the Thorough Implementation of
China’s Strategy of Western Development (Cai Shui Fa No. [2011]
58) (CBER R AE e 78 35 A 5 3 B 75 A B0 U BUR i R A R 40))
promulgated by MOF, the State Administration of Taxation and
the General Administration of Customs dated 27 July 2011, the
following companies have implemented preferential tax policy of

15% for the Western Development:

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd.,
Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang
Motor Co., Ltd, Xi‘an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Fast Eaton (Xi"an) Power
Transmission System Co., Ltd. and Weichai (Chongging) Automotive
Co., Ltd.

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 ~& 0f Bt % 3 3% 1 BH H 51 R

Statements

1. Cash and cash equivalents 1. E¥ES
RMB
AT
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
HH PORCESP-EDIENY 20184812 A31H
Cash at bank EFRS 4,624,678.61 81,701,285.69
Bank deposits BITER cPlayi e el el 33,625,686,012.23
Other cash and cash equivalents HEhE®ED 7,824,728,038.74 4,502,565,260.39
Total &5t A G PPAY  38,209,952,558.31

As at 30 June 2019, the other cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB5,886,944,245.13 (31 December 2018:
RMB3,830,014,282.90), all of which are used in letter of guarantee
and security monies for special accounts such as bank acceptance
bills and letter of credit and fixed deposits pledged to secure the

bank borrowings.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of RMB2,622,954,610.17 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,595,051,221.34), which were deposited overseas.

Interest income earned on bank current deposits is calculated by
using current deposit interest rate of the bank. The deposit periods
for fixed deposits vary from 7 days to 12 months depending on

the cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest income at

respective deposit interest rates of the bank.

MR 2019%F 6 A30H - A& H
HmEBESPRBEARK
5,886,944,245.13 7L (2018 4 12 A
318 : AK%3,830,014,282.907T)
FARMIEBRE - RITERLZR - 5/
BEEPRTFNRES  URARE
HAMGRITEROERFE -

MR2019%F6 A300 - "&EERKF
MRBEINEEESITAEARK
A& 2,622,954,610.17 7t ( 2018
F12A3MH : IEARER
1,595,051,221.347%) °

RITE B FFIRBRITE R TR X
BEHBWA - ERFROFHEAE
TRENBANE  kAKENRE
FRME » WIRIBAEE A RITF A
KRB BUA e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~& ff B % it 3 £ 2 EH H 5:

Statements (Continued) (%)
2. Financial assets held for trading 2. REMHEMEE
RMB
AR #r
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
HH 201946 H30H 201812 A31H
Classified as financial assets at fair value D3 AUA AL BETEBEHESH
through profit or loss FTAEHERNEREE
Incl.: Other debt investments Hep: HEBTARKRE 96,868,264.00 122,072,598.80
Warrants and cash compensation REEEFENRIBSHEHE - 189,752,130.38
Forward foreign exchange RHSME S 4
contracts 97,055,872.00 69,754,649.70
Cross currency swap and interest RXEME]R
rate swap instruments FMEFHTAE 219,789,053.25 85,236,433.51
Structured deposits and wealth EEMTERRIZMED
management products 6,144,537,089.04 3,648,383,787.84
Total &it 6,558,250,278.29 4,115,199,600.23
3. Notes receivable 3. EWEE
Classification of notes receivable EREED
RMB
AR T
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
H B 20196 H30H 2018 12A31H
Bank acceptance bills RITHEESR PN YRV LWENN  18,056,440,277.52
Commercial acceptance bills EEALESE 10,653,079.20 -

Total &5t 27,467,990,314.95 18,056,440,277.52




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

3.

Notes receivable (Continued)
Notes receivable pledged by the Group as at period end
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h A OF BB AR 3R BEH H AR
(A1)
3. BBREREGR)
R AR B B 0 BB R

RMB
ARBTT

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
201946 A30H 2018412 A831H

15,217,297,717.96 11,313,090,186.43
3,986,423.27 -

[tem

HH

Bank acceptance bills HRITHEH ER
Commercial acceptance bills EEANIESE
Total &&F

15,221,284,141.23 11,313,090,186.43

Notes receivable endorsed or discounted as at period end
and not yet expired as at the balance sheet date

HAAKEESEXMBAHE
EERBBRA BRI HNEK

e

RMB
AR¥T
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
201956 A30R 2018124318
Derecognized  Not derecognized Derecognized  Not derecognized
ARIFHER RELER BIERR RE LR
Bank acceptance bills RITEAESR 173,297,461.43 113,844,542.82 51,739,351.00
Commercial acceptance bills PEEALES - - 500,000.00

Total &Er 173,297,461.43

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had not transferred any notes
into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure in performance (31
December 2018: Nil).

113,844,542 .82 52,239,351.00

MR2019F6A30H ' AEBERLE
ANENBAMBEREBREKERN
=4 (20185128310 : &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
4. Accounts receivable
The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms,
and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new
customers. Credit period for credit customers is generally one to six

months. Accounts receivable is non-interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is

presented as follows:

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

i -G EHREEEIEH

(78)

4. FEWBRRX
FEERESHNE S EXAREAR
5AHE  A-—REXFELENZR
KSR ARFRET  BBEESD
EREBEEA1E6MEA - BUER
WEE -

== .

RIERAZAH - RREE

RMB
ARBT

Age 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
BRER 2019456 H30H 2018412 A831H
Within 1 year 15 AR 18,683,407,736.59 12,830,377,788.58
1 to 2 years 1FZE24F 432,283,850.12 369,976,898.67
2 to 3 years 2FEF3F 143,079,535.77 298,548,409.40
Over 3 years 3FLAE 1,110,914,112.71 1,081,174,541.83
Total at original amount REAE 20,369,685,235.19 14,580,077,638.48
Less: Provision for credit loss in respect & : FEU AR FR1S Rl 1B -1

of accounts receivable 1,605,498,231.59 1,424,714,144.28
Total at net amount FEAE EN/TREAEN I 13,155,363,494.20

Disclosure by category of provision for credit losses:

30 June 2019
2019%6A30R
Proportion
(")

(Gross carrying Provision for

Item amount credit losses

BB EagE HA(%) ERAXER

ERTHEDER
Bk

il

THEDERRR

Items assessed for expected credit losses

individually 2,881,806,689.37 1415 940,141,059.14

Items assessed for expected credt losses
by group with distinctive credt risk
characteristics 85.85

17,487,818,545.82 665,357,172.45

Tota = 20,369,685,235.19 100.00 1,605,498,231.59

S

R BRI A D B RE -

RMB
AR%T
31 December 2018
20185128318
Percentage (3ross carmying Proportion Provisonfor ~ Percentage
(%) amount (%) credit losses

(%)

i
)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4. FEWBRFX(E)
As at 30 June 2019, accounts receivable assessed for expected MR2019F6A30H - AEBEHETIHE
FEHERAEANERERBANT

credit losses individually are presented as follows:

RMB
ARET
Gross carrying Provision for

Customers amount credit losses  Percentage Reasons
EF BREEREE FREXER st B FHREH
Customer 1 139,866,808.83 139,866,808.83 100% Bad repayment ability
R EEELE
Customer 2 47,883,191.17 47,883,191.17 100% Bad repayment ability
EF2 EEELE
Customer 3 56,927,140.00 56,927,140.00 100% Long credit age
EF3 RERER
Customer 4 49,159,575.31 49,159,575.31 100% Bad repayment ability
24 MEsEn 2
Customer 5 40,516,068.59 38,490,265.17 95% Bad repayment ability
EP5 EEELE
Customer 6 37,449,568.86 35,577,090.42 95% Liquidation
EF6 DRFESH
Customer 7 44,376,120.65 34,613,374.10 78% Bad repayment ability
EBR7 EEELE
Customer 8 32,989,886.43 32,989,886.43 100% Assets have been
=P8 preserved

HEBEH
Customer 9 32,268,929.06 29,042,036.15 Litigation
EF9 EEN
Customer 10 26,400,747.00 26,400,747.00 Litigation
EF10 EEN
Others 2,374,028,653.47 449,190,944.56 Long credit age etc.
A RIRRZ

s Total 2,881,866,689.37 940,141,059.14

it
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

4. Accounts receivable (Continued)

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

As at 30 June 2019, the Group's accounts receivable for which

credit losses are provided for using aging analysis are presented as

follows:

Age

AR R

Within 1 year 1R
1 to 2 years 18227
2 to 3 years 2E3F
3 to 4 years 3E4F
410 5 years 454
Over 5 years S5F A E

Total

A5t

Carrying
amount
estimated

to be in default
At EEEN
HY BRI BR B

6,393,715,489.28
232,353,803.93
72,240,491.44
79,883,885.81
76,308,342.01
197,587,414.35

7,052,089,426.82

(

4

3i‘%§iﬁﬁ%ﬂ%§jﬂgﬁiﬁﬁyﬁ
B ()

M2019%F 6308 - KEBEFKAER
DATERTIRE 1B R E M B AR 3k

BRI :

30 June 2019
201956 H30H

Expected credit

loss rate (%)
FEHER
BRE(%)

3.83
16.64
31.31
51.38
94.80

100.00

RMB
ARBT

Expected credit
loss during

the entire
subsistence
EEFES
EHERBX

244,819,550.31
38,656,938.33
22,619,343.65
41,041,942.92
72,341,616.11
197,587,414.35

617,066,805.67




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
4,

Accounts receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the Group's accounts receivable for which
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credit losses are provided for using overdue ages as credit risk

characteristics are presented as follows:

Overdue age

papili

Not yet overdue or overdue 7k %0 B =t 780 H
for less than 90 days ANEIPS

Overdue for more than BEIRR 90K A
90 days but less than PNA180K
180 days

Overdue for more than BHIA R 180K
180 days

Total &t

Carrying
amount
estimated

to be in default
fhEtREEY
HY BR T 87 58

8,029,433,779.16

254,442,182.13

189,861,476.71

8,473,737,438.00

EA ‘ﬁéﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁigiﬁ ERER
4, R (A)

R2019F6 5308 © AEBEFEA B
BREIEAEARREBEGIREREX

ZE R ) R R BR SRS

30 June 2019
20196 H30H

Expected credit

loss rate (%)
EHEA
BRE(%)

IR

RMB
ARET

Expected credit

loss during
the entire
subsistence
EEFED
FEHEREBX

4,014,716.80

6,091,088.20

9,751,469.00

19,857,274.00

M2019F6A30R  AEBEARH
BENEKRFEASTIRIERBLE

As at 30 June 2019, provisions for credit losses for the Group’s

accounts receivable with good credit history are presented as

follows: HOERAT
RMB
AR T
30 June 2019
20196 H30H
Carrying Expected credit
amount loss during
estimated Expected credit the entire
Item to be in default loss rate (%) subsistence

fhErBAEEN AHER
HH __ e BERE(%)

BEFES
BAAERERX

1,961,991,681.00 28,433,092.78
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4, BRWIRM (&)
As at 30 June 2019, the top five balances in respect of accounts K2019F 6 A30H * AFEAT A B
receivable had a sum of closing balance of RMB1,926,857,835.10 WA RBEASTAARE
(31 December 2018: RMB1,179,592,972.06), accounting for 9.46% 1,926,857,835.10 70 (2018 F 12 A
(31 December 2018: 8.09%) of the total of closing balance of 318 : AK #1,179,592,972.06
accounts receivable. The closing balance in respect of credit losses L) MMEWBR IR BB AT H
provided for the top five amounted to RMB37,684,030.20 (31 B b ] £ 9.46% (2018 F 12 A 31
December 2018: RMB148,165,056.20). H :8.09%) Al R & HEIEN
EREXEBIHRBKERARE

37,684,030.20 7T (2018 F 12 A 31
H: AR%148,165,056.207T) °

Provision for credit losses: ERBEXEBNBR
RMB
AR BT
Change during the period
Adjustment for
Collected or Written off exchange
Item 31 December 2018 Provision reversed or eliminated differences 30June 2019
R 2018E12831R iR fiEgEm ERans 3k Ek S 2019%68308
Provision for credit losses ERRXES 142471414428 222,111,465.06 (38,016,146.61) (1,233,048 81) (2,078,18233)  IIERCEREIY
5. Receivable financing 5. BWHRERE
Classification of receivable financing EWHRIERE S
RMB
AR%T
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
HE 201946 HA30H 20185%12A31H

Bank acceptance bills at fair value AR

7 b, ’ ; : 3,144,753,155.72

Commercial acceptance bills f = '
at fair value . _ 20,719,975.00

Total — _ 3,165,473,130.72 BCElwry
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 /A1 HZE6H30H 1F A

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& ff I % it 3% 1 B IH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (#)
5. Receivable financing 5. BIWRERE
Receivable financing pledged by the Group as at period HIR AL E B EF /e W RIE
end BE
RMB
AR # T
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
BIgE| 20196 H30H 201812 A31H
Bank acceptance bills at fair value AR R BEFEHIRTT
AHER 1,208,556,604.96 685,453,059.89
Commercial acceptance bills AR BENENEE
at fair value G E SR 34,142,935.00
Total =R 1,208,556,604.96 719,595,994.89
Receivable financing endorsed or discounted as at period HRAGCSED S EXHIB AT
end and not yet expired as at the balance sheet date EEABGBRARAD A ER
HIEFE
RMB
AR T
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
2019%6830H 2018%12A31H
Derecognized Not derecognized Derecognized  Not derecognized
RIEER KRBT BALRER REFHER
Bank acceptance bills at fairvalue AR A BEEH
RITANEEZ 12,994,685,535.40 10,260,062,684.13 -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
6. Prepayments 6. FAFRIEA
An aging analysis of prepayments is presented as follows: T RIBRRESTAT
RMB
AR #r
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
201956 H30H 2018%12A31H
Proportion Proportion
Age Amount % Amount %
E &8 Bl % x| L f31%
Within 1 year 1R 944,282,463.39 95.00 1,081,507,314.55 97.50
110 2 years 1226 37,292,279.57 3.75 11,254,953.38 1.01
2 10 3 years 2535 7,397,788.75 0.74 10,001,118.20 0.91
Over 3 years 3FLE 5,023,774.65 0.51 6,463,927.04 0.58
Total &t 993,996,306.36 100.00 1,109,227,313.17 100.00
Description of the ages of prepayments: Prepayments with ages TERRIBREOFA - REBB14
over 1 year represent primarily those outstanding amounts prepaid WENFEETESRNEERREE
to suppliers for raw materials. B R REFR o
As at 30 June 2019, there was no significant prepayments with an MR2019F 6 A308 « EEEER —F MU
age of more than one year (31 December 2018: Nil). FREZFEMAKE(2018F 12 A 31
E B gﬁi\) )
As at 30 June 2019, the closing balances of the top 5 prepayments MR201946 A30H © %A A AW
amounted in aggregate to RMB212,255,352.49 (31 December ENRIBENHARABETRARE
2018: RMB204,295,626.77), representing 21.35% (31 December 212,255,352.497C (20184 12 A 31
2018: 18.42%) of the total closing balances of all prepayments at H: AR #%204,295626.777C) *
end. EHENREBERRAREAAHNLL

il 521.35% (2018412 A 31 8 :

18.42%) © S—
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1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 1R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
7. Other receivables 7. HibpEWER
Presented by categories SHEB| R

RMB
AR
ltem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
HH 201946 A30H 20184 12H31H
Interest receivable FE UG T B 84,932,723.66 23,747,780.97
Dividend receivable JFE 5 B ) 16,212,458.00 1,608,696.50
Other receivables A fE W R 892,856,462.91 1,061,792,046.56
Total A&t 994,001,644.57 1,087,148,524.03
Interest receivable JiE Uk A1) B
RMB
AR T
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
I8 B 201946 A30H 20184 12H31H
Fixed deposit TE BT 84,932,723.66 23,747,780.97
Other receivables are disclosed by ages as follows: H fth JE W TR BR R B B
RMB
AR T
Age 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
BR R 2019%6H30H 20184128318
Within 1 year SN 840,174,615.29 999,955,220.70
1 to 2 years | Z=9%E 20,099,454.98 36,423,129.01
2 to 3 years 2E34F 19,014,291.94 6,965,029.24
Over 3 years 3F B 61,243,550.19 65,772,478.95
Total at original amount REAET 940,531,912.40 1,109,115,857.90
Less: Provision for credit loss in respect J& : H fth UK IS B EE
of other receivables e — VRYLRVCW I 47,323.811.34

Total at net amount - REAE CEPRLT YN 1,061,792,046.56

= ——
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& ff B % i & £ 2 EH H 5: B

Statements (Continued) (%)
7. Other receivables (Continued) 7. BibpEWER(E)
Classification of other receivables by nature H o JE M R R B E S S
an
RMB
AR #r
Nature 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
Mg 2019%6A30H 20184128318
Reserve fund BERE 52,275,362.32 46,106,462.29
Corporate lending and payment EETEBRERER
on behalf 273,174,945.89 53,772,210.31
Deposit Bt 107,213,083.22 33,007,133.36
Others Hih 507,868,520.97 976,230,051.94
Total A&t 940,531,912.40 1,109,115,857.90
Provision for credit losses in respect of other receivables: HAh fE s B R EHNIER -
RMB
AR#¥T
Change during the period
THEH4E
Adjustment for
Collected Written off exchange
[tem 31 December 2018 Provision or reversed or eliminated differences 30June 2019
%R 2018812A318 i WO Em D7t N L E A 201956 A30H

Provision for credit losses EREREE 4732381134 11320064 (31,262.95) (400972.28) 670,672.74 47,675,449.49
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 1R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F B % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (78)
7.

7. Other receivables (Continued) Ht FE WK (4]
As at 30 June 2019, the top 5 other receivables are presented as 1201946 A30R « At EKAEH
follows: AIBEMT -
RMB
AR#T
Percentage of Closing balance
total other of provision for
Customers Closing balance receivables (%) credit losses
R e
BESHE RREXER
EF HRBE HILE Bl (%) #HE i HRGBE
First £—4% 66,053,650.00 7.02  Corporate lending Within 1 year
LEEER 150K
Second £-4 63,247,347.00 6.73 Deposit Within 1 year
fe k0
Third F=% 45,674,731.00 : Corporate lending Within 1 year
LEEER 150K
Fourth A 27,203,160.00 . Corporate lending Within 1 year
LETER k8
Fifth R 22,122,110.00 . Deposit Within 1 year
ik 1EUR
Total &t 224,300,998.00

8. Inventories
Classification of inventories

RMB
AR T

30 June 2019 31 December 2018

2019%6A308 2018812A318
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carying
Item amount decline in value amount amount decline in value amount
R REGE HEER REEE BHRE HEERE EHEE
Raw materials R 7,018,440,515.83 (367,550,869.72)  6,650,889,646.11 6,053,712,375.34 (302,09,688.44)  5,751,502,686.90
- Finished goods ER& 14,535,106,106.94 (619,146,571.05)  13,915959,535.89  IPARIAFVAEINE! (541,620,198.82)  12,094,527,731.32
OEM materials ZEMIiH 167,7111,171.18 (2,269,483.48) 165,441,687.70 298,473,716.91 (1,568,547.80) 296,905,169.11

Seff made semi-finished goods  EE£ M & K e :

and work in progress kEm 2,350,837,218.81 (8142394384) 226941327497  PREERAS VPRSI 1,872,861,061.25
Second-hand vehicles (KION) -~ —FE(KION) ~ IRSIERINEE L (113,028,463.90) 801,077,269.38 3,0 658,490,484.89
e — j‘_;_.—-"‘"' 24,986,200,746.04  (1,183,419,331.99)  23,802,781,414.05 416 (1,020,781,01069)  20,674,287,133.47
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3¢ 1 B0 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
8. Inventories (Continued) 8. ®E(#)
Provision for decline in value of inventories FEMEBERE
RMB
AR
Decrease during the period
st
Charge Adjustment
during for exchange
Item 31 December 2018 the period Reversal Write-off differences 30 June 2019
E 2018F12731R REER £[ 5382 i 201976730
Raw materials R (302,209,688.44) (90,414,887.15) 24,884,491.11 485,620.66 (PRI (367,550,869.72)
Finished goods ERm (541,620,198.82)  (208,661,966.34) 30,051,425.59 101,378,796.29 [PRIXYZNDIN (619,146,571.05)
OEM materials ERMIMH (156854780 (1,13336119) 724828 2517122 - (2,269,483.48)
Sef made semi-finished goods BRERAR
and work in progress EEM (82,367,019.00) (7,684,128.18) 5,881,988.74 2,750,408.85 (5,194.25) (81,423,943.84)
Second-hand vehicles -8 (93,015,556.63) (28,581,789.15) 8,568,881.88 - B (113,028,463.90)
Total At (1,020,781,01069)  (336,476,132.00) 69,394,035.60 105,040,003.02 (596,227.92)  [(REENEERENKL):
9. Contract assets 9. AREE
RMB
AR
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
BHH 2019%6H30H 20184 12H31H
Construction contracts BEAR 1,169,759,331.00 900,438,438.50
Others Hith 37,029,129.00 35,454,101.40
Total aEr 1,206,788,460.00 935,892,539.90
10. Non-current assets due within one year 10. " FAREHNERBEE
RMB
[tem _ . = cem|
HH

Finance lease receivables
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
11. Other current assets

[tem
BIgE|
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B ?ﬁ‘ﬁgﬁ;,ﬁjﬁﬁﬁigiﬁ SRR
1. RithBEE

RMB

AR BT

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

30 June 2019
201946 H30H

Prepaid expenses
Input tax credit to be deducted
Principal-protected fixed income wealth

management products

HHEM
PR HE AN 8

TR [ E Yk 2 B 38 B 2

594,745,627.84
1,065,969,998.53

386,732,428.41
1,021,920,182.99

2,489,990.50 -

Prepaid corporate income tax TR EMER 197,483,896.05 263,223,777.08
Others Hib 15,660,172.83 20,467,229.97
Total &5t 1,876,349,685.75 1,692,343,618.45
12. Long-term receivables 12. REAEIRK
RMB
AR #T
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
20195630 2018%12A318
@ross carrying Provision for Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
[tem amount impairment amount amount impairment amount
1BH REHE HEER REEE BESE WEEE SHEE
Finance lease receivables BEMERIF 10,771,029,894.93 10,771,029,894.93 9,456,985,259.80 - 9,456,985,259.80
Indl: Finance income notyet H KB E
realized e (912,415,874.00) (912,415,874.00) (845,829,077.80) - (845,829,077.80)
Sub-total et 9,858,614,020.93 9,858,614,020.93 8,611,156,182.00 - 8,611,156,182.00
Less: Finance lease receivables i : %A
classified as due within —ER
one year HEmEE
e 2460,158,423.00 2,460,158,423.00 2,127,858,173.40 - 2,127,858,173.40
Total SR 7,398,455,597.93 7,398,455,597.93 6,483,298,008.60 - 6,483,298,008.60

RERERB
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# ff B % it % 3 = 0EH B 5 5

Statements (Continued) (%)
13. Long-term equity investments 13. RERERE
RMB
ARET
Change during the period
5829
(Gains and losses

on investment Other Inct: Closing

Increase in Other Decrease in under equity comprehensive Declaration of provision for

Investee entity 31 December 2018 investments ncreases investments method income cash dividend 30 June 2019 impairment

ERET A ER

HREEN 20185124318 EinRE EfesEn HoRE RARE Efpads kvl 2019%6730A HEER

Joint ventures AdpE

Xi'an FC Inteligence Transmisson Co, BX ERE 428

Lt (Note ARAF(E) 10707021392 - - - 8354440 - o 10715375832 -

Assodiates BEt%

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co, Ltd. IEBEAEAERAR 482,987,715.09 - - - 13,198,979.31 - I 196,186,694.40 3
Shandong Heawy Industry Growp (IR E T £E3H 5%

finance Co, Ltd. BRAH 971,744,729.20 - - - 71515,176.76 - Bl 1.049,259,905.96 =

Ballard Power Systems Inc. BHEHNZGARLE 11235935824 - - - (26,248,194.78) (441382459 Bl 1.092,931,562.87 =

Other associates Hpmecs 1,778,195,072.68 209,631,181.72 - (56,956,02897) 59,175,252.3 (149193506)  (75,144,043.50) REIEFUELENII (44,844,091.33)

Total Bif 446359131313 209,631,181.72 = (56,956,028.97)  123,724,757.92 (5905759.65)  (75,144,04350) WESERTIRIINS (44,844,091.33)




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

13. Long

Note:

-term equity investments (Continued)

Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. (“Xi‘an FC") is held as
to 51% by the Group, and as to 4% and 45% by Shaanxi Fast Gear
Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd. (“Fast Gear Transmission”) and
Caterpillar (China) Investment Co., Ltd (“Caterpillar”) respectively. The
board of directors of Xi'an FC comprises seven directors, three of whom
being nominated by the Group, one being nominated by Fast Gear
Transmission and three being nominated by Caterpillar. According to the
articles of association of Xi‘an FC, board resolutions require unanimous
approval or approval by substantially all directors, and thus Xi‘an FC is a
joint venture of the Group.

Provision for impairment of long-term equity investments is presented as
follows:
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EA ~ﬁgﬁ;,ﬁjﬁ$ﬁﬁiglﬁ SRR
13, BRI (1)

AEBBEALEHFEEEDHERA
AIUATEBIARER )51 %RE -
SHONR R AR LTS ESEE
EREFAR(ATHEHBIELEE
B MEHFEEH(PER)IREGRRAA
(ATERIREES])  RES A
4% M45% c MREREEGHLE
EEMAK AP -ZmAEEET -
—EBETHEHET  BHI=FH
THEHET  BEALXERQARE
BT ZEFEREAFTEZEFE2RE
RERBRZHAERA  ALALE
FEBEBRAEEEERE -

RHBRELEREEENER

RMB
AR#T
Increase Decrease Adjustment
during the during the  for exchange
Investee entity 31 December 2018 period period differences 30 June 2019
ERER
REREEM 2018 12A31H AERSE AERA okl 201966 A30H
Zhuzhou Auto Trading Market HWNAER 55 284,499.56 - - - 284,499.56
Torque Turbine Engine Co. Torque Turbine
Engine Co. 4,559,591.77 = - - 4,559,591.77
Chongging Yunyang Automobile & E[5 /& 8k
Manufacturing Company Limited AR A &) 40,000,000.00 - - - 40,000,000.00
Total At 44,844,091.33 - - - 44,844,091.33

14. Investment in other equity instruments

14. HtERTARE

RMB
AR#T
Dividend income for the period
RERAUPA
Fair value change

taken to other Equity instruments Equity
comprehensive Proportion of derecognized instruments
Investee entity Cost income Fair value shareholding in this period held

Zifst ARl BRI
Fa R kL
HREEN KR ArEERR AREE FRLH ERIE BHIA

XCMG Construction BIEETEMENR

Machinery Co., Ltd. RABRAR = =

Beigi Foton

Motor_Co,LId
- __Oiﬁer: ——

11954027314 2
Bl —




164  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. M4 IR HERA T

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 & F M %+ FEIEH 3B
Statements {(Continued) (%

15. Other non-current financial assets 15. EtvERBEeMEE

RMB
N -
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
HE 201946 H30H 201812 A31H
Financial assets at fair value through WAREBEFEBHEEHTA
profit or loss for the current period EHEENEREE
Other debt investments HiEK T ARE 207,986,919.00 184,715,621.34
Cross currency swap and interest rate % X & ¥ H # & F| =
swap contracts A4 17,385,008.00 8,233,791.06
Total At 225,371,927.00 192,949,412.40
16. Investment property 16. REMEME
Subsequent measurement under the cost model: HAKARNEITREE -
RMB
AR ¥T
Houses and
[tem buildings Land use rights
=S EEEEY T b fEFRE
. Gross carrying amount — - RERE
31 December 2018 and 2018F12A318 K
30 June 2019 201946 A30H 799,546,669.04 66,359,171.84 865,905,840.88
Il. Accumulated depreciation = « ZEHITE M
and amortization
31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 248,200,161.36 10,798,547.27 258,998,708.63
Provision for the period AREAETER 20,730,097.66 756,381.47 21,486,479.13
30 June 2019 201996 A30H 268,930,259.02 11,554,928.74 280,485,187.76
lll. Accumulated impairment =+ REHR{EXEE
provision
31 December 2018 and 2018F 128318 &
30 June 2019 201946 A30H 13,447,824.67 13,447,824.67
IV. Carrying amount M- REEE
30 June 2019 201946 A30H 517,168,585.35 54,804,243.10 571,972,828.45
31 December 2018 201812 A31H 537,898,683.01 55,560,624.57 593,459,307.58
17. Fixed assets 17. BEEE
Presented by categories DR

[tem
1HEH

Fixed Assets
Disposal of fixed assets

EEAE
EEA

Total

30 June 2019

201956 A30H
23,106,596,969.04

2,904,062.44

23,109,501,031.48

-
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
17. Fixed assets (Continued)
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17. BREE (F)

Fixed assets & E B EBR
RMB
AT
Forklift trucks Forklift trucks
Houses, and equipment and equipment
buildings and Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out
Item [and use rights equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short-term) Others
BEERENR fihRE fthne
&R TifER BERE 73R B4Rk BB (RH) R (EH) 0]
|, Gross camying amount - KERE
31 December 2018 20185128318 1317405471866 17,513,934,026.94 1,275,629,557.41 418,859,869.70 554898570194 88783619914  2473349.269.16  49,283,175,140.01
Hiectof changes instandards ~ £8|£F &2 (44,195,993.60) (70,586,463.50) - - (38307746%048)  (5766,665,636.45) (350,107,289.50)  (9,862,330,073.53)
1 January 2019 01951418 13129,858,725.06  17,443,347,563.44 1,275,629,557.41 418,859,869.70 1918,211,011.46 3,111,696,359.69 212324197966 39,420,845,066.48
Increase during the period FRENeE
Addtion B2 92,040,043.37 13822945223 14,785,742.86 20,311,002.79 2,148,994,146.80 1,374,241,866.43 14882045224 3937,422,706.72
Tranfer from construction-in-~—~ EETREA
progress 203,274,348.73 213,113,761.89 192,977,330.61 12,376,625.90 26,253,514.67 647,995,581.80
Dectease during the period FHR)LE
Disposals or retirements RELHE (583,467.20) (133,722,082.99) (7,985,467.3) (14,995,607.13) (574,151,745.43) (891,494.720.70) (1791632347)  (1,640,849,414.15)
Trnsfertoassetsheld forsle ~ EABBEEEE (25,996,821.86) (44,125351.24) (122,559.22) (10,25641) - - (1,089,874.05) (71,344,862.78)
Adjustment for exchange EXzERE
differences 92413591 472247256 3410640 13043447 40,922,848.79 9,032,882.75 3,844,353.08 59,611,233.96
30June 2019 201964308 13399,516,964.01  17,621,565,815.89 1,475,318,710.89 436,672,069.32 3,533,976,261.62 3,603,476,388.17 228315410213 42,353,680,312.03
Il Accumulated depreciation =~ Z3H47E
31 December 2018 20188128318 3,485,453,015.59  11,105,697,584.69 1,078,430,904.94 333,087,306.08 611,331,137.84 1,754,440,383.77 102717687698  19,395,617,209.89
Fffectof changes instandards 28| £F /2 (25,087,878.70) (38,249,276.06) - - (400,002,043.98)  (1,131,555,876.55) (982494253 (1,693,144,5005)
1 January 2019 201951718 3,460,365,136.89  11,067,448,308.63 1,078,430,904.94 333,087,306.08 211,329,093.86 622,884,507.22 928927,451.75  17,702,472,709.37
Increase during the period FHENeE
Provision it 289,230,670.67 753,392,817.50 78,610,690.73 1823487082 87,322,406.59 204,052,998.66 207,570538.14 1,638,414,993.11
Dectease during the period KHEOEE
Disposals or retirements RENHE = (77,509,637.08) (6,392,448.60) (13,252,039.45) (92,875,754.63) (279,813,810.70) (8557,425.13) (478,901,115.59)
Trnsfertoassetsheld forsle ~ EABBEEEE (14,069,429.78) (32,056,989.00) (118,882.44) (9948.72) - - (852,323.34) (47,107,5713.28)
Adjustment for exchange EfzERE
differences 6,894,984.97 8,475,488.91 22,603.63 65,846.94 6,227,628.80 983,701.16 3,116,249.78 25,786,504.19
30June 2019 201964308 374242136275 11,719,749,988.96 1,150,052,868.26 338,126,035.67 212,003374.62 548,107,396.34 113020449120 18,840,665,517.80
II. Provsion for mpaiment = » iEE(E
31 December 2018 and WIBENAINIBR
1 January 2019 201951518 203,229,27030 194,014911.64 7,124,815.25 58455.59 2,942,731.50 23,118,145.50 4,030,59.90 434518,932.68
Proviion it - 17111426 - - - - - 71,1426
Disposals or retirements REAHE (345,474.38) (25,677,285.60) (112,139.92) (116.00 = (268,701.70) (1,667,109.25) (28,070,826.85)
Adjustment for exchange EXzERE
differences 8,584.70 (93,514.10) - - (11,362.50) (94,156.80) (10,946.20) (201,394.90)
30 June 2019 2019%6A308 202,892,380.62 168,415,226.20 7,012,675.33 5833959 2,931375.00 22,755,287.00 2,352,541.45 406,417,825.19
I, Canying amount BEEEE
— 31-December2_018 . . - :_..-— 9,485,372,432.11 6,214,221,530.61 190,073,837.28 8571410803 4,934711,826.60 7,100,803,466.87 1,442,141,795.28  29,453,038,997.44
1_Jinua 20 [ 9,466,264,317.87 6,181,884,343.17 190,073,837.28 85,714,108.03 1,703,939,180.10 2,465,693,706.97 1190,283,931.01 21,283,853 424.43
. _ ) B 9,454,203,220.64 5,733,400,600.73 318,253,167.30 98,487,694.06 3,319,041,512.00 1,150597,089.48  23,106,596,969.04

3,032,613,704.83
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
17. Fixed assets (Continued) 17. BEEE (&)
Fixed assets which are temporarily idle are presented as follows: TRRNEMNBEEESEMNT

RMB
AR BT
Gross Accumulated Provision for
[tem carrying amount depreciation impairment ~ Carrying amount
HE RE Rt E HEER REEE
Houses and buildings and  ERE#EZE% K&

land use rights TR 395,038,739.24 85,351,717.58 51,041,32555  258,645,696.11
Machinery and equipment #2355 191,413,200.64 95,216,774.29 53,785,804.73 42,410,621.62

Electronic equipment BFHRE 38,056,961.81 29,950,095.73 6,951,803.45 1,155,062.63
Transportation equipment BRRE 848,519.50 770,900.89 - 77,618.61
Others Hiik 265,293.44 257,175.73 = 8,117.71

Total B 625,622,714.63 211,546,664.22 111,778,933.73 302,297,116.68

Carrying amount of fixed assets leased out under operating lease is wEHERHEETEERAEBEAT !

presented as follows:

RMB

AR #T

[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018

HH 2019%6A30H 20184 12A31H

Houses and buildings and land use rights = & 2 %) & £ i FT A #E 3,520,833.06 3,973,642.98

Electronic equipment B 2,449.49 2,449.49

Machinery and equipment 23R 38,995,716.20 119,023.30

Vehicles E T A 189,254.58 -
Forklift trucks and equipment leased out 78 i #) X & M & & (K H)

(long-term) 3,319,041,512.00 4,934,711,826.60
Forklift trucks and equipment leased out 7 H &) X 25 % 35 25 (42 HA)

(short-term) 3,032,613,704.83 7,100,803,466.87

Total a5 - (FeicZacloe Ry OR[N 12,039,610

- _:-:'_
As at 30 June 2019, fixed assets for v

had not obtained real estate cg_rti_ﬂ"'
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)

17. Fixed assets (Continued) 17. BEEEE(E)
As at 30 June 2019, fixed assets with a carrying amount of M2019F 6 A30H » AEEBE
RMB506,925,842.26 (31 December 2018: RMB524,775,451.64) mEEA AR 506,925,842.26
were pledged for securing bank borrowings of the Group, among 7L (20184 12 A31 8B : AR
which the pledge over fixed assets with a carrying amount of 524,775,451.6470) K [E E & E A
RMB458,119,916.49 had yet to be registered. Fixed assets with RIEBEERITER - Ef - @
a carrying amount of RMB143,285,610.00 (31 December 2018: EEAARMA458,119,916.49 LK)
RMB143,841,009.00) was pledged to guarantee the obligations BEEEE  WRBEERZZ K
under the staff retirement benefit. BREEE A AR 143,285,610.00

L (2018F 12 A31H + AR
143,841,009.000) WEFEEAR
HETRAKBR THEBRERER -

18. Construction in progress 18. EEIRE

RMB
AR T

Item 30 June 2019 31 December 2018

L 2019%6830R 2018£12A31H
Gross Provision for Carrying (ross Provision for Carrying
carrying amount impairment amount carrying amount impairment amount
RanE HEESE RaRE FEAE %R FEERA
Hande project EEEE 565,416,843.24 565,416,843.24 285,24394371 - 285,24394371
Transmission project EyEE 344,712,034.16 344,712,034.16 240,852,744.16 - 240,852,744.16

Production ine construction and FEERINEAR

renovation project 349,112,295.01 - 349,112,295.01 334,66,30043 - 334,66,80043
Factory area renovation project BEYEER 271,806,978.22 (59,515,308.59) 212,291,669.63 29487994987 (59,515,308.59) 235,364,641.28
Trialplatform renovation project ARANEER 88,373,288.98 88,373,268.98 40,239,802.21 - 40,239,802.21
Others =0 2,968,877,210.63 (4727,672.83) 2,964,149,597.80 1,713,888 410.66 (4727,672.83) 1,709,160,737.83
Materials used in construction TiZnA 1,942,027.03 1,942,027.03 2972,510.00 - 2972,510.00

Total Aif 4,590,240,731.2 (64.242,98142)  4,525,997,755.85 291234422104 (64242,98142)  2,848,101,239.62
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Statements (Continued) (#)
18. Construction in progress (Continued) 18. EEIRE(HE)
Movement in key construction-in-progress is presented as follows: FEAEIREFHUT -
RMB
N -
Actual
Fived asset costs as a
Increase transferred percentage
Opening during in during Other Closing Source of  of budget
Item balance the period the period decrease balance funding (%)

IRAA
KHEA L
EH B S8 K880 BEEE BReE EERE  HAIC)

Hande project EREE Internal fund
- Hande Phase 3 -EE-H 12387640000  162,869,23857  179,795,350.63 - 342,664589.20 HEES
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (%)
19. Right-of-use assets 19. EFEEE
RMB
AR #BT
Forklift trucks Forklift trucks
and equipment and equipment
Houses and Machinery and leased out leased out
[tem buildings equipment (long-term) (short-term) Others
HHNXER HHHWXER
%8 BEREEY KERE RE(RH) R (12H) A
I Gross carrying amount - EARE
1 January 2019 01981718 3,839,410,663.80 69,401,521.20 3,630,774,690.48 5766,665,636.45  1,614307,31950  14920,559,831.43
Increase during the period KEEN 314,701,687.84 84,449.20 - - 271,810,542.69 586,596,679.73
Decrease during the period TEED (225,356,528.80) - (587,221,350.80) (358,471,499.60) (175,139.963.60)  (1,346,189,342.80)
Adjustment for exchange EiZERE
differences 1,782,048.41 (266,435.40) (25,220,416.86) (20,093,613.61) (2,200,936.21) (45,999,353.67)
30 June 2019 2019564308 3,930,537,871.25 69,219,535.00 3,018,332,922.82 5,388,100,523.24 1,708,776,962.38 14,114,967,814.69
I Acumulated depreciaion =~ 5tH7E
1 January 2019 20191518 1,749,379,211.85 30,518,149.70 400,002,043.98 1,131,555,876.55 754,219,697.60 4,065,674,979.68
Provision it 208,507914.3 4,706,123.60 390,088,992.48 582,329,450.10 213,828,700.18 1,399,461,180.59
Decrease during the period AH5ED (113,384,566.80) - (395,068,712.00) (235,160,313.20) (158,687,724.00) (902,301,316.00)
Adjustment for exchange EREEDE
diferences (1,509,888.68) 22,519.70 (2,386,514.68) 4071,110.76 (704,271.45) (466,984.35)
30 June 2019 2019864308 1,842,992,670.60 35,246,853.00 392,675,809.78 1,482,79,124.21 808,656,402.33 4,562,367,859.92
I, Provision for impairment = HERE
1 January 2019 01981718 5.289,080.19 193043580 7,219,515.99
Provision iR - - -
Decrease during the period AL = = =
Adjustment for exchange EiEERE
differences (20422.19) (7,453.80) (27,875.99)
30 June 2019 2019867308 5,268,658.00 1922,982.00 7,191,640.00
V. Camying amount mBEEE
30 June 2019 2019564308 2,082,276,542.65 33,972,682.00 2,625,657,113.04 3,905,304,399.03 898,197,578.05 9,545,408, 314.77
1 January 2019 01951718 2,084,742.311.76 38,883,371.50 3,230,772,646.50 4,635,109,759.90 858,157,186.10  10,847,665,335.76
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Statements (Continued) (#)
20. Intangible assets 20. B EE
RMB
AR BT

Trademark Customer

Item Land use rights Patents Tights License Software ~ Orders on hand relationship Others
%R THERE ERE BEERE Kt g ET) ZFEE if

| Goscmingamount — — EERE

31 December 2018 PUTEEEDERTIEI 193432896700 127116478780 766100145879 87775290354  S3176505958 29254922735 10468,982,387.80  7,185.84047989 30,223,385,271.81
Additon EE 21,947,321.50 - - 781538900 8913254454 - - 29776000198 49299396402
Internal R8D e - 10447,00000 - - UMTTNE 447947928
Disposals and retiements ~ REHE (14,085,405.08) (141,292.83) (850633760 (52,412,24440) (166,672,01200)  (241,817,291.91)
Adustmentforexchange B} £EH8

differences 68389781 (71391478)  (2834453279) 15,025.94 (16582496) (132142313 TO6797TIS5 1051050244 (14.263.29192)
30 June 2019 2019568308 194887978129 1278756,580.19 763265692600  ATAIS48788  SGB3195T6  291,227,80422 1047605036535  7,361,786,965.13  30,505,093,444.82

Accumulated amortzation = + Z3HE: 4

31 December 2018 2185127318 296,002,88439  771,191,525.47 298645531 51267882053  182,65352307 13041427870  2711,370,551.82  1,571,904777.03  6,200,202,816.32
Provision iR 19,900,101.28 45,445,059.21 941711548 112,501,688.80 11,436,523.28 6,947.866.00 35371074305 32276793841  873,651,635.51
Disposals or retirements RESRR (1,513,400.39) (1472.75) = (8506,337.60)  (20,175,681.60) = - (146,504,007.60)  (176,700,899.94)
Adustments forexchange ~ Ej ZE8%

(ifferences - (827,223.65) 1,142,502.31 (4.259,761.94) (465,057.54) (377,036.70) 6,962,545.36 3,544,586.86 5,720,554.70
30 June 2019 2019568308 31438958528 815,807,888.28 2607067310 61241440979 17344930721 13698510800  3,072,043840.23  1,751,713294.70  6,902,874,106.59

Il Provision for impaiment =+ E%R

31 December 2018 20185124318 67,486,780.00 7,282,294.22 6,254,298.10 1952408240 54941463138 73,764,62002  723726,706.12
Adustmentsforexchange B} #EH%

differences (260,580.00) (28,118.40) (24,149.10) (75,386.40) (2,121,400.14) (284,820.00) (2,794,454.04)
30 June 2019 2019%6A308 67,226,200.00 7,254175.82 6,230,149.00 19.44869.00 54729323124 7347980002 720932,252.08

N, Netaryingamount 10 BEHE
30 June 2019 2019568308 163449019601 46294869191  7,539,360,05290 32774690227 388,640,085 13479400022  6856,713,293.88  5,536,593,870.41 22,881,287,086.15

31 December 2018 2018512A318 163832608267 49997326233 756952822348 35779178879 34285723841 1426108665 7.208197,20460  5,540,171,08284  23,299,455,749.37

As at 30 June 2019, intangible assets with carrying amount of R2019F 6 A30R '+ AEE IR
RMB244,888,879.92 (31 December 2018: RMB247,596,065.82) HEMEA AR 244,888,879.92
were pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group. 7t (2018F 12 A31H : AR

As at 30 June 2019, the intangible 2‘  for which the Group ~ 7A2019%
had not obtained title certificates had a carr ' =T
RMB55,416,853.22, for which the Group v S i
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20. Intangible assets (Continued) 20. B EE (&)
Other than the finite useful life of some of the trademarks held BAREZ T RAIEANID EIEE
by the subsidiaries of the Company, trademarks of the Group AEmERIN  "EBEMEIZESR
are renewable every 10 years at minimal cost. The management TEBARGERARNEE N - NEH
of the Group are of the opinion that the Group has both the ERERE AEBBEEBRAESENT
intention and ability to renew the trademarks continuously. As ETEBZENIE - B ERER
a result, the useful life of the trademarks is considered by the KABAREBEARESRANERE W
management of the Group as indefinite because the trademarks are It AEBEERERAZEHIRFEH
expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash inflows indefinitely. ENTHETE BIEZSHENFEMA
The trademarks will not be amortized unless their useful life is FRWRATAER TR TSETE#
determined to be finite. i e

21. Expenditure on development 21. ¥ H

Capitalization of expenditure on development starts when
the development stage is reached. Capitalized expenditure on

development of the Group is presented as follows:

BB HEDRERBRORERS
BARL  REBERMEOFE L0
T

171

RMB
AR T
Decrease during the period
)
Increase during Recognition
the period of intangible
Item 31 December 2018 Internal R&D assets  Other changes 30 June 2019
20185 AHEm 2019%
i 12A31R hABREE  RREFEE 0L 1 6A308
Improvement project on driver's cabin B Z B R 48,073,714.39 3,666,290.11 - - 51,740,004.50
Hydraulics project REER 297,506,837.60 27,254,060.00 34,347,792.82 1,277,908.78 289,135,196.00
Others £t 94,567,671.17 28,320,479.41 10,447,000.00 = 112,441,150.58

Total A 440,148,223.16 59,240,829.52 44,794,792.82 1,277,908.78  453,316,351.08
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Statements (Continued) (%8)
22. Goodwill 22. B8
RMB
ARET
Increase during
the period
business
combination
not involving Adjustment
entities under Decrease during Provision for for exchange
[tem 31 December 2018 common control the period impairment differences 30June 2019 Asset group unit
KB
018 *A-247 20198
&R 128318 s i Ly i EHE EfZEaE 64308 EEfAL
Merger with TAGC AfRAE 293,154,852.68 29315485268
Merger with Linde Hydraulc afiEREAELE
GmbH & Co.KG 832,315,206.84 (5,134372.93) 827,18083391
Merger with KION AfKion 6,644,633,110.72 (1575446790)  6,628,878,642.8
Merger wih Egemin Automation nc. & Egemin Automation
Retrotech Inc. Dematic Group Inc. Retrotech Inc.
Dematic Group 15,099,633,408.60 1051362840 15,170,147,037.00
Others i 167,649,717.20 (1,694,807.20) 165,954.910.00
Tod &it 23,037,386,296.04 9998037 1308531627641
The change in provision for impairment of goodwill was as follows: EMEREEENESHIT
RMB
AR#® T
Increase during Decrease during
Item 31 Dcember 2018 the period the period 30 June 2019
L 20185124318 AEM AR 2019%6A30R
Merger with TAGC AFRNE 238,071,400.00 238,071,400.00
Balance as at 30 June 2019 mainly represented goodwill arising 200196 A 0OE M EREELTE S
from merger with TAGC, Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG, KION, ASOEHRANE  MERES B E -
Egemin Automation Inc., Retrotech Inc. and Dematic Group. KION * Egemin Automation Inc. *
Goodwill arising from merger would be allocated to asset group - Retrotech Inc.#Dematic Groupifi
units to test for impairment on an annual basis. — K £ (8] 45 4F [ 4 B 3% ¢

Further, the carrying amount of the trad_e_'n'_\_aﬂ(-j@ﬁ N A :
useful life comprised in the intangible assets in Nof va: e K A 8] 4 A &
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22. Goodwill (Continued)
Carrying amount of material goodwill and trademarks is allocated

to the following asset group units as follows:

o asset group unit A: manufacture and sale of engines and

related parts

o asset group unit B: major automobile components other than

automotive and engines
o asset group unit C: manufacture of hydraulic pumps,
hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and other

components

o asset group unit D: forklift trucks production and

warehousing technology services

o asset group unit E: Intelligent supply chains and automation

solutions

The carrying amount of material goodwill and trademark are

allocated to the asset group units as follows:

Asset group units

BEMS
30 June 2019
2019%6H30R
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Asset group unit A BEARAA -
Asset group unit B BEMREAB 293,154,852.68
Asset group unit C BEEMABAC 827,180,833.91
Asset group unit D BEMAAD 6,628,878,642.82
Asset group unit E 15,170,147,037.00

Total = | 22,919,361,366.41

Carrying amount of goodwill

BENREEE

31 December 2018

6,644,633,110.72
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22. BE (&)
EEHERBRNEALBHIREA
EREABHERNT -

e EEMAMAAA EERHEHR
B AR T BT

o EEMBAAB: REREDHI
M EBETE

e RFREHMAC: EEREXR -
REBZE  BRERM - EH R
He Tt

e HEEMHMED: XNBEEERE
& 2100 AR 75

e HBEMMAAE: ZeeftEEME
BLBRTTZ

EEREMBENERASREOEEE
EARANERNT

RMB
ARET

Carrying amount of trademark
BENEESH

30 June 2019 31 December 2018

2018%12A31H 2019%6A30AH 2018%12H31H
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(BE%) (RBER) (BE%)

- 116,392,004.00 116,422,784.00
293,154,852.68 94,197,000.00 94,197,000.00
832,315,206.84 = =
4,541,056,562.10 4,600,495,319.60
2,738,685,950.00 2,751,067,197.50

7,490,331,516.10 7,562,182,301.10
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Statements (Continued) (#)

23. Long-term prepaid expenses 23. REFHBER

RMB
AR T
Increase Amortization
31 December during during Other Provision for 30 June
Item 2018 the period the period decrease impairment 2019
2018% 2019%
Y 12A318 M rHBH ) HEER 6A308
Industrial mould fee TEREE 172,114,053.52 3305435230  (17,927,828.81) 187,240,577.01
Industrial equipment fee ThigaE 30,336,986.72 9,154,408.61 (8,960,434.42) 30,530,960.91
Expenditure on improvementof ~ FAAEEE7E

fixed assets leased in BRI 26,008,094.61 1,972,574.93 (3,191,466.21) (73,746.85) 24,715,456.48
Total At 228,459,134.85 44181,335.84  (30,079,729.44) (73,746.85) 242,486,994.40

24. HFERBEE

24. Other non-current assets

RMB

AR

[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018

HAH 2019%6H30H 201812 A31H

Scheme assets under defined benefit plan  REX et 2| 25121 E E 280,528,679.00 261,024,739.90
Prepayments for construction A TRRRER

equipment 134,021,501.78 86,137,309.89

Input tax credit to be deducted ARk EIA T 5 154,732,956.45 -

Others Hih 5,785,163.77 8,734,580.24

Total aar 575,068,301.00 355,896,630.03
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 /A1 HZE6H30H 1F A

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# ff B % it % 3 2 EH B 5 5

Statements (Continued) (7)

25. Short-term loans 25. SEHIE R
RMB
AR® T
ltem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
HH 201946 A30H 2018412 831H
Pledged borrowings (Note 1) HAE R (ED) 360,000,000.00 360,000,000.00
Credit loans ERER 8,672,556,671.76 5,112,765,901.24
Total &5t 9,032,556,671.76 5,472,765,901.24
Note 1: Among the short-term loans, RMB360,000,000.00 (31 December 1 RHEE KR A KRB 360,000,000.00
2018: RMB360,000,000.00) represented the loan secured by the 7L (2018 F 12 A31H : AR®
pledge of fixed deposit of RMB421,060,000.00 (31 December 2018: 360,000,000.00 7t ) A A& A @ Z
RMB421,060,000.00) by Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang Motor Co., Ltd., a FTRARAFEAEERRAM
subsidiary of the Company, to Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., HERTEEBABESITERAR
Ltd. Urumgi branch. # 421,060,000.00 7T &) 5 #3 17 B

B (2018F 1283180 AR¥
421,060,000.007T) °

As at 30 June 2019, the above loans carried interest at rates ranging 2019668308 « Ll &m0 F F
0.68%~4.785% (31 December 2018: 0.60%~4.35%) per annum. R 50.68%~4.785% (201844 12 A
31H : 0.60%~4.35%) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

26. Financial liability held for trading

26 XREGMEmBE

RMB

AR T

[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
5H 201946 A30H 2018412 A31H

Forward foreign exchange contracts
Cross currency swap and interest rate

swap instruments

EHINER K

RNEEEHENEE®RTA

43,853,585.05

100,925,887.58

52,106,601.75

161,329,163.72

Total A&t 144,779,472.63 213,435,765.47
27. Notes payable 27. BN RE

RMB

ARE T

Item 30 June 2019 31 December 2018

p=f= 20196 H30A 201812 A31H
Bank acceptance bills RITHEFER PARERVONEEN M 15,861,193,413.57
Commercial acceptance bills PEAHESR 84,191,864.19 63,822,851.51

Total A& PARMVYAISKVVX:VIN 15,925,016,265.08

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had no outstanding notes payable

which were due (31 December 2018: Nil).

R201946 8300 » A& E & 2|H K
THENZE(2018F 128318

&) o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
28. Accounts payable

29
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o O B R B H H kR

(%)
28. EIR

30 June 2019
201946 H30H

32,157,593,902.42
4,882,133,495.72
250,954,135.85
538,487,837.01

ltem

IHH

Within 3 months 31 A LA

3 to 6 months 3@ A =61E A
6 to 12 months 6@ A =121EA
Over 12 months 1218 A LA £
Total A&t

37,829,169,371.00

Accounts payable are non-interest bearing, and are generally settled

within three to four months.

As at 30 June 2019, there was no payable which was material and

aged over one year (31 December 2018: Nil).

. Contract liabilities

J& 5 IR SR A &R

ARBE -

RMB

AR T

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

25,790,622,056.71
3,587,333,365.53
832,856,320.45
658,543,192.16

30,869,354,934.85

CABEEIEAME

MR2019F6 A30H @ EERE —F I L
MEZMEMNKIE(2018F 12 A31

B &) -

29. AR

30 June 2019
201946 HA30H

[tem

B H

Construction contracts 2EAR

Sales and other services $HEE I E b AR 75

2,551,930,003.00
5,179,887,260.00

Total =T

7,731,817,263.00

RMB
ARBTT

31 December 2018
2018412 A831H

3,913,731,012.80
4,808,712,031.00

8,722,443,043.80
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V.
Statements (Continued)
30. Payroll payable

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

31 December

S5 ik A W R ()

20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

G OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

30. FE{FER T 5 oM

Increase during

the period
A HE i

9,530,231,018.36

2,059,985,082.27
55,180,797.54

42,040,347.20

70,513,224.50

ltem 2018
ER 2018% 124311
Short-term remuneration R E B 4,518,125,721.28
Post-employment benefits (defined BBk 14 @ F|

contribution plan) (FRERfFsE) 488,060,483.62
Severance benefits BHREF 105,502,797.68
Cash-settled share-based payment due —4 R Z| 4R 4

within 1 year HEENRBIH 48,394,299.10
Other long-term payroll due within 1 —4 R 2| ER &) E

year REBIHM 24,583,311.51
Total At 5,184,666,613.19

11,757,950,469.87

Short-term remuneration is presented as follows:

31 December

Decrease during
the period
KHHD

9,660,429,264.32

2,069,395,897.56
59,337,208.02

45,877,746.30

68,110,161.10

11,903,150,277.30

REFmMT

Increase during
the period
AHE

2018
2018%12A31R
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and I%. %%

subsidies RN 3,607,173,976.02

Staff welfare BIRMNE 25,871,978 31

Social security teRRE 102,573,230.73

Incl: Medical insurance He o BERRE 71,269,298.47

Work injury insurance TERRE 16,106,196.03

Maternity insurance EERRE 1,154,223.99
Supplementary medical insurance BREERR 14,043512.24 |
Housing funds FEAES |

Labor union operating funds and
yEEE
ERERFH

employee education costs

Other short-term remuneration

—
TEERNBI

8,009,433,161.33
188,885,355.53
890,131,916.44
785,198,182.20
59,629,380.96
9,858,703.94
35,445,649.34
185,459,364.56

89,751,594.47
166,569,626.03

|

Decrease during
the period
THED

8,200,897,678.93
176,451,799.07
898,419,180.89
791,113,125.65
58,980,231.83
9,824,397.78
38,501,425.63
195,930,053.41

54,972,227.62
133,758,324.40

9,660,429,264.32

RMB
ARBTT

30 June 2019
20196 H30H

4,387,927,475.32

478,649,668.33
101,346,387.20

44,556,900.00

26,986,374.91

5,039,466,805.76

RMB
ARETT

30 June 2019
2019%6A30H

3,415,709,458.42

38,305,534.77
94,285,966.28
65,354,355.02
16,755,345.16

1,188,530.15
10,987,735.95
21,936,720.99

596,192,860.77
221,496,934.09

4,387,927,475.32
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
30. Payroll payable (Continued)

31.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan) is presented as

(%)

30. BB TE (&)

BERR A (RERFEDWT -

follows:
RMB
AT
31 December Increase during Decrease during
ltem 2018 the period the period 30 June 2019
BH 2018124318 R HRD 201956 A30H
Basic pension insurance EAEEZRK UNERS WAl 1,623,523,721.99  1,622,742,121.15 404,772,341.07
Unemployment insurance KRERBRE 16,099,467.62 157,271,851.97 156,053,972.14 17,317,347.45
Contribution to pension fund rEFYE 67,970,269.17 279,189,508.31 290,599,797.67 56,559,979.81
Total il 438,060,483.62 2,059,985,082.27 2,069,395,897.56 478,649,668.33

Taxes payable

ltem
HH

31. EXHE

30 June 2019
201956 H30H

RMB
ARBTT

31 December 2018
2018412 A831H

Corporate income tax RS 1,441,861,196.71 1,285,612,434.69
Value-added tax O E T 665,549,632.76 848,008,328.66
Individual income tax (EPNGIEEY 218,798,637.24 225,248,076.47
Property tax BER 17,303,731.84 16,868,256.01
City maintenance and construction tax 35 T # 22 2R 1 14,028,188.08 6,936,202.42
Stamp duty ENZERA 11,272,871.72 12,628,700.49
Land use tax T fE AR 7,902,153.30 11,994,962.25
Educational surtax B BN 6,940,327.86 5,303,372.75
Other taxes HahFi18 107,279,013.53 94,194,308.63
Total &5t 2,490,935,753.04 2,506,794,642.37
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
32. Other payables

RMB

AR T

[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018

BH 20196 H30H 201812 A31H

Interest payable FETF B 77,660,723.43 101,293,322.06

Dividend payable FEAS AR R 2,280,864,795.80 295,006,756.48

Other payables A FE A R 6,939,391,776.38 6,105,873,014.18

Total &5t 9,297,917,295.61 6,502,173,092.72
Interest payable JE 1 F) 2

RMB

AR®T

ltem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018

IEH 201946 A30H 2018412 A831H

Interest on medium term notes RHIZE R R B 50,580,074.54 28,310,900.31

Interest on borrowings &R FLE 27,080,648.89 72,982,421.75

Total SEr

77,660,723.43

101,293,322.06

JE AT B A

Dividend payable

RMB
ARET

31 December 2018
2018%12A31H

[tem 30 June 2019
BHH 201946 HA30H

FEA BB A (FE1)

Dividend payable on ordinary

shares (Note 1) 2,221,484,690.60 235,721,872.26
Interest payable on perpetual

B KBEEZS(FE2)
bonds (Note 2) -

59,380,105.20

= - R = p—3
Total o e 228086479580 i




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
32. Other payables (Continued)
Other payables

Nature

L=y

Sales discount HE TR
Guarantees and deposits RESMES

Payables for purchase of construction — fEf T2 K B F & ERE R

and fixed assets

After-sale expenses and repair and —OREBEGER
maintenance expenses

Technology development expenses R e

Commission He

Land facility fee and land premiums THEREE R TR

Transportation expenses BE

Others Efh

Total A&F

Note 1: Dividends payable to the shareholders of the parent in the amount of
RMB2,221,484,690.60 has been distributed during the period from
the balance sheet date to the date on which the issue of these financial
statements was approved.

Note 2: On 30 June 2019, Weichai International Hong Kong Energy Group
Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, confirmed the distribution
of coupon interest in the amount of RMB59,380,105.20 to holders
of perpetual bonds on 14 September 2019, as stipulated in relevant
agreements.

As at 30 June 2019, there were no other payables in significant

amount aging over one year (31 December 2018: Nil).
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(%)

32. Htb A (&)

H Al & A 3K

30 June 2019
2019%6H30H

493,923,058.80
2,536,191,357.12

441,073,556.67

515,823,314.25
436,548,596.79
354,051,874.29
137,033,794.39
104,447,014.55
1,920,299,209.52

6,939,391,776.38

RMB
ARET

31 December 2018
2018412 A831H

717,852,252.23
1,918,503,603.48

360,512,406.31

375,407,604.95
321,350,415.35
247,526,444.86
137,033,794.39
94,178,369.00
1,933,508,123.61

6,105,873,014.18

1 ENRAPESIARNRERS R
AR®2,221,484,690.60 TR EESR
BRAEAVBRELAEARLE B ZHE

EIRETE -

2 R2019F6H30H * ARAIZTAA
BB (BB REEBRARIE
RIBABBEOT - BRKR2019F9
A14BRKEERAEREHNER
=8 AR#59,380,105.207T °

MN2019F6 A300 » EEH —F U
FHEZMEMEMNIK(2018F12A8

318 : &) -
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

33. Non-current liabilities due within one year
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[tem

EH

Long-term payables due within one year FRHEHRBEST

Long-term borrowings due within one year ~ —4 [ 5| Ei#Y Eﬁﬁ%%’\

Lease liabilities due within one year —FRIEHEE

Other non-current liabilities due —F M5 H E’Jﬁ’r\ﬂ?h@jﬁf
within one year

Total G

Long-term borrowings due within one year
include:

Credit loans

Mortgage loans (Note V.35 - Note 1)

Guaranteed loans (Note V.35 - Note 3)

Other loans (Note V.35 - Note 4)

&
ERER(MET 35 #1)
EERMER 35 53)
HipER(HER - 35 54)

34. Other current liabilities

ltem
HH

G OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

—FRIPWERDER

30 June 2019
20196 A30H

653,643,584.65
2,233,030,500.00
4,538,903,412.86

969,065,741.68

8,394,643,239.19

1,910,550,500.00
121,480,000.00
200,000,000.00
1,000,000.00

1 January 2019

RMB
ARBTT

31 December 2018

0191 A1H 0185 12A31H
166,722,464.63 5,029,290,418.61
1,869,408,950.00 1,869,408,950.00
5,529,206,378.87
7,565,337,793.50 6,898,699,368.61

1,777,413,450.00

1,777,413,450.00

90,995,500.00 90,995,500.00
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
34, Hi R BHE R
RMB
AR#% T

30 June 2019

201956 H30H

Product quality assurance deposit

Lease receivables for pledged borrowings #H & Ji& Y 3 ‘& {5 2k

EnEERES

31 December 2018
2018%F12A31H

3,219,356,288.20
2,808,640,283.00
386,266,171.46

Others HAb
Total i

3,093,569,889.51
2,411,828,418.50
616,401,042.15

6,414,262,742.66

6,121,799,350.16
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51
Statements (Continued) (48)
35. Long-term borrowings 35. REABRK

ltem

HE

Credit loans ERER
Mortgage loans (Note 1 — Note 2) EARERGE - 2)
Guaranteed loans (Note 3) REBEMEF(FE3)
Other loans (Note 4) E g (5E4)
Total A&t

Long-term borrowings are classified according to maturity dates as

follows:

Maturity
FEAR

Due within 1 year
Due within 1 to 2 years
Due within 2 to 5 years

Due over 5 years

14 R EIH
15 24F A 21 HA
2554 A E
S5EE

Sub-total

gt

Less: Long-term borrowings classified as

due within one year

B D EA—FREHN

RHEMER

Total

o)
E'Iﬁ

As at 30 June 2019, the above loans carried interest at rates ranging
from 1.08% to 5.05% (31 December 2018: 1.20% to 5.05%) per

annum.

30 June 2019
201946 H30H

8,755,909,094.00
488,236,751.45

148,000,000.00

9,392,145,845.45

RMB

AR T

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

10,011,535,482.40
548,976,751.45
200,000,000.00
148,000,000.00

10,908,512,233.85

REEFRIAEIMOT -

30 June 2019
201946 H30H

2,233,030,500.00
4,408,082,594.00
4,599,063,251.45

385,000,000.00

11,625,176,345.45

2,233,030,500.00

9,392,145,845.45

RMB
AR

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

1,869,408,950.00
2,808,386,962.40
7,941,125,271.45

159,000,000.00

12,777,921,183.85

1,869,408,950.00

10,908,512,233.85

H2019F6A30H @ L&A FF
R 51.08%~5.05% (2018412 A 31
H :1.20%~5.05%) °

183
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

term borrowings (31 December 2018: RMB149,000,000.00) was loan(s)
provided to Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from CDB Capital Co., Ltd., and the loan agreed in the loan agreement
were used in medium-duty and light-duty gear boxes and new energy
transmission system projects. This long-term borrowing will mature
in stages by 22 October 2030. Among others, RMB1,000,000.00 (31
December 2018: RMB1,000,000.00) will mature within one year.

35. Long-term borrowings (Continued) 35. RHAER (&)

Note 1: As at 30 June 2019, an amount of RMB589,716,751.45 under long- 1 R2019F 68308  RHERFAR
term borrowings (31 December 2018: RMB619,972,251.45) was loan #589,716,751.457L (20184 12 A
provided to Weichai (Chongqing) Automotive Co., Ltd. (“Chongging 318 : AR¥619,972,251.4570) 5
Automotive”), a subsidiary of the Company, from the Chongqing PEERREITRODERAREET D
Branch of China Construction Bank Corporation and Shandong Heavy THINFETEEMBER AT MA
Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd., and secured by the assets under RAEZFRARMK(EE)AEBRA
phase one light-duty vehicle project of Chongqging Automotive, as AINTHEBIERSE ) RHENE
stipulated in the loan agreement. As at 30 June 2019, the assets already o ERBBEOTUNEE REEAE
invested in the project included fixed assets with a carrying amount of —HEEBEEERER - BZE2019F
RMB458,119,916.49 and intangible assets with a carrying amount of 6A308H  ZBEEEKRENEERRE
RMB244,888,879.92. The long-term borrowings will mature in stages by BRFEE AR 458,119,916.497TH
20 September 2024. Among others, an amount of RMB121,480,000.00 BEIEEEMAREK244,888,879.927T
(31 December 2018: RMB90,995,500.00) will mature within one year. WEZEE - ZERBERBN2024

FIOR20B AN MAEIE - HRARE
121,480,000.00 7T (2018 % 12 A 31
A : AR®90,995,500.007T) # R —
FREIE -

Note 2: As at 30 June 2019, mortgage loans amounting to RMB20,000,000.00 2 R2019F 6 A30H @ REMEHKAF
under long-term borrowings (31 December 2018: RMB20,000,000.00) A K # 20,000,000.00 jT # & #
were loans provided to Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of fEH (2018F 12 A31H : ARM
the Company, from Rural Credit Cooperative of Qishan County, Shaanxi 20,000,000.007T ) BFETE A 1L 5 2
Province, and secured by machinery and equipment with a carrying NERAAEBRERARQRZ TABK
amount of RMB48,805,925.77. T RBEBRARARHENER - U

IR B 1E AR ¥ 48,805,925.77 L&)
HERRBARER -

Note 3: As at 30 June 2019, an amount of RMB200,000,000.00 under long- 3 R2019F6A308  REEHRFAR
term borrowings (31 December 2018: RMB200,000,000.00) was loan(s) #200,000,000.00 7T (20184 12 A
provided to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the 31H : AR#200,000,000.007C) &
Company, from the Shaanxi branch of The Export-import Bank of China, R ORITRAAE D ITRIAR A
for which the Shaanxi branch of the Bank of Communications provided ZTFARIRAER TESRA ARE
guarantee for joint liabilities. The loan(s) will mature within one year. MER @ ARBIRITRAE DITRE

EHEEARBER  THER—FRE
# o
Note 4: As at 30 June 2019, an amount of RMB149,000,000.00 under long- 4 201946 A30H @ REEZRF A

R #149,000,000.00 7t (2018 F 12
A31H : AR#149,000,000.007T)
ABERZEEESERARMARAZ
FARRAE T HFERAREERA
RHENER  BRBHEHNTEZEERK
ARPERSRERFNERES R
MEE - ZZERBERBEN2030F
108228 AT HHEIE HRARK
1,000,000.007T (2018412 A310 -
AR #1,000,000.007T) R —F R
=
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1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
36. Bonds payable

ltem
HH
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(748)
36. B ES

RMB

AR T

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

30 June 2019
20196 H30H

Bonds payable eI E S

13,067,538,152.46 12,265,020,075.27

As at 30 June 2019, balance of bonds payable are listed as follows:

Isuing ~ Bond Atthe beginning Issued
Item Face value date  period Issued amount of period this period
LE fi BGEH  REER §ig8 B5E LYk
Medium-term note 7,367,304,000.00  21Feb2017 Notedt  7,344,731,360.00 7,913,028,984.80
WITEIANA
Medium-term note 1,504,120,000.00 Jun2018 7years®  1,500,359,700.00 1,615,657,035.11
218568
Megium-em note 906,834,800.00 Apr2019 7 years§ 905,254,424.00 905,254,424.00
019548
Corporate bonds 2504520,000.00  30Sept2015 Syears®  2,522,317,954.03  2,736,334,035.36 -
015894308
Totl 12,322,818,800.00 12,272,663 438.03 12,265,020,075.27  905,254,424.00
Note 1: KION, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes with total
par value of EUR1,010 million on 21 February 2017, which will mature in
May 2022, April 2024 and April 2027, at floating interest rate based on
EURIBOR (Euro Interbank Offered Rate).
Note 2:  KION, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes with total
par value of EUR200 million in June 2018 with bond period of 7 years.
Nominal amount of EUR100 million of such notes are at floating interest
rate based on EURIBOR while the other nominal amount of EUR100
million are at fixed interest rate.
Note 3: KION, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes with total

par value of EUR120.5 million in April 2019 with bond period of 7 years,
at floating interest rate based on EURIBOR.

MH2019F 6 A30H @ [ENES %S
RIOT

RMB
AR

Fair value
Atthe end

of period
BRBE

Accrued interest Repaid
U

RERE

hedging
adjustments
DEEESRE

Exchange gains
and losses
EiigR

Amortization
FRRRE

this period
AHiHRAR

41,952,160.24 - Q25473122 (34,421,234.67) - 1,880,862,481.35

748701212 102,527,172.00 560,435.60  (35,404917.71) (160,248,500.00) 1,503,091,845.00

4,976,821.24 46,769.30  35,035,047.55 940,356,240.85

56,559,851.70 246681876 442673114 - 743,201,585.26

110,975,845.30

10252,77200  5328,754.88  (50,344,373.69) (160,248,500.00) 13,067,538,152.46

ARAAEZFRAAKION » A2017F2A
21HETEMAER10.1EBUTHF
HIZHE - 5 BIR20229F 548 © 2024
FARM2027FAAEE - FIK AL
EURIBOR(BX TR /TRI EHFIEFIR) A
EEMFEFE o

AQNAZFRAAKION » A20184F 6
ABTEEAER2EBR NP HE
B EBEHFERATE ZEERIER
JUERE AR A LAEURIBOR (BUTERTT R
E(WFENER)REENZHFE - 51
BRUTE R X A EE R E o

ARRAZFRAKION » R2019F 4
AETEMBEEH1.205@ B ITH R
HMZR® BHEHRATE - FIRABNU
EURIBOR (BT ERITRIZEIRIEFIR) A

ZTREMERR (FH) R
SEHBRAR - R2015F9A308 %
TEMESRIBETHFHARIE -
EEFEA4125% 0 EEHERAS
N EERAEA -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
37.

38.

Lease liabilities

Item
|

Lease liabilities

Less: Lease liabilities taken to

HERE

B AT AT E R HA

non-current liabilities due within FERBDEER
one year (Note V.33) HEEE
(MisEH - 33)
Total &&f
Long-term payables
[tem
|
Government grants for national debt Bl (&8 B BT R

projects

Finance lease payable for sale and
leaseback

Balance of indirect lease guarantee

Special payables

ENEXHEORERER

MEEERRHE
ERENR

Financial liabilities related to sale and &4 EEESHERE
leaseback

Finance lease payables BARERMR

Total &5t

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

(%)
37. HE&EE

30 June 2019
201946 H30H

14,545,943,526.59

4,538,903,412.86

10,007,040,113.73

38.

30 June 2019
201946 H30H

5,500,000.00

364,384,243.67
28,515,822.60

2,202,209,279.59

2,600,609,345.86

1 January 2019
20191 A1H

G OF B R R IH H RE R

RMB

AR T

31 December 2018
2018%12A31H

17,418,755,002.55

5,529,206,378.87

11,889,548,623.68

RIAEMARK

1 January 2019

RMB
ARBT

31 December 2018

20191 81H 2018%12A31H
5,500,000.00 5,500,000.00

- 6,292,086,493.22
326,899,179.68 326,899,179.68
28,515,822.60 28,515,822.60
= 3,242,418,039.70
360,915,002.28 9,895,419,535.20
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 1R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (748)
38. Long-term payables (Continued) 38. REAERF(E)
The change in special payables is as follows: HIEREMROESHNT ¢
RMB
AR T

Increase during Decrease during

ltem 31 December 2018 the period the period 30 June 2019
BH 2018124318 R KERED 2019%6A30H

Interest subsidy for liquid fund granted & Bf BiEE B 6075 &)

by provindial finance office BEERME 23,000,000.00 23,000,000.00

Compensation for relocation WERER 5,515,822.60 5,515,822.60

Total At 28,515,822.60 28,515,822.60

39. Long-term payroll payable 39. REAEE T il
RMB
AR T
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
HH 2019%6HA30H 2018412 A31H
Defined benefit obligations RE X A 10,380,407,503.20 9,069,002,084.84
Long-term severance benefits REABHGR B A 121,689,713.07 109,201,663.32
Cash-settled share-based payments AR & & E WD X+ 58,627,500.00 41,370,965.60
Other long-term payroll payable E fth = HA B T % 374,328,267.87 360,483,018.37
Total BEr 10,935,052,984.14 9,580,057,732.13
Defined benefit obligations TSR ER

The Group operates defined benefit schemes for its staff in some REFILHIBINF AT EBESBLER
overseas subsidiaries who meet conditions. The scheme requires BIEBEE TR T2 - %512
that contribution be made to an independently administered fund. BERMBUEENESHGFER - &
Under the scheme, staff are entitled to enjoy retirement benefit ZHET BT AEZESHR TR

provided for under defined benefit of the plans. B4 ERRREAH) o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued)
The Group's defined benefit scheme is one requiring contribution
prior to termination of service. The scheme requires that
contribution be made to an independently administered fund. The
scheme is administered by an independent trustee in the legal form
of a fund. The assets held under the fund is held separately with
assets of the Group. The trustee is responsible for the investment

strategies of the scheme.

The trustee assesses the level of capital of the scheme. The
assessment includes asset-liabilities matching strategies and
investment risk management strategies. The trustee determines the

amount to be deployed based on the result of its annual assessment.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, risk of change of
anticipated age of beneficiaries of the pension, and risks of the

securities market.

The following table sets out the key actuarial assumptions used as

at the balance sheet date:

Key actuarial assumptions
TERERR

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

G OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

39. REIBEAE M (&)
REXmER(E)
A B R 2 5T B R BB AT HOK
RICEHE  ZHBERMBTEER
MESHFER - LA BUES B
B TRBIEREARTES
B ENEERARENEEEES
B o SEABRBERABORAR
i

XHRABZAENERKF - ZEZ
BREAE-ARCKRBEANRERR
EHERE - REEARBFEERNE
RRERBIFHE -

FHATHEES - RS TRAN
EHESLYEARNBET SRR

2/
=2

TRAAEABRRAFERHEER
B

30 June 2019

31 December 2018

Discount rate (%) PR & (%)
Expected growth rate of future pension
expenses (%)

BHIS £ 18 K R (%)

Expected rate of salary increment (%)

BHRFEREERERE(%)

2019%6H30H 2018412 H31H
0.88-3.55 1.43-4.25
0.00-4.12 0.00-4.12
0.26-4.25 0.26-4.25




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued)

Scheme recognized in the income statement is set out below:
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RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201918 1HZ6H30H 1F 7

o O B R B H H kR

(%)
39.

REZmES (E)

REEABIHM(E)

EANBRTHEIANEEENT

Incurred during

this period
AHERER

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period

B

[tem

HE

Current period cost of service & H PR ALA

Net interest FlE 58

Net amount of the cost of post- BB 12 12 A P AF B8
employment benefit

Taken to cost of sales FTAEERR

Taken to distribution and selling sSTAEEEA
expenses

Taken to general and administrative STABEEA
expenses

Taken to research and development AR ER
expenses

Taken to finance expenses A E R

158,338,094.05
83,719,002.47

242,057,096.52
96,298,640.85

26,747,364.80

23,853,060.40

11,439,028.00
83,719,002.47

163,184,195.00
80,509,907.14

243,694,102.14
94,571,170.00

25,834,865.00

28,912,713.32

13,865,446.68
80,509,907.14

At

Total

242,057,096.52

243,694,102.14
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (#)
39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 39. REAEFRBE T H M (&)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) REXmEB(E)
The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair REZHBEREHANAENEEAAE
value of assets under the scheme are as follows: BEEBHWT :
RMB
AR# T
Net liabilities/
Present value of Fair value of (Net assets)

defined benefit assets under under defined

ltem scheme obligations the scheme benefit scheme
REZHTE FEEE REZ @A

&R EBRE AREE BRE/(FEE)
Opening balance B%E 14,927,628,035.69 (6,119,650,690.75) 8,807,977,344.94
Taken to profit or loss in the current period 5 A& Ei18 % 332,508,803.48 (90,451,706.96) 242,057,096.52
Cost of services R A 158,338,094.05 - 158,338,094.05
Net interest FEFE 174,170,709.43 (90,451,706.96) 83,719,002.47

Taken to other comprehensive income FAEMARA Wa 1,610,709,530.77 (470,885,864.68) 1,139,823,666.09
Actuarial gains or losses BERGIIEX 1,633,093,984.00 - 1,633,093,984.00
Return on assets under the scheme (net of 51818 E L1

amount included in net interest) (G AR B BEHBRIN) - (485,813,216.00) (485,813,216.00)
Adjustment for exchange differences EHERAE (22,384,453.23) 14,927,351.32 (7,457,101.91)
Benefits paid BX MR (223,050,332.11) 147,118,183.60 (75,932,148.51)
Contribution from employers EX&TF - (11,969,114.44) (11,969,114.44)
Other changes Hit &% 40,077,484.80 (42,155,505.20) (2,078,020.40)
Closing balance HRH%E 16,687,873,522.63 (6,587,994,698.43) 10,099,878,824.20

Note: As of 30 June 2019, the assets under the scheme amounting in aggregate
to RMB280,528,679.00 (31 December 2018: RMB 261,024,739.90) were
accounted for under other non-current assets.

l;‘-lr

201966 A30B st BB EH A K5t
AR#280,528,679.007T (20184 12
A318 : AR¥261,024,739.907T)
EHMETBBEEFZE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 1R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
40. Accruals and provisions 40. FEAE
RMB
AR T
Adjustment for
Increase during Decrease during exchange
Item 31 December 2018 the period the period differences 30June 2019
HAR 2018%12A431R KEEM KEHD EREEARE 2019%6A30A
Product quality assurance EmZEREs
deposit 184,293,840.50 20,589,978.00 (53,085,247.00) (406,732.50) 151,391,839.00
Pending litigation RAFFA 78,912,448.80 4,455,690.00 (9,341,315.00) 179,957.20 74,206,781.00
Guarantee provided to MR ER
external parties 16,557,803.00 - (16,282,811.00) (17,031.00) 257,961.00
Others Hit 85,215,378.90 10,380,976.00 (5,628,240.00) 12,337,784.70 102,305,899.60
Total Sisl 364,979,471.20 35,426,644.00 (84,337,613.00) 12,093,978.40 328,162,480.60
41. Deferred income 41. EE W =
RMB
AT
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
IHH 2019%6H30H 201812 A31H
Government grant I8 4 B 1,753,379,927.25 1,754,505,236.70
Deferred income of indirect leasing HEREER BEEYE
business 1,824,088,351.30 412,524,713.70
Deferred income of sale and leaseback 4@ HER XS
sub-leases IRE W = 802,418,176.80 1,088,977,668.30

Total A&F 4,379,886,455.35 3,256,007,618.70
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
41. Deferred income (Continued) 41. EEW % (48)
As at 30 June 2019, the items related to government grant are as M2019F6A30H W RBUNHBIHY
follows: IERWR :
RMB
AR #r
Taken to
Increase during other income Related to
Item 31 December 2018 theperiod  during the period Other decreases 30June 2019 assetsfincome
L 20185128318 AgEm  AERAHtRE HHD  201986A308  HEE/LEHE
Land-related government £+ B Related to assets
grant BRED 956,486,925.77 (13,363,224.09) (23,031,083.97) 920,092,617.71 HEERE
Special funds for industry  E¥RERHR
revitalization and WERES Related to assets
technological renovation 469,903,731.85 6,378,883.02 (12,271,165.54) (1,311,000.00) 462,700,449.33 BEERD
Special assistance fund EEfBES Related to assets
94,373,983.61 25,903,200.00 (116,832.74) 119,560,350.87 HEERE
National debt specialfund ~ EIEZEE S Related to assets
5,976,608.39 (996,101.40) 4,980,506.99 HEERE
Position-based allowances for 8 A7 Bl Related to income
project teams BAEHE 205,458,053.68 27,800,000.00 (9,466,414.18) 243,791,639.50 gyl
Others Eft Related to assets
2,305,933.40 (51,570.55) - 2,254,362.85 HEERE
Total At 1,754,505,236.70 60,082,083.02 (36,865,308.50) (24,342,083.97) 1,753,379,921.25
42. Other non-current liabilities 42. HthERBERE
RMB
AR BT
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
HAH 20196 H30H 20184 12A31H
Quality assurance deposit EERESR 95,502,772.41 40,708,256.67
Interest rate swap contracts MEFEHREL 103,731,590.00 61,695,472.60
Long-term contract liabilities RBARAE N 336,271,706.00
Others - " . 1,909,333,518.00

Total e  2,444,839,586.41
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1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 1R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
43. Share capital 43. R
1 January to 30 June 2019 20191 A1BE6 A30H 1L 8
Al
RMB
AR

Increase
(decrease) of

shares in

current period

1 January 2019 (Note VV.45) 30 June 2019
KR R &
2019%1A818 (BEE - 45) 20196 A30H
[tem No. of shares Proportion No. of shares Proportion
EH K& t (%) K& E (%)
| Restricted shares - BREKHRL 1,746,994,773 21.84 (1,196,628)  1,745,798,145 22.00
State-owned legal person shares BEEASR 1,642,531,008 2054 - 1,642,531,008 20.70
Other domestic shares Rt MERR 104,463,765 130 (1,196,628) 103,267,137 130
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned B BREEE
legal person shares EAFER
Domestic natural BREAA
person shares Bk 104,463,765 . (1,196,628) 103,267,137
Il Non-restricted shares = EREREHKRA 6,250,243,783 (62,168,033)  6,188,075,750
RMB ordinary Shares NG 4,307,203,783 (62,168,033) 4,245,035,750
Domestic listed foreign shares BN ETRINE R = = =
Overseas lsted foreign shares S ETRSNE IR 1,943,040,000 - 1,943,040,000

[11
=
=
s

lIl. Total no. of shares 7,997,238,556 (63,364,661) 7,933,873,895

193
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 ik 3R B 5 (4
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& ff B % it 3 £ % EH H 5: 5

Statements (Continued) (#)
44, Capital reserve 44, EXNTE
1 January to 30 June 2019 20191 A1BZEZ6A30H ILHA
B
RMB
AR #r
Increase during Decrease during
[tem 31 December 2018 the period the period 30 June 2019
HH 2018124318 REE ABES  2019%6A30H
Wholly state-owned capital reserve  BIEBZEALNTE 77,000,000.00 - 77,000,000.00
Other capital reserve HtEADTE 36,699,432.76 3,478,147.06 40,177,579.82
Total At 113,699,432.76 3,478,147.06 117,177,579.82
45, Treasury shares 45. EFER
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 H1BHE6 H30H LEHf
B
RMB
AR#¥T

Increase during Decrease
[tem 31 December 2018 the period  during the period 30 June 2019
BE 2018%12A31H AHE xHES  2019%6A308

Treasury shares ERFR 499,911,217.21 (499,911,217.21)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & £ IH H 5 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
45. Treasury shares (Continued) 45. EFR (&)

1 January to 30 June 2019 (Continued)

Upon convening the fourth extraordinary board meeting 2018,
the first extraordinary general meeting 2018 and the first A
shareholders’ general meeting 2018 on 13 July 2018 and 14
September 2018 respectively, the Company considered and
approved the “Resolution concerning the Repurchase of A Shares”.
The “Proposal concerning the Repurchase of A Shares” and the
“Report on the Repurchase of A Shares” were disclosed on 14 July
2018 and 29 September 2018 respectively. As of 28 December
2018, 63,364,661 A shares in aggregate had been repurchased
by way of centralized bidding, representing approximately 0.79%
of the total share capital of the Company, at a maximum of
RMB8.49 per share and a minimum of RMB7.65 per share, totaling
RMB499,911,217.21 (exclusive of transaction costs). Pursuant to
relevant requirements, the relevant shares repurchased no longer
carry rights from the date of transfer to the dedicated account for
such repurchase. On 7 January 2019, the Company completed the
formalities of repurchase and cancellation of the relevant shares at

the Shenzhen branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing

Corporation Limited. The cancellation of treasury shares led to a
decrease in share capital of RMB63,364,661.00 and a decrease in
surplus reserve of RMB436,546,556.21.

2019F1A1HE6A30H I-H
(&)
AAFER2018F7A138F9A
1489 BIBF2018F £ KR E
£ 2018FFE—MBERRAY
M2018FFE—KARBREAE » 7
HBBT(EZRMAEBRBEAQG
AR RIEER) - WH2018F7 A
148 M2018F9HA 298 N AIETE T
(AR BB RARARBRGHTEZR)M
(EREBRAARBMHHREE) -
EHZ=2018F12A288 » AR A&
LASE R 8 5 = B B AR AR 1D
63,364,661 * 1542 Al H MR &)
LEBI#50.79% ZEAREARA
R¥849 /MR &EKZXBAA
RE765L,/ B INNBEEA
ABR#499,911,217.21 (T X5
BR) KIBAEBERT - BEORKRG
BBRFEREERAKRFEZARAKE
H#ERN  AAFR2019F1 878 %
PREBLHECRGEERREER AR
DARHETERMOOIETHEFE
R ET7 IR 8 Bl AR AR > A R ¥
63,364,661.007T * BHALAERD A
[R#436,546,556.217T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 2R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) ()
46. Other comprehensive income 46. Hit4RZ & W zE
Other comprehensive income, on a cumulative basis, attributable to EEABRTHEBEBREANEME
shareholders of parent company as shown in the balance sheet is as AN 26458
follows:
1 January to 30 June 2019 20191 A1HZE6 A30H IEH
A
RMB
ARET
Incurred during thi period
KERLE
Less: Amount
recognized
inother
comprehensive
incomein Attributable to
Incurred before ~ previous period owners of Attributable
Balance Change Balanceas  theincometax  and recognized in parent to minority
aat3! inaccounting atllanvary  forthecurent —profitorlossin Less:Income company sharefolders Balance as at
Item December 2018 policies 019 period  current period tax expenses affer tax affer tax 30 June 2019
B HETA
pUIES WI9E KEREHE  RkRAkE W HABER HABER 019%
58 12831848 EHRIE 191088 BEE EREAER BAAKER HHBR 6F30RKE
|, Those other comprefiensive income not o be reclssfed into
roftorloss - TREARERRNZbEARE
Changesarsing from remeasuing ofdefined beneft pln Xt ERER M3 HREE (3247351321) - (30247351321) (1,139,823,666.09) - (3441,26870) (359,82098429) (437,552413.10)  (702,303497.50)
Other comprehensive income not to be recasiid ino proft
orlos using th equity method ERETTHERRN LGSR (159,166,390.30) - (159,16630030)  (232,506.00) - - (10410 (12787830 (159,271,018.00)
Change n fairvalue of investment i other equity nstuments— 2B BETERED4EERD (194,917,096.67) - (194,917,096.67)  440,191,665.66 = 37,590,560.58  404,196,316.01 (1595,21093)  209,279,219.34
I Other comprehensive income to be reclassfed nto proftor
los 2 BERRERGNARGANE
Other comprehensiie income to b recassfed nto profitor
Jos using the equity method ERETTEBANARRANE 31,679,92857 - BEI998ST (567325369) - - (36146339 (1311790.26)  33318465.18
Effectve porion of cashfiow hedging gais orlosses ReREEHERNENEA (105,916,360.81) - (105,916,360.81) 343478388 (0,791953.05)  (11,093.238.00)  35466,883.63  (11,186,908.70)  (70,449,477.18)
Bxchange diferences on foreign curency ranlaton SEHERANEZE (805,801,124.59) (1341182043 (819,212,945.02)  156,589,260.83 - 62,921,539.67  93,667,721.16  (756,291,405.35)
Total for other comprehensiie income Afrakat (1,570,594,557.01) (13.411,820.43)  (1,584,006,377.44) (54551371537 (9,791,953.05)  (315,903,946.12)  138,288,663.93  (358,106,480.13) (1,445,717,713.51)
47. Special reserve 47. BIEFE
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1H=E=6A30H (57

Li

=~ Increase during Decrease during
[tem S 1 January 2019 the period the period 30 June 2019
R = 20191818 REE KEED 2019%66H30H

Safety funds - : : —  155,056,854.10 54,517,051.72 31,916,434.31 177,657,471.51




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
48. Surplus reserve
1 January to 30 June 2019

Item 1 January 2019
HE 20191818

Statutory surplus reserve EERBARE 674,283,390.61

The decrease in surplus reserve in this period was due to the
cancellation of treasury shares repurchased. Please refer to Note
V.45,

49. Retained earnings

[tem
HH
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PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
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G OF B AR R IH H R R

(%)
48. BE#ANTE
2019%F 1 A1HZ=6 A30H I 5
&
RMB
ARBT

Increase during Decrease during

the period the period 30 June 2019
AHIE KEHS  2019F6A30H

436,546,556.21 237,736,834.40

AEIR AR NTRA D R L i DB A E
FRREIE - 2RMER - 45 -

49. RO B FE

RMB

AR #T

Incurred during Incurred in
this period previous period
AHRAERE FERE AR

Retained earnings at the end of previous 8% i HA 8 7k 2k 2 B K1)
period before adjustment
Add: Change of accounting policies m: RESHBRESE

in this period
Adjusted retained earnings at the FE 1% BV AR o B A
beginning of period

Net profit attributable to shareholders 538 R & 2 &) A% 5 HY % | B
of the parent

Less: Dividend payable on ordinary B REATE RARIR & R A
p— shares in cash
F_ Addition and reduction of shares a0 A F A ER D

ﬁﬂ g of subsidiaries and others Hit,

Retained eamnings at the end of period ~ HiZR & 5 ‘- ELRENEYEE 7R 30,262,702,010.52

32,443,962,374.77 28,107,682,748.63

(118,987,182.48) -

32,324,975,192.29 28,107,682,748.63

5,287,488,377.89 4,392,587,359.49

2,221,484,690.60 1,999,309,639.00

&
238,258,458.60
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
49. Retained earnings (Continued) 49. Ko BEAIE(E)
On 20 June 2019, the Company’s 2018 profit distribution proposal H2019F 6 A20H - "2 F20184F
was considered and approved at the Company’s 2018 annual EREAFASEZBIBT20184F
general meeting. Based on the total share capital of 7,933,873,895 ERMBEIRFTER - KNQEAAERK
shares, the Company distributed to all shareholders a cash dividend 7,933,873,895 AEE - MAEERK
of RMB2.80 (including tax) for every 10 shares held, without any REI0RRERERS AN ARE2.80
capitalisation of reserve. Distribution of the dividend was completed T(ER)  TERAESEIBALA -
during the period from the balance sheet date to the date of ZEANMNNEEBBERBZEERUBR
approval of these financial statements. EHEBLE B EERETE -
50. Minority interests 50. PERERER
RMB
ARET
Item 30 June 2019 1 January 2019 31 December 2018
EHH 2019%6A30AH 2019§1RA1H 2018%12H31H
Minority interest attributable to SENERR
ordinary share holders PERENERS 18,395,949,737.03 17,730,543,496.62 17,892,315,697.98
Minority interests — perpetual bonds DR ER —KERE 5,053,277,241.69 5,053,277,241.69 5,053,277,241.69
Total Bt 23,449,226,978.72 22,783,820,738.31 22,945,592,939.67
On 14 September 2017, Weichai International Hong Kong Energy R2017F9R14H - KRR ZFAA
Group Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, issued perpetual MR (BB ) e REE AR A A%
bond of par value of USD775 million, nominal interest rate of 3.75% TE@BERT.ISEET  EEAE
and with interest payable every six months. Total net proceeds after #3.75% @ N EIEE A6E A K KE
deduction of issue expenses amounted to RMB5,053,277,241.69. & HRBTEREEEESHEER

AR¥5,053,277,241.697T °




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
50. Minority interests (Continued)

51.

The perpetual bonds were issued with the guarantee provided
by the Company for its subsidiary Weichai International Hong
Kong Energy Group Co., Limited, without maturity date, without
conversion right, and dividend distribution may be deferred for
an indefinite number of times at the discretion of the Company.
The Company is entitled to redeem such perpetual bonds on 14
September 2022.

For the six months ended 30 June 2019, change in other equity

instruments issued by subsidiaries and outstanding was as follows:

At the

beginning

Item of period
HH HAERE

Perpetual bonds KEE 5,053,277,241.69

Revenue and Cost of Sales
Revenue includes turnover and other revenue that arise in the

course of the Group’s ordinary activities.

Interim Report 2019 A HAR&E
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TG MEHREEEEHA R

(%)

50. P RRERE (E)
ZEXBERARGBFAAMLER
BR(EB)EREEAR A REER
BT EIAE  EERE BEOR
REATBEANBWIELEL - B TR
HRE| o R NB)HREN2022F9A14
HEEZ S KERE o

201996 A30H IE61E A ERE - +
NRBFITEINNEMEZ T EEEHm
B

RMB
ARET

Redeemed

At the end
of period
BRHRE

Issued during

during
the period
AHET

the period
ZHEE

- 5,053,277,241.69

51. EXBRARKA
WABIEAREE BB LR BRPES
SEES NSNS

RMB
AE# T
Incurred during this period Incurred in previous period
KERLE THELR

[tem Revenue Revenue Cost
U 'ON A L/ON A
Revenue from principal operations TEER CEREINETR VAN SR CER AN I 80,294,445,120.92  62,604,629,623.86
Other revenue Eth %% 1,732,302,341.04 1,537,250,791.27 1,969,461,787.96 1,731,219,590.65
Total At 82,263,906,908.83  64,335,849,214.51

90,862,496,520.48

71,101,142,453.13
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 ik 3R B 5 (4
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& ff B % it 3 £ % EH H 5: &

Statements (Continued) (#)
51. Revenue and Cost of Sales (Continued) 51. EEWARKA(E)
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HE i e L HREE AR
Revenue from principal operations FHEEBFBA
Sales of goods and others HEELEREM 56,378,261,226.03 50,473,207,154.38
Forklift trucks production, warehousing X ES A4 [ 4l &
technology and supply chain solution B R R A E
services SN plkr | CEpiCRliEES  29,821,237,966.54
Sub-total INEF 89,130,194,179.44 80,294,445,120.92
Other revenue EEFBA
Sales of materials SHE MR 1,460,490,284.21 1,436,913,288.95
Lease income HEWA 48,895,276.30 114,148,433.81
Labour income BB A 46,504,794.15 26,668,028.45
Income from trial production of vehicles &5 g A - 61,560,815.78
Others Hith 176,411,986.38 330,171,220.97
Sub-total /et 1,732,302,341.04 1,969,461,787.96

Total A Clopela el spli it | 82,263,906,908.88




Interim Report 2019 FAsks 201

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 1R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (748)
51. Revenue and Cost of Sales (Continued) 51. EEWARBRA(E)
Reporting segment: WwEDE

RMB
AB#ET
Automobiles
and other major Forklift trucks
automobile Other Import & and supply
Item Engines components components export services chain solution
REREM XER
EH EEL IEREREN Rt 2 s EHORE HEEBADR
Major regions of operation:  +Z
248
Mainland China mERE 18,430,048429.80  35,021,018,233.39 190,441,689.68 8,559,181.22 1,797,159,961.33  55,447,227,495.42

Other countries and regions - EfEIR Ak & 485,780,313.63 2,956,714,942.98 912,790,630.82 105210,145.55  30,954,772,992.08  35,415,269,025.06

Total At 18,915,828,74343  37,977,733,176.37 1,103,232,320.50 113,769,326.77  32,751,932.953.41  90,862,496,520.48

Time for recognition of WA

revente: BARR
Goods (transferred at a An(EE-ES

certain point of time) #2) 18,857,575539.96  37,887,240,740.85 1,083,987,037.75 105,210,145.55  19,452,756,906.92  77,386,770,371.03
Services (provided at a B (EE K&

certain period of time) R 50,659,648.42 51,092,742.86 17,343,254.16 8,559,181.22 10,317,672,917.42  10,445,327,744.08
Leases HE 7,593,555.05 39,399,692.66 1,902,028.59 - 2,981,503,129.07  3,030,398,405.37
Total A 18,915,828,743.43 31,977,733,176.37 1,103,232,320.50 113,769,326.77  32,751,932,953.41  90,862,496,520.48
Lease income of RMB3,030,398,405.37 recognised under the AERES>HPEERABREEA
applicable standard on lease is included in the revenue in reporting HELABROBEERAARE

segment. 3,030,398,405.377T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

52.

53.

Taxes and Surcharges

S5 ik A W R ()

20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

G OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
52. Bi& R

Incurred during

this period
AHRAERE

114,008,675.23
83,063,488.76
68,987,198.89
40,327,806.66
68,633,243.73

[tem

EH

City maintenance and construction tax 32
Educational surtax HE BN M
Property tax BEH
Stamp duty ENFERL
Others Hith

Total a5t

375,020,413.27

Distribution and selling expenses

53. HEEH

Incurred during
this period
HAEE A

2,273,973,893.28
739,125,641.37
739,740,716.54
319,311,011.83
390,796,213.23
195,964,648.61
53,286,722.92
31,045,306.23
626,492,223.61

[tem

IEH

Staff costs 8 TEA
After-sales and repair fee —BRkERREER
Freight and packaging BEBEROKE
Marketing expenses mEFREER
Depreciation and amortization & R
Travel expenses ERE

Office expenses MAER
Lease expenses HEE

Others Efh,

Total A&t

5,369,736,377.62

RMB
ARET

Incurred in
previous period

HIBE AR

132,973,278.94
96,054,689.78
65,885,796.07
36,432,170.24
67,948,422.51

399,294,357.54

RMB
AR

Incurred in
previous period

LHA AR

2,145,275,364.27
1,032,833,230.86
604,005,155.05
383,665,118.40
240,846,194.35
174,792,102.11
51,187,159.39
164,281,095.86
676,710,055.99

- 5,473,595,476.28
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (%)

54. General and administrative expenses 54. EBEH
RMB
N -
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HAE AHRAERE FERE AR
Staff costs 8 TR 1,852,780,984.62 1,860,081,711.57
External support fee INERZ 45 B 324,580,912.10 332,151,084.86
Depreciation and amortization PrE L 319,497,567.00 213,623,911.44
Office expenses N =] 168,247,006.82 162,487,298.77
Travel expenses EiIRE 63,846,597.86 53,233,120.86
Lease expenses HEE 35,871,494.70 69,118,946.21
Repair expenses EESE 35,826,796.97 29,434,643.56
Others Hib 480,504,345.83 476,048,376.56
Total A&t 3,281,155,705.90 3,196,179,093.83

55. Research & development expenses 55. & & H

RMB

AT

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period

HE AHAE AL HIE A

Staff costs 8 TR 1,207,098,272.02 877,680,165.05

Testing costs ERARE 692,808,646.26 392,730,357.63
External intellectual property and HNER &0 a8k 22 K AR SRR

published documents licensing costs FRE 152,813,547.65 133,145,057.64

Depreciation and amortization e R 145,034,935.23 161,963,954.57

Travel expenses EIRE 44,428,907.94 26,839,213.19

Fuels and utility fees R R BB 57,159,867.13 49,731,108.48

Others Hib 98,397,660.03 109,042,596.32

Total

At

2,397,741,836.26

1,751,132,452.88




204  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

H G ORI B Rk IE H AR

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (%)

56. Finance expenses 56. B E M
RMB
ARKT
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HAE AHRAERE LHAEE R
Interest expenses FE X H 596,873,003.86 612,147,513.99
Less: interest income B R B WA 479,664,629.04 563,067,891.29
Exchange gains and losses fE H I8 1,832,049.75 20,027,383.89
Handling fees and others FEERHAM 22,302,146.64 (12,461,492.30)
Total A&t 141,342,571.21 56,645,514.29

57.

Other income

Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period

are presented as follows:

57.

H b W 55

FRAEMBEROBRAHEEBNT

RMB
ARBTT

Extraordinary
profit and loss

Incurred during Incurred in Related to taken as incurred

Item this period previous period assetsfincome  during this period

HEE,/ FARHBEEN

&R FHBREE FEBAES Wi EREMRR

Income of financial subsidies EINeETET N 36,163,573.52 23,252,755.35 EERS R 36,163,573.52
IR

Government support fund BFHkEE 16,842,500.00 11,052,200.00 WEEEERCReo 16,842,500.00
RN IER

Amortization of deferred income i X U 5 5 36,865,308.50 23,049,146.31 BRI RCERT) 36,865,308.50
income
HEE /Wi iE6H

Others Hith 249,110.55 985,336.11 EEEIEROReeIn 249,110.55
RN IER

Total i 90,120,492.57 90,120,492.57
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1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
58. Investment income

ltem
HH
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(%)
58. RE W=
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in

this period

previous period

AEBAERE LA

R EZENRBRERE

Gain on long-term equity investments

under the equity method e
Investment income during the period R EERB ARG
in which the financial assets held for oEC =€

trading were held
Investment income arising from disposal fE & K EAR R EELNIKE

123,724,757.92 136,233,044.06

95,532,597.95 14,498,630.14

71,491,942.98

17,101,283.06

50,355,931.50

44,200,906.81

7,859,123.54 =
23,734,147.45 9,142,141.77

of long-term equity investments Wz

Gain on interest rate swap and exchange % X & ¥ 5 # & K| & B #14 4
gains and losses realized in cross P ERRMF Sk B
currency swap and interest rate swap i 5 B
contracts

Investment income arising from the RREFEITREEMNIRE W&
exercise of warrants

Others Eth

Total &t

372,698,501.34 221,176,005.84

59. Profit or loss on change of fair value

[tem
1HEH

59. YR EEBHER
RMB
ARET

Incurred during Incurred in
this period

AR

previous period

LA A R

Forward foreign exchange contracts at
fair value through profit or loss for the
current period

REEELRCHE

GRS I TF X

Lx’/}jﬂffﬁ"fgﬂﬁi\ﬁﬁﬁr)\

==t Warrants and cash compensation
Structured deposit

Cross currency swap and interest rate

swap instruments at fair value through

(81,382,032.49) (47,923,556.47)
= 18,821,947.94
6,153,301.20 =

100,735,766.07 55,975,444.78

25,507,034.78 26,873,836.25
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3¢ £ B0 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
60. Impairment loss of credit 60. EAREERX
RMB
AT
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
EH AHA A THIE A
Credit losses (EVEESES 184,177,256.14 105,247,274.82
61. Impairment loss of assets 61. EEREERX
RMB
ARET
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HAH AHA AR HIE A
Loss due to decline in value of FEBRBEIBKX
inventories 267,082,096.40 136,249,879.02
Impairment loss of fixed assets EFE & EREERK% 171,114.26 20,000,000.00
Impairment loss of construction ERETIRRMEBK
in progress 11,170,845.44

Impairment loss of intangible assets mREERERX 11,905,493.16

Total A 267,253,210.66 179,326,217.62

62. Non-operating income 62. BEIMRA
RMB
ARET

Extraordinary profit

and loss taken

Incurred during Incurred in as incurred

[tem this period previous period during this period
STARBBLEEN

BH r8%EE | EEERER

Reversal of provision for HtheEREEE

other liabilities . e -
Net penalty income el e | 12,080,391.86 === 725uk:Hl 1 12,080,391.86
hIO y —— 91,729,442.6 o
Others —— 1729,402.61 ESSETNAR IS 91,729,442.61

Total - -— — 103,809,834.47 ] ; 103,809,834.47
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# f B % it % 3 2 1EH B 5 5
Statements (Continued) (%)

63. Non-operating expenses 63. EEINMZTH
RMB

ARET

Extraordinary profit

and loss taken

Incurred during Incurred in as incurred during
ltem this period previous period this period
AARHEEREN
EH AEBER FEEAR FREMEER
Donation expenditure oM a i 1,461,800.00 1,427,000.00 1,461,800.00
Others Hity 28,930,026.11 51,099,096.81 28,930,026.11
Total Ch 30,391,826.11 52,526,096.81 30,391,826.11
64. Income Tax Expenses 64. FIBBEHR

RMB

AR T

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period

HH AHRLEE FHIE A

Current tax expenses = HSHER 1,997,495,904.63 1,898,277,774.00

Deferred tax expenses RIEFSTHE R (539,673,784.19) (613,629,237.45)

Total = 1,457,822,120.44 1,284,648,536.55
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
64. Income Tax Expenses (Continued)

The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is

listed as follows:

T

RMB
AR BT
Incurred during Incurred in
Item this period previous period
| AERER FHELERE
Total profit FlBaE 8,350,642,426.58 7,166,877,621.45
Tax at statutory tax rate BEER R EMNTHIE Note 71 2,087,660,606.64 1,791,719,405.36
Effect of different tax rates applicable to the AR RELF AT Note 72
Company and some subsidiaries BETARENYE (555,183,529.15) (547,096,487.49)
Effect of tax rate change on opening balance of B R & B HHITETFTSHL
deferred income tax HENTE 7,922,837.31 3,824,908.76
Adjustments to current tax of previous periods % LAR Eif & ERFTIEFL MFIE (38,866,974.83) 25,659,572.83
Profits and losses attributable to associates and ~ SEEREE A M EMEBRE
joint ventures (16,507,683.30) (27,410,938.79)
Income not subject to tax BRMHMEA (53,916,269.33) (71,912,112.51)
Expenses not deductible for tax TRHENNER 29,887,877.37 80,527,215.96
Tax incentives on eligible expenditures MR RERT HMEER
i@z (162,565,171.33) (70,655,486.24)
Utilization of deductible losses from prior years 7| LA B 4E S B9 AT K 8512 (5.063,633.00) (52,822,872.14)
Unrecognized deductible losses KRR AEEE 131,369,715.68 133,107,532.27
Effect of unrecognized deductible temporary RERN TN EH =R
difference e 2 23,288,166.22 12,953,692.88
Others Hit 9,796,178.16 6,754,105.66

Tax expense at the Group's effective tax rate

BASEERBEFED
FEHER

Note 1:The Company is subject to a statutory tax rate of 25%.

Note 2:The PRC income tax of the Group is calculated based on the estimate

taxable income gained in the PRC and applicable tax ra -—___ isir

the taxable income in other regions is calcula

according to existing laws, interpretations and

which the Group operates.

No provision for Hong Kong profit "Ea

had no taxable profits aris-ing_ inH

=

1,457,822,120.44

1,284,648,536.55
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# f B % it % 3 2 1EH B 5 5

Statements (Continued) (#)
65. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 65. R W=
The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit of the current EARFRWZRIRBEBARNA G L E
period attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by XX B EY S BAH R - B DABSITAE SN
the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares. BRI EGTE -
The calculation of basic EPS is detailed as follows: EXRGRKEHAEBHENT
RMB
N -
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HAE AHRAERE LHiEE R
Earnings ez
Net profit of the current period EBRARREEBR
attributable to ordinary shareholders % R B & A% A B
of the Company 5,287,488,377.89 4,392,587,359.49
Shares A& 5
Weighted average number of the ARARBITEINE B
ordinary shares outstanding of the B AN S 15 25
Company 7,933,873,895 7,997,238,556
Basic EPS (RMB/share) HEARGERKZEGTK) 0.67 0.55

The Group holds no potential shares that are significantly dilutive. AEEESEAMEBEMLELR -

209
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B0H H 51
Statements (Continued) (#)
66. Expenses by nature 66. EARMESE
The supplemental information of the Group's cost of AEBEERAK  HEER EEE
B -EeRRREE > ENETE

administrative expenses and research and development BT

sales, distribution and selling expenses, general and

expenses which are categorized by nature is as follows:
RMB

ARET

Incurred during Incurred in
ltem this period
HH AHRAERE

previous period

EHIEE AR

FER RO
ERRREERSEEED

Materials used 66,401,582,895.04 57,893,001,212.31

Movement of inventories of finished

(2,398,696,520.49)

goods and work in progress (863,489,334.13)

Staff remuneration B T 57 B 11,783,389,323.32 11,659,265,952.58
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1T & & M #5 E 3,963,094,017.78 3,646,255,422.38
Rental e 77,349,348.41 240,366,625.24
Others Hip 2,323,057,308.85 2,181,356,359.12
Total A& 82,149,776,372.91 74,756,756,237.50

67. REREBRBBIER
WE B REETESERNER

67. Notes to items in cash flow statement
Other cash received relating to operating activities

&
RMB
AR%T
Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period
HH AHA AL

previous period

LHRE AR

Interest income T B2 U A 418,479,686.35 484,713,750.68
Government grants BT 48 BY 113,088,156.54 109,554,868.46
Others Hip 373,675,808.11 220,989,383.68

Total
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (%)
67. Notes to items in cash flow statement (Continued) 67. B REREEIE(E)
Other cash paid relating to operating activities THHEMEKLEEHEENIE
&
RMB
AR BT

ltem
EH

Cash settlement of confirmation business % &8 % %R 4T &

After-sales and repair fee =P REMERE

Freight and packaging BERBEE

Marketing and external support fee MSFEEERINBLIFE
Travel expenses ZRE

Office expenses WRE

Others Hth

Total A&t

Other cash paid relating to financing activities

[tem

5B

Lease liabilities HEBE

Acquisition of minority interests in BEFRRLERE

subsidiaries
Handling fee for guarantee for ERERRRAUFESE
borrowings and letters of guarantee

Others EAb

Total il

Incurred during

this period
AHERER

701,955,397.30
739,125,641.37
739,740,716.54
643,891,923.93
304,240,154.42
221,533,729.74
1,524,271,580.95

4,874,759,144.25

ST H At 22
&

Incurred during
this period
AHRERE

469,840,785.00

14,964,880.64
35,656,428.76

520,462,094.40

Incurred in
previous period

B

1,630,174,673.14
831,370,117.19
619,794,092.03
735,055,637.87
254,864,436.16
216,479,442.05
2,658,720,031.25

6,946,458,429.69

EETHEMIR

RMB
ARET

Incurred in
previous period

LHAE AR

1,123,266,396.81

22,953,195.00
20,418,250.00

1,166,637,841.81
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V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
68. Supplement to cash flow statement

(%)
68. BEREXRBREER

G OF B R R IH H RE R

(1) Supplement to cash flow statement (1) REeErRERGRER
RMB
AR #T
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HAE AHRAERE LHiB A
Net profit e lpES! 6,892,820,306.14 5,882,229,084.90
Add: Impairment loss of assets o BEMEEK 267,253,210.66 179,326,217.62
Impairment loss of credit EHRMEES% 184,177,256.14 105,247,274.82
Increase in special reserve HIAFE AL 30,110,860.61 25,961,010.72
Depreciation of fixed assets, BEEEE REUFME
investment properties and REREEERE
right-of-use assets 3,059,362,652.83 2,575,463,528.38
Amortization of intangible assets M EERH 873,651,635.51 1,026,465,462.50
Amortization of long-term REGEBREH
prepaid expenses 30,079,729.44 44,326,431.50
Gain on disposal and retirement of EEMRERTEEE
fixed assets, intangible assets B EEMEMRE
and other long-term assets BEMOWE (43,695,373.75) (2,728,432.58)
Finance expenses HBEMA 593,228,998.73 375,878,137.93
Investment income HE W= (372,698,501.34) (221,176,005.84)
Gain on change of fair value DR EBEZH W (25,507,034.78) (26,873,836.25)
Increase in deferred tax assets EEFTEREE/RIZN (695,444,522.91) (227,513,003.87)
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred RIEFFE R EER
tax liabilities R 155,770,738.72 (459,331,132.37)
Increase in inventories FE M N (3,396,172,604.90) (1,400,749,245.51)
Increase in operating receivables 4 A e LG TE B A9 32N (11,418,720,383.36) (4,296,022,431.22)
Increase in operating payables &SR IE B B9 EE N 9,292,229,019.94 4,908,599,995.16
Others Hih - 24,323,700.91

Net cash flow from operating activities

REEPELNRSREFR

5,426,445,987.68

8,513,426,756.80
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 /A1 HZE6H30H 1F A

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
68. Supplement to cash flow statement 68. RERBERMBAER(H)

(Continued)

(1) Supplement to cash flow statement (Continued) (1) BWerRERkEaELE)
Non-cash payment of material investment and THERBAEHERNEENEE
financing activities: EE)

RMB
AR BT
Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period

HE AHA AR HiB A

Acquisition of long-term assets from the  $4& & « IREA KW R A

endorsement of bank acceptance bills RITEHEZESE
received from the sale of goods and ERBERPEE
provision of services 3,715,783,425.89 3,234,365,173.89
RMB
AR #r
Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period

HE AH AL THIE A

Net change in cash and cash equivalents: I8 & MRS EEYFED)

The closing balance of cash Be kRS EEMHHRSE

and cash equivalents 34,620,877,495.59 30,670,147,348.79
Less: The opening balance of B RERREEEDH
cash and cash equivalents g 34,379,938,275.41 26,254,590,256.11

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents I8 4 & I8 © %5 @B 1Y) %1% N5 240,939,220.18 4,415,557,092.68
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& ff B % it 3 £ % EH H 5: &

Statements (Continued) (#)
68. Supplement to cash flow statement 68. REREBERMBAER (&)

(Continued)

(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal (2) MEXKEEFTETFRAK
of major subsidiaries and other business units HMEXEMER
Information relating to disposal of major subsidiaries and EETEFATIREMAL %
other business units BRI E

RMB

N -

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period
HAE AHRAERE LHiB A

Consideration for disposal of subsidiaries Bz & F A 7 Fx E fih & % & {7

and other business units EOFERES 211,615,695.00
Cash and cash equivalents received BEFARIREMEEEN
for disposal of subsidiaries and WEIMBR MBS EEY
other business units 211,615,695.00
Less: Amount of cash and cash B BB T AR RHEAM
equivalents in subsidiaries and EEBURAEN

other business units disposed of RENREEED 81,596,649.32

Net cash received for disposal of BEFRRIREMEEEN

subsidiaries and other business units WERIKIE S FE 130,019,045.68
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 /A1 HZE6H30H 1F A

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51

Statements (Continued) (78)
68. Supplement to cash flow statement 68. REMEBRFBAER (H&)
(Continued)
(3) Cash and cash equivalents (3) HAERkA2FED
RMB
AR T
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
BH 201946 H30H 2018412 A31H
Cash Be 34,620,877,495.59 34,379,938,275.41
Incl: Cash at bank Hod : EFH S 4,624,678.61 81,701,285.69
Bank deposits on demand ] & BF A A S
HERITIER 32,678,469,023.37 33,625,686,012.23
Other cash equivalents on BEASESS AN
demand MEMEEES 1,937,783,793.61 672,550,977.49
Cash and cash equivalents B/ FREER
at end of period/year BeEBYarE 34,620,877,495.59 34,379,938,275.41
RMB
AR#T
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
IHH 2019%6H30H 201812 A31H
Cash and cash equivalents at end of B/ FREBESHEE
period/year 40,507,821,740.72 38,209,952,558.31
Less: Balance of restricted cash and cash & : {5 F3 = ZI| R Il &9
equivalents BB SR 5,886,944,245.13 3,830,014,282.90
Closing balance of cash and cash H/FREL N

equivalents at end of period/year REEBYERTE SUVPL e el | 34,379,938,275.41
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # ~& ff B % #t 3% 1 26 H 51 8
Statements (Continued) (78)
69. Hedges 69. EH

Fair value hedging

In June 2018, KION, a subsidiary of the Company, signed interest
rate swap contracts to conduct fair value hedging on the interest
rate risk of fixed-rate medium-term notes issued this period of par
value of EUR100,000,000.00. As at 30 June 2019, the aforesaid
hedged items of the Group were presented as bonds payable in
the financial statement with a book value of RMB722,830,173.00
(EUR92,469,000.00). During the period from 1 January to 30 June
2019, the book value of the changes and adjustments of fair value
of hedged items accrued to hedged items was RMB102,527,772.00
(EUR13,116,000.00). There was no material invalid hedge for the

current period.

Cash flow hedging

On 1 July 2016, Weichai International Hong Kong Energy Group
Co., Limited (“Hong Kong Energy”), a subsidiary of the Company,
treated the cross currency swaps as hedging instrument, of which
cash flow hedges were conducted to the bonds in foreign currencies
amounting to USD400 million against the cash flow fluctuation
incurred by change in exchange rates. As at 30 June 2019, the total
cash flow of the hedged items amounted to RMB2,920,028,825.00
(EUR373,548,525.65), of which the amount due within 1 year was
RMB113,432,550.00 (EUR14,511,008.06), the amount due within
1-2 years was RMB2,806,596,275.00 (EUR359,037,517.59). The
hedged items would affect the profit and loss until 2020. From 1
January to 30 June 2019, the gain arising from changes in fair value
of the hedging instrument recognized as other comprehensive
income was RMB59,341,967.88 (EUR7,647,480.09), and the
income amount recognized in profit or loss in current period was
RMB14,722,158.95 (EUR1,897,264.64). There was no material
invalid hedge for the current period.

AREEEH

M2018F 6 A + FAAKIONE A
THREEH®REH  BEHEITHE
& % Bt 7T 100,000,000.00 &9 @ &
FMEAHEZEOFXRBRETAR
EEEHH - N2019F6 8308
AEE T EHRIER EH KR
XY TAENES  FEHEEAE
B AR 722,830,173.00 7T (BT
92,469,000.00) ' 20191 A1HE
6A30H ILHMIWEEMIEE AR BE
BFHABNTAGEREANEDE
BEAARM102,527,772.007T (BT
13,116,000.00) ° 7N Bf #% & K E 57
| IBD

ReEmnEEH

2016F7R18 » FRAEIMEEBRER
BREREEARAR(TEELR]
BRXXEETBRAERERENT
B ETH4BEETHIINEES S
REXZHS|IENHRERE RS E
THeEREER - BLE2019%F6 A
30 HEHHEENRERERE
& A AR®?2920,028,825.007C
(BX7t373,548,525.65) * HA1ER
By & %8 A A R 113,432,550.00
JL(BJT14,511,008.06) * 1226 A
EIEAM &8 B AR 2,806,596,275.00
ot ( BX Jt 359,037,517.59 ) °
EHEACE2BENBEKFE
Z 20204 2 2019F1A1HZE6A
30A IEHIM - ZREHITAEGFAHE
o e m e A n BEESKE
& A R 59,341,967.88 7t ( B T

7,647,480.09) - ¥ I E B
H&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ}%)\ﬁﬁ%]z} 72.‘@-158 957
(Eﬁn189726464) CAMBEAR
EHmEn —
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # ~& 0F i % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (748)
69. Hedges (Continued) 69. ﬁﬂﬂ(%)

Cash flow hedging (Continued)

At the commencement of the hedging, KION, a subsidiary of
the Company, has conducted cash flow hedging on forward
currency contracts designated to the exchange rate risk of
forecast sale, forecast purchase and firm commitment. As at 30
June 2019, the total cash flow of the hedged item amounted to
RMB3,025,892,550.53 (EUR387,091,281.89), of which the amount
due within 1 year was RMB2,640,123,600.53 (EUR337,741,281.89),
and the remaining portion will become due in 2020. The hedged
items would affect the profit and loss for the period until 2020.
From 1 January to 30 June 2019, the gain arising from changes
in fair value of the hedging instrument recognized as other
comprehensive income was RMB4,197,729.00 (EUR537,000.00),
the amount recognized in profit or loss in current period was
RMB24,514,112.00 (EUR3,136,000.00). There was no material

invalid hedge for the current period.

KION, a subsidiary of the Company, has conducted cash flow
hedging on interest rate swap contracts designated to the interest
rate risk of floating rate borrowings in acquiring Dematic Group, a
subsidiary of the Company. As at 30 June 2019, the total cash flow
of the hedged item amounted to RMB954,549.50 (EUR122,112.00)
which will become due in 2024. From 1 January to 30 June 2019,
the loss arising from changes in fair value of the hedging instrument
recognized as other comprehensive income was RMB60,104,913.00
(EUR7,689,000.00). No amount was taken to profit or loss for
current period. There was no material invalid hedge for the current

period.

i/mggﬁﬂ(i )

REHMBER - FRFAKIONKE
HSNEASHNIETHBHEE - %E,E;ﬁ
RS LA K B TE AR B SN EE R BB
BeREBER - %Z12019¢6H30
A wEHEERSRELBETE
A ANR#3,025,892,550.53 L (BT
387,091,281.89) + HE & 1F N | H
a8 A ARY2640,123,600.53
ot ( Bt Jt 337,741,281.89 ) -
BE D ER2020F 58 - W EH
BHEBHyYEBE=MHEBBFE
20204 2 2019F1A1HZE6A
30R I ZEBHIAGAH
e am A BEEEY KR
B AN R 4,197,729.00 T ( B T
537,000.00) @ EMEHEB W
BB AARKE24,514,112.007T
(BT 3,136,000.00)  AHIEE X
ERERNEH S

FRABIKIONE A EE R G L1 TE H
Ut 88 7 A AlDematic GroupE’Uf?’EfJ
FEEZRNFERRETRESRE
EH - HE2019F6A30H  HE
HEARSRELETEAARE
954,549.507t (B 122,112.00) -
1§ 72024 F 2 HY - 2019F 1 A1H
Z6A30RLHAM - ZEHIES
AHMEEREH AR EEEHIE
kB ANRM60,104,913.007T (BT
7,689,000.00) * EHMEEAER
e AEEEAEHERN

e
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1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

VI. The Change in Scope of Consolidation N~ D I Y A )
The Group had no material change in scope of consolidation during the NEAEBESREHBENES) -
period.

VILInterest in Other Entities L 7E At 32 B Y RE A
1. Interest in subsidiaries 1. BEFREIHHER

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are ARREZFRAMBERAOT ¢

presented as follows:

Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
[tem operation registration business capital  shareholding (%)
R FTELEH Eidis E33:3-1 ZRER BREA(%)
Direct Indirect
BE B
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BBXUIRESAANENTAT
m Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Shandong Shandong  Manufacturing RMB460,150,000.00  100.00 -
Ltd. IE WE industry  AKR460,150,000.007T
B () BRERAT S
) Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Shanghai Shanghai Manufacturing RMB650,000,000.00  100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. e} il industry AR 650,000,000.007T
BEE (LB REERERAT g
3) Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Jiangsu Jiangsu Manufacturing RMB953,885,379.17 - 71.06
Co., Ltd. TH T industry  AKR953,885,379.177T
BEHNHNERREREAAR g%
(4) Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Chongging Chongging Manufacturing RMB417,854,500.00  100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. BE E industry  AK417,854,500.007T
HEE N (EE)RHERERAF e
(5) Weichai Power (Beijing) International Beijing Beijing Project RMB300,000,000.00  100.00 -
Resources Investment Co., Ltd. kR bl Investment  AK#300,000,000.007
HEH (R BERERREERAT HERE
(6) Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.a Luxembourg Luxembourg Project EUR100,000.00 - 100.00
rl. EAHE ERZ Investment B17£100,000.00
HEHN(ERE)ERBRAR HERE
@ Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International Hong Kong Hong Kong Services USD336,242,497.05 100,00 _— . —
Development Co., Ltd. & e Rk %

36,242,497.00
BRE N (B ERERERAR —
Shandong Heavy Industry India Private : \
Limited - ’ g BE industy  EH823.889.270.00
WRETHRARRLAA ' o '
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 /A1 HZE6H30H 1F A
VIL.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) e H AL E P A RERS ()
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFRARAPHRER (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are AABBEFRBNBERAT - (8)

presented as follows: (Continued)

Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
[tem operation registration business capital  shareholding (%)
EH TELEY i EHHE afEx BRELAI%)
Direct  Indirect
HE G

Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not involving entities under common control

FR-EHTLEAHRANTAA

(99 Shandong Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. Shandong Shandong  Manufacturing RMB450,150,000.00 - 100.00
WREBHBEERRA W I industry  AR%450,150,000.007
g%
(10)  Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing RMB3,706,330,000.00  51.00 -
REEHTEERAT RA BRA industry ~ AK#3,706,330,000.007
RER
(1) Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing RMB320,000,000.00 3.06 94.00
REERERERAR i i industry  AJR%320,000,000.007C
(12 Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing RMB593,360,000.00 - 100.00
RELREEARAR i i industry  AR%593,360,000.007
g%
(13)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing RMB256,790,000.00  51.00 -
REZTRERERETAA PR bR industry  AKR256,790,000.007T
RER
(14)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan Manufacturing RMB531,314,951.00  87.91 -
N ERERELAR il il industry ~ AR¥531,314,951.007
(15 Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan  Manufacturing RIMB282,480,000.00  100.00 -
WHRAEAEZERELERR il il industry  AR%282,480,000.007
g%
(16)  Weichai (Chongqing) Automotive Co., Chongging Chongging  Manufacturing RMB3,030,410,000.00 8433 15.67
Ltd. EE B industry  AK™%3,030,410,000.007T
B (EB)TEERARA RER
(17)  Société International des Moteurs France France  Manufacturing EUR47,311,180.00 - 100.00
Baudouin EE EE industry Br47,311,180.00
HEEE RS NER AR AT REx
(18)  KION Germany Germany  Manufacturing EUR118,090,000.00 = 45.00

KION

4 0

AVIVRLY

184 0
J089,452,784.00
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VIL.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) + Eﬁ@iﬁﬁ PR RERS (4)
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRAIPHERS(E)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

Changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries in this period are

TETFRAREREATRHELRMN

detailed as follows:

BT

31 December Increase in Decrease in 30 June
2018 this period this period 2019
Name of subsidiary FRAREH 018%12831H AEEM KBRS 2019F6H30H
Weichai Power (Shanghai) HEB N (L) 558,500,000.00 42,770,000.00 601,270,000.00
Technology Development REERERDA
Co., Ltd. (RMB) (ARBT)
Weichai (Chongaing) Automotive HE(EE) 2,810,410,000.00 220,000,000.00 3,030,410,000.00
Co., Ltd. (RMB) HEERAHE
(AEET)
Weichai Power (Chongging) HEE N (EE) 389,504,500.00 28,350,000.00 417,854,500.00
Western Development Co., Ltd. ARERERLA
(RMB) (ARBT)
Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel HEEB BN 843,385,379.17 54,970,000.00 898,355,379.17
Engine Co., Ltd. (RMB) KRR BEREALT
(AEET)
Weichai America Corp. (USD) L E(ET) 87,837,230.00 1,615,554.00 89,452,784.00

Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as

FEEELEBRREANFARAMN

follows: T 8
RMB
AR T
Percentage of Accumulated
shareholding Attributable to Dividends minority
of minority minority ~ paid to minority interests at
shareholders interests shareholders  the end of period
SBRE GEOY AP ERE HRRE
Name of subsidiary TRARGH FERRLL DI Rx B % R DERR
KION KION

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.

REERAEERAA

Total

REELHERER

55.00%

1539

07,220,440.55

591,306,14830  9,682,214,981.83

16 754 |

................
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VIL.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) + Eﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬂ A RERS (4)

1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARIPHIER(E)
TRIWRT EFlF R EZEHMKE
B GEEEAASEANSRHE M
MEEEEATNSEE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

The following table illustrates the summarized financial information
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any

inter-company eliminations:

RMB
AR T
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Shaanxi Fast
[tem Motor Co., Ltd. Gear Co., Ltd.
BREERSE i stf
JEH BRAH EREFLQTA
30 June 2019 019%6A30H
Current assets REAE 24,932,493,474.00 37,256,901,284.76 12,754,722,248.58
Non-current assets ERBEE 69,438,148,844.33 5,560,795,523.01 3,048,439,388.47
Total assets BEAF 94,370,642,318.33 42,817,696,807.77 15,803,161,637.05
Current liabilities mEEE 30,828,997,280.00 33,823,215,016.46 5,661,885,516.14
Non-current liabilities ERBERE 47,002,852,182.29 1,510,163,387.10 333,402,756.52
Total liabilities BEAEH 77,831,849,462.29 35,333,378,403.56 5,995,288,272.66
Incurred during this period AHEER
Revenue —ELON 32,864,257,379.95 30,574,805,470.30 8,587,506,744.95
Net profit Vel 1,297,041,469.13 826,287,784.00 856,075,280.11
Total comprehensive income e ER 509,355,410.58 826,287,784.00 862,027,727.49
Net cash flows from operating MEEEEM

activities

REREFE

538,102,625.20

4,126,821,205.91

163,532,692.70
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F
VII.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) S EHA P RS ()
2. Interest in joint ventures and associates 2. EERELENBELESP
A RE 2
Particulars of the principal joint venture and associates of the RAREBEELEMBEDENTG
Company are presented as follows: AR
Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of Accounting
Item operation  registration Business capital (RMB) shareholding (%) treatment
A
EH TEREY i EHME (\R#7) IRELAI(%) EHREE
Direct Indirect
ER 3
Joint venture
aELE
1 Xi'an FC Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing 500,000,000.00 - 5100  Equity method
fifd s g g industry R
HER
Associates
BEbE
(1) Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. Beijing Beijing  Finance lease 1,100,000,000.00 19.565 19.565  Equity method
WEREREARAT IR IR HEEE &%
() Shandong Heavy Industry Group Shandong Shandong Finance 1,600,000,000.00 3125 6.25  Equity method
Finance Co., Ltd. i1 W3 company Eat

LRETSENBERRAR HHOA
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 1R
VIL.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) e H AL E P A RERS ()
2. Interestin joint ventures and associates 2. EEELENBELES
(Continued) ke (&)
Key financial information of principal joint venture: EFEECEPENTENHBER
The following table illustrates the financial information of Xi'an FC: TRINRTARERNHBEES -
RMB
N -
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
HE 2019%6H30H 2018412 A831H
Current assets MENE E 242,120,272.36 237,457,344.81
Non-current assets IEmEAE 226,068,138.12 237,266,700.88
Total assets BEA: 468,188,410.48 474,724,045.69
Current liabilities REAG 243,813,476.19 250,965,184.41
Total liabilities BESE 243,813,476.19 250,965,184.41
Shareholders’ equity attributable to the  $3 B A & 2 & 8 IR 5 i 25
Parent 224,374,934.29 223,758,861.28
Share of net assets based on percentage #Z#FMKLLHIZHH FEEMNDE
of shareholding 114,431,216.49 114,426,965.09
Adjustments FEEIE
- Others —Hfh (7,277,458.17) (7,356,751.17)
Carrying value of investment KENEEER 107,153,758.32 107,070,213.92
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HE IHEA B A EE FHAB A
Revenue EEWA 153,580,592.47 138,025,459.39
Finance expenses Bi 7% & A 2,000,910.64 3,117,840.06
— Net profit B8 163,812.55 176,534.58
Total comprehensive income

e B 163,812.55 176,534.58
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1 January to 30 June 2019

VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)
2.
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Interest in joint ventures and associates

(Continued)

Key financial information of principal associates:

The Group holds 37.50% equity interest of Shandong Heavy

Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Heavy Industry

Finance Co.”), which provides the Group with services of deposits,

credit lending, settlement and other financial services. It is a key

associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity method in

the Group's accounts.

The following table illustrates the financial information of Shandong

Heavy Industry Finance Co.:

+ Eﬁf@iﬁﬁqﬂ%%ﬁ(%)

EEECXRNBELKT
M ()
BERLOCENEEHBES -

AEEFBURETEERBERRD
A([IURETHMBAF])37.50%k
B ILREIMB AR ANEEIREHR

TR EE BEREBSERE
EARBEEZNHELE  AKEY

ZE LR RAEREZE -

TRINRTURETHBRB N

= .
SR

RMB
ARET

[tem

EH

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EREEE
Total assets BEAR
Current liabilities mEaE
Total liabilities BEAR

Shareholders’ equity attributable
to the Parent

BENES QAR RER

Share of net assets based on percentage

of shareholding

BERRLAIZENFEENE

Adjustments: FEE1E
— Others —Hft
Carrying value of investment BEMERER

30 June 2019
2019%6H30H

20,792,732,772.29
6,162,021,285.54

26,954,754,057.83

24,197,150,133.00

24,197,150,133.00

2,757,603,924.83

1,034,101,471.81

15,158,434.15

1,049,259,905.96

31 December 2018
2018412 A831H

18,144,321,814.71
8,288,073,157.59

26,432,394,972.30

23,939,470,221.34

23,939,470,221.34

2,492,924,750.96

934,846,781.61

36,897,947.59

971,744,729.20
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VIL.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) e H AL E P A RERS ()
2. Interest in joint ventures and associates 2. EEELENBELES
(Continued) MR ()

Key financial information of principal associates: (Continued) FEBECENTENBES - (F)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

TRINRTWREIHBHR AR B

The following table illustrates the financial information of Shandong

Heavy Industry Finance Co.: (Continued)

[tem

]S

Revenue LN
Income tax expenses Frisfi & A
Net profit b= IpE

Total comprehensive income bRe W 58

The Group holds 39.13% equity interests of Shanzhong Finance
Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Shanzhong Finance Leasing”), which provides
the Group and its distributors with finance leasing services. It is
a key associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity

method in the Group's accounts.

B8 (&)

Incurred during

this period
AHERER

285,514,573.34
(66,401,391.29)
199,204,173.87
199,204,173.87

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period

ad ik et

330,212,217.19
(49,664,207.81)
148,992,623.42
148,992,623.42

AEERALUEREHRERRAA
(TUERMEMEE])39.13% % - 1L
EREHERSARE R AKEMEH
BRRHEREEEEBRE - RAEKE
EENBRELE  AEEHZBLED
ERAERERE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)
2. Interestin joint ventures and associates
(Continued)

Key financial information of principal associates: (Continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.:

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+ Eﬁf@iﬁﬁqﬂ%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)
HEEELEMBEREF
Ry (4E)
SERECLNEBUBEL ()

TRIRTLUERERENWBE

=N

TN

30 June 2019
20196 H30H

3,632,815,948.81
2,403,796,367.37

6,036,612,316.18

3,690,469,787.75
1,077,905,197.30

[tem

EH

Current assets REEE
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Total assets BEAG
Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Total liabilities BEAR

4,768,374,985.05

Shareholders’ equity attributable

to the Parent

BENE QAR RER

1,268,237,331.13

Share of net assets based on

percentage of shareholding

BERRLAIZENFEENE

496,261,267.67

(74,573.27)

Adjustments FEEIE
— Other — HAth
Carrying value of investment HAERREEE

496,186,694.40

[tem
HE

Incurred during
this period
AL

Revenue
Income tax expenses
Net profit

Total comprehensive income

183,277,893.50

(10,696,023.23) |

33,588,069.66
33,588,069.66

RMB

AR T

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

3,272,083,347.28
2,174,536,928.45

5,446,620,275.73

3,188,853,293.71
1,023,117,720.55

4,211,971,014.26

1,234,649,261.47

483,118,256.01

(130,540.92)

482,987,715.09

RMB
ARET

Incurred in
previous period

CHEAE




Interim Report 2019 F e 227

PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201918 1HZ6H30H 1F 7

{:Eﬁ@£%¢%%§ﬁa

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

2.

Interest in joint ventures and associates
(Continued)

Key financial information of principal associates: (Continued)

The following illustrates the combined financial information of the
associates which, individually, are not significant to the Group:

ERBLXNBELESD
M (E)
EERLOCEMTEMNBEL - (H)

TRIRT HERBERTER O
BREMAHIBES

RMB

AR

ltem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018

IBH 201946 B30H 2018412 831H
Associate i b 5

KREREEES

Total carrying value of investments

3,006,341,061.97

The total amount of the following calculation based on the
percentage of shareholding:

2,901,788,654.92

THIRERFR L PIGFENAFTE

RMB

ART

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period
HAE AHER AR FERE AR
Net profit 3 A 32,927,057.45 68,841,080.96
Other comprehensive loss Hih4r A k518 (5,905,759.65) (9,955,009.69)
Total comprehensive income REe WS RR 27,021,297.80 58,886,071.27

As the Group takes no responsibility for additional losses incurred by
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd., in recognizing its share of the net
losses incurred by Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd., the writing-off
of carrying values of long-term equity investments and other long-
term interests constituting effectively net investments in Shaanxi
Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd. is limited to zero. The Group’s unrecognized
investment losses, for this period and on an accumulative basis,
amounted to RMB1,752,095.07 and RMB86,051,670.43 (2018:
RMB33,883,109.42 and RMB84,299,575.36) respectively.

~ 84,299,575.367T) °

HA AR EEERARST FAERNE

BARTEAEREBEIMNERES
l&tﬁﬁﬁwﬁ A FEBR PO RR AT 45 T BB AR
MER AR EERFEIEN - URE
BREFRENEDBEAREMES £
BRCH AR TR AERMD AR QA
FREMNKARZBLEZTAR @ &
SEAHE ARG REROREBLS
BH BB ARE1,752,095.07 5T F
ANE#86,051,670.43 7T (20184 :
A R #33,883,109.42 T F1 A R #&
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VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)
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2. Interestin joint ventures and associates
(Continued)

Key financial information of principal associates: (Continued)

As the Group takes no responsibility for additional losses incurred
by Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile Co., Ltd., in recognizing
its share of the net losses incurred by Baoding Shangi Tianma
Automobile Co., Ltd., the writing-off of the carrying values of long-
term equity investments and other long-term interests constituting
effectively net investments in Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile
Co., Ltd. is limited to zero. The Group’s unrecognised investment
losses, for this period and on an accumulative basis, amounted to
RMB358,239.12 and RMB7,749,820.43 (2018: RMB125,048.67
and RMB7,391,581.31) respectively.

VIIL.Transfers of Financial Assets

Transferred financial assets that had not been
derecognised in their entirety

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has no transferred financial assets
that had not been derecognised in their entirety (31 December 2018:
RMB52,239,351.00).

Transferred financial assets that had been
derecognised in their entirety but continuously
involved

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had endorsed or discounted bank
acceptance bills, which remained outstanding, with a carrying amount of
RMB13,167,982,996.83 (31 December 2018: RMB10,373,907,226.95). As
at 30 June 2019, they were due in 1 to 12 months. If acceptance banks
dishonor the bills, endorsees shall have the right to turn to the Group for
recourse (“Continuing Involvement”) according to the Law of Negotiable
Instruments.

The Group considered substantially all risk and reward of the bills had
been transferred. Therefore, the Group derecognized the book value
of the related accounts payable that have been settled by the bills. The
undiscounted cash flow and maximum loss of continuing involvement
were equal to the book value of the bills. The Group considers the fair
value of continuing involvement is not significant.

For this period, the Group did not recognize any significant profit or loss
at the date of transfer. The Group had no current or accumulated gain or
expense arising from the continuing involvement in financial assets which

had been derecognized. The endorsement and discount were incurred

evenly throughout the period.

HEELEXNBELEF
MR ()
EEMECENEBUBEL ()

HRAEEHRERARERESR
RARTEBREBIMNEBERET -
At FEERESERTRARXEA
BEERARBENFERE UK
BRERENEEEEAREME
BEFERKERERAREAEAR
REFERENEHEESREZES R
R ARBEARARZTAERNEE
Bre&BEH A A ARME358,239.12
T AR 7,749,820.43 7% (2018
£ ANR#125,048.67 T MARE
7,391,581.317T) °

J\ ~ 4 E S

CERERBERBARALBERNS
mMEE

R2019F6A30R  AEEEDERER
BRXIEROSMAEE (201851231
B : AR#52,239,351.007T) °

CERBRULIBIREEES AW
CEBEMEE

M2019F6A30H ' REEKRIHBHEE
EXMBENRTALEEZENERETEESA
R #13,167,982,996.83 7T (20184 12 A
318 : AR#%10,373,907,226.957T) °
EA2019$6H30E| HEBAA1E12(E

CIRBCERBA AR E - BA R R
%E%ﬁﬁ AH)  HEGAGRAAEEER
([@&r Al -

AEERR  AKECKER THETHR
B E R AMRB - Fit - RLERE RS
ZHEBNEAERMNIRXNEREE - &
BHEARABRAMARFTRRAS RESNE
FHEE - AKERR EESA\AAE
BATERK °

'mﬁﬁﬁamAE%aﬁﬁmﬂ &a%.

WREA o 4 % EEE R ES
REMAEY
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IX. Disclosure of Fair Value
1.
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Ju ~ 2 Su AR A B 3 R

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 1. WaREBEFENEEM
afE
RMB
ARET
Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
AREEFEEANBAE

Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable

active markets inputs inputs

EZTER EZFABE

ERTSEE BAE AR
Item (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
5H (E-ER) (B=BR) (B=ZBR) CE
Receivable Financing R FBERE - 3,165,473,130.72 - 3,165,473,130.72
Financial assets held for trading RHEEREE - 6,558,250,278.29 - 6,558,250,278.29
Investments in other equity instruments E {25 T B#H & 227,637,522.00  1,405,264,373.64 122,923,442.98  1,755,825,338.62
Other non-current financial assets R FRDEREE - 225371,927.00 - 225371,927.00
Financial liabilities held for trading RoMERERE - 144,779,472.63 - 144,779,472.63
Other non-current liabilities EipFRBaE - 103,731,590.00 - 103,731,590.00

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities not measured at fair value

The management of the Group considers that the carrying values of
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
in the financial statements approximate the fair values of those assets

and liabilities.

2. FUAREBEESENESE
EENERMAEENAIAE
AP
AEEEEERA - MIHERRT AR
BRAHENSRAERSBEED
EEEERIZSAERBENAR
B -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities

The management has assessed the cash and cash equivalents, notes
receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables, non-current
assets due within one year, short-term borrowings, notes payable,
accounts payable, other payables and non-current liabilities due
within one year (excluding lease liabilities) and other non-current
liabilities — lease receivables pledged borrowings etc.. In each case,
the fair value and carrying value are similar due to short remaining

period.

The finance team of the Group is led by the head of finance
department. It is responsible for formulating policies and procedures
applicable to the measurement of the fair value of financial
instruments. The finance team directly reports to the Chief Financial
Officer and the Audit Committee. On each balance sheet date, the
finance team analyzes the change in value of financial instruments
and ascertain the key inputs which apply to the valuation. The
process and result of valuation is subject to approval by the Chief

Financial Officer.

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
the forward exchange contracts, cross currency swap and interest
rate swap instruments, some structured deposits and other debt
instrument investments of subsidiaries. The Group believes that the
fair value estimated using valuation techniques is reasonable and

the most appropriate value as of the balance sheet date.

The fair values of listed equity instruments are determined according
to quote prices on the market. For listed equity instruments for
which circulation is restricted, fair values are determined based on
quoted prices on the market with necessary adjustments. The fair
values of investments in non-listed equity instruments are estimated
using the valuating model of market comparison approach, and the
assumptions adopted are not supported by observable market price
or interest rate. The Group needs to estimate unobservable market
parameters such as price-to-book ratio. The Group believes that the

fair value and its changes estimated using valuation techniques is

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 41HZ6H30H 1 EiE

Ju -~ SRR R ()

3.

reasonable and the most appropriate value as of the balance sheet

date. EE———

{EEH B v,_-_...-iE—:

AREERE
TREEeRABAAAEBE
ERECAFETERES  BRE
i - IR - HALREMR - — R
BEMMERBEE - HER - N
i EARK - HEAR - —F
REBIERBEE(TRERE
) ME A SE B B (5 — R E R
ERERS  ARSHRTE - A%
BB E B EAE -

AEBENMEEEKAMBHRFHIREA
RE - BAEVESRITEAAEER
ENREMEFF - YEBEBKERAE
FHBEBENEALZEGRS - BEE
EREXRA  WBEBESTERTA
BEEZY BEGHEEANEZHA
B HRERAENERCERVBEE
AL -

NanBEAEERESHTAEHE
HNEREE/SRHAGBRETET
AEMEHINESH  KXNEEEH
RMEBMT A - FoEBEFERK
HEBTARE - AREHEE - A
HERMHEFTNIABERSERN -
YARRREERBERARAENE
e

ETHENTA  UPISREREL
AEE - ETERRRTRAERT
A TR RIE AKIE L B0 AR
BEDABE - FLTOESTAR
E - RETIS LB ERA G A
AEE RAOBRRLFEETEET
BEBLFELS - AEZEEERD

 BRETABATSSRIEL E o

ARBIRLE - DA E R
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IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

4. Unobservable inputs
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The key unobservable inputs of Level 3 of the measurements of fair

Ju -~ SRR R ()

TuBEE AE
MTASZERAAEENENSE

value are summarized as follows: AR g A Bt
RMB
AR
Range
ltem Closing fair value Valuation technique Unobservable inputs (weighted average)
HERR
= HRAREBE  BERW T BREAE (METHE)
Xiamen Fengtai Bus and Coach 46,500,000.00 Market comparison approach Price-to-sales ratio 0.7
International Co., Ltd. ML mHRES
EFYREEHNERTEERAR
Huarong Xiangjiang Bank 43,644,500.00 Market comparison approach Price-to-book ratio 1.0
ERMTRT TELEE mEE
Others 32,778,942.98
Hh
Total 122,923,442.98
2t

5. Adjustments for fair value measurement

The adjustments for the continuous Level 3 measurement of fair

value are as follows:

Opening
Item halance

— HpE

Total current profitfoss
ERNRTERER

Recognized

Recognized  through other

Transferinto ~~~ Transfer out

Level 3 of evel 3 profitorloss income ~ Acquisition Issuance

BA\ZZER  BHEZER itARE faka BR Gl

through  comprehensive

AR

N

AREEFENADN
HEME = BRA R EEH B OED
T

ak
[
-

i\
/

i
¢

RMB
AR

Changes of unrealized
current gainloss of

Foreign assets held at the end

exchange Closing~ of period recognized!

Sale Settlement gainfloss balance through profitoss
B SEET)

BE AN

EHRERAG

il E EiRE Br4% FRXNED

—
[

Total

5 =GRk

s held fo trading REkAHEE 189,752,130.38
- Ivestment in equity instruments BRIARE 122,923,442.98

123.54 = -

- (19857326 91347872 = =
- ' B/ XLV TVL ] E
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 ik 3R B 5 (4
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F
IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued) Ju~A REE RN YR ()
6. The level change in the fair value 6. AAEBEEXXER
From 1 January to 30 June 2019, there were neither transfers 20191 A1 BZ6H308 LM -
between Level 1 and Level 2 for the measurement of fair value of AEEVESREENERBERIR
financial assets and liabilities, nor transfer into or out of Level 3 (1 BEFEEF—BAMNE_EBRZHE
January to 30 June 2018: nil). WER  TESALEBEHEZERD
BR(2018F1A1EE6A30R IEH
M)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1+ ~B W i B & R H 32 5

The related parties defined in these financial statements included the REEHREPRENBH e ECES
related parties under accounting standards and related parties under HEASRATHERE T bBRIEREES
the information disclosure requirements of China Securities Regulatory EEREEREZEe([FEg ) MFRIEEHFT
Commission (the “CSRC") and Shenzhen Stock Exchange. SHEEERER TR ATHOREH S -

1. Parent 1. BAF

Proportion of Proportion of

ownership voting
interest in power in
Registered address Nature of business Registered capital the Company the Company
HELH HAQT
i 34131 & RRLA RAELA
(%) (%)
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Weifang City, External investment financial guarantee investment RMB1,200,000,000.00 17.12 17.12
HEBREEARLA Shandong Province advisory planning and organization/coordination A 51,200,000,000.007
IS 25 and management of production operating
activities of corporates under the Group
HMRERBERRESANEES/
hAEREEMRLF LEREED)
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. is the ultimate controller RAABHREEFARLRET S
of the Company. ERAF] e
Subsidiaries

Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note VII.1.

Associates and joint v

Details of associates and joint ventures are s inNoteVIL2, i NS &k EF RN

— — =
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X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4,

Particulars of other related parties which
entered into material transactions with the

Group

Company

AFE

Interim Report 2019 FHEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201918 1HZ6H30H 1F 7

Related party relationships
B EE

+ B Bk 5 B AR e A 5 ()

4, HAEAKEBRLEEARSZH
HibBAM S B

Referred to as

a7

Weichai Group Holdings Limited
HREREEAR AR

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR EH O FRAF

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.

MR BRBRMARAA

Weichai Electric Equipment Co., Ltd
HERENRBER LA

Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.
HBNEEREERMNAERAA
Yangzhou Shengda Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
HMNRERFEEFRA A

Dezhou Degong Machinery Co., Ltd.
mMNETHRERAR

Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd.
L T2 EMAR D B R A7)

Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.
AR ERMBRA A

Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.
A EEBEBREEDA

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.

REEZLHAEBHEREERET QA

Shaanxi Automobile Industry Co., Ltd.
PREG)SEEEARAA]

Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and Components Co.

Ltd.
REEST AEZTHHEERAR

Parent

SN

Common control by parent
[Fl 5 & 2 Al
Common control by parent

REGAFLE

Common control by parent

BELEINGEL

Common control by parent

BELEINGEL

Common control by parent

EESPNGFL

Same ultimate controller

Rl — & A4 A

Same ultimate controller

Al — S AR 42 A

Same key management personnel

F—RgEEAR

Minority shareholders of
subsidiary(ies)

FRAEZDEBRER

Minority shareholders of
subsidiary(ies)

FRAZDERE

Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)

FREIEERR 2 @A L

Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)

Weichai Group Holdings

SRR

Weichai Import and Export

S A

Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery

LB

Weichai Electric

BN

Yangzhou Yaxing

HBMELE

Shengda Special Vehicles

BERES

Dezhou Degong

ML

Shantui Engineering

T2

Beiqi Foton

iR fEH

Shaanxi Automotive

PRTRE

Fast Gear Transmission

ELTEHES

Shaanxi Industry

PRTE %

Shaanxi Wanfang
PREE & 5

233



234  \Weichai Power Co., Ltd. % HIRHERAT

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+ B Bk 5 B AR S R 5 ()

4, BEAEEBLEEARSH
HibBAME S B R ()

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

4. Particulars of other related parties which

entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

Company

AF

Related party relationships
B Bt 05 BA 1R

Referred to as

a8

Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd.
PRAEZEE AR A A

Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle
Equipment Co. Ltd.
PREE S REAEERERAR

Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Component Parts Co., Ltd.

RO EZTETEHHAERAR

Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.
PREEE N ERAEEREEAR

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd.

ROEEREFHHERAF

Shaanxi Automotive Group Commercial
Vehicles Co., Ltd.

PSR E R AESRA A

Shaanxi Fangyuan Automobile Standard
Components Co. Ltd.

PREE T B A EREGFER A A

Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd

EIRBMEEEARAA

Shaanxi Huazhen Industry and
Trading Services Co.,Ltd.
PrEZTERBERAA
Shaanxi Jiahe Huaheng Thermal System Co., Ltd.
PREFMEZARGEERA A

Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERE 2 M AT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR 2 %A L
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEERE 2 M AT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR 2 AL
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERE 2 M AT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR 2 BBA LT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEERE 2 B AT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEERR < FBA LT
Related party of substantial

shareholders of subsidiary(ies)

Huazhen Parts

ERE L

Wanfang Tianyun
B RE

Huazhen Component

ERTEMF

Tongli Special Purpose

BOERA

Lantong Transmission

EREyH

Shaanxi Automotive
Commercial Vehicles

BT R E

Fangyuan Automobile

FEARE

Deyin Leasing

mIRHE

Huazhen Services

ERR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi%i i B8 X HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)

4. Particulars of other related parties which

entered into material transactions with the

4, BEAEEBLEEARSH
HAibBAME 5 B R ()

Group (Continued)

Company

AT

Related party relationships
B Bt 05 BA 1R

Referred to as

k]

Shaanxi Automobile Group Changsha Huantong
Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
prATEEERDIRBAIBEREBRAT
Xi'an Deshi Vehicle Components Co., Ltd.
AZELIETHHAREERAA

Xi'an Oude Rubber and Plastic Technology Co., Ltd.

TR BRI R AR AT

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

RAEAERTEARATA

Shaanxi Tianxingjian Vehicle Networking
Information Technology Co., Ltd.
PRAXRITRERBEERMERAE

Xi'an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd.
PR RAESEER A A

CIMC-SHAC (Xi‘an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
RERAERN(AR)EREGRAT

Ballard Power Systems Inc.

BRNESHHERARIA

Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

BRASBERAIEERAA

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.

MR TB T EERE B R A A

Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd.

PRP9BESEYRAR A A

Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEZERE 2B AL
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRBIEERR Z @B AT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEZERR 2B AT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR 2 BRA LT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEERE 2B AT
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
FREIZEE RS
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
FREIZEEREE
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIZEBE R
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
FREIZEERE
Associate of parent
BREZEE RS
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
FRRAIZEBE R

Changsha Huantong
RDIRB

Deshi Components
EET Y

Oude Rubber
EC LT

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special
BRETHEM

Tianxingjian Vehicle
Networking

RITHEER g

Xi‘an Cummics

707 AR AT

CIMC-SHAC

REER

Ballard Power

BRiEsh

Shaanxi Wuhai

pOASE

Westport New Energy

AR

Tonghui Transportation

BEDR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties Z

(1)

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties

Purchase of goods from related parties

Company

A

(1) BBITERMSHERS

A F% 7 8 B B an

Incurred during
this period
AEBERE

Fast Gear Transmission
Shaanxi Automotive Commercial Vehicles
Westport New Energy

Shaanxi Wuhai

Shaanxi Wanfang

Tongli Special Purpose
CIMC-SHAC

Weichai Import and Export
Huazhen Component

Wanfang Tianyun

Deshi Components

Xi‘an Cummics

Weichai Group Holdings

Oude Rubber

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
Lantong Transmission

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special
Jiahe Huaheng

Tianxingjian Vehicle Networking
Fangyuan Automobile

Huazhen Parts

Ballard Power

Others

ETREE)
BRSE AR E
ispe dii= 2
(RN
PR E S
mOEA
REEFR
HESEE O
EZT I
BHXRE
BT
% AT
e TR IR
BifEig 8
S B
B EE)
pRE5HE A
EAMES
RITiR B
FESE
EZIIF
BrEE

Total

RMB
AR BT
Incurred in

previous period

FHAE AR

2,642,232,203.22
1,802,791,415.07
1,457,056,386.56
1,368,965,777.17
819,489,800.78
478,611,471.74
451,858,360.94
414,585,930.78
362,266,313.43
337,080,101.17
319,805,358.07
281,709,018.43
216,969,719.93
191,918,634.72
187,949,692.98
127,407,347.64
115,876,926.83
108,283,157.97
95,057,901.29
51,498,723.64
50,817,168.46
41,960,416.66
735,694,780.35

2,461,733,576.54
1,074,958,345.53
805,434,315.76
1,004,250,622.74
713,478,461.58
448,087,568.28
527,125,671.42
310,390,020.99
313,761,819.00
449,354,293.90
458,983,818.37
200,023,572.29
176,406,753.15
110,837,021.97
140,167,829.05
145,890,734.90
52,147,605.28
25,777,967.62

—_
| 12,659,886,607.83 ~9,964,39

—




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

Major transactions between the Group and its

related parties (Continued)

5.

(1)

Transaction of goods and services with related
parties (Continued)
Sales of goods to related parties
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5. AREHEABMINERR
& (%)
() BMIERNSBRS
(&)
PR 75 34 5 5

Company
~a]
Fast Gear Transmission ETRES
Shaanxi Wuhai RAEE
Weichai Import and Export Mg O
Shaanxi Automotive Commercial

Vehicles BRAmAE
Yangzhou Yaxing HINEE
Beigi Foton A H
Shaanxi Wanfang BREGE T
Weichai Electric HESEE N
Shaanxi Automotive BRAEE
Shantui Engineering Wy T A2
Tongli Special Purpose BOEA
Huazhen Component EZT M
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery AL B
Westport New Energy AR
Shengda Special Vehicles BRERREE
Dezhou Degong mNET
Huazhen Services EERG
Others HAh
Total a5t

Incurred during

this period
AHA AR

1,086,518,542.50
919,024,475.15
533,100,166.96

423,888,018.92
247,047,499.93
221,727,449.40
180,971,853.85
162,490,748.68
149,591,099.54
105,952,146.35
95,376,783.86
93,933,287.47
88,752,468.51
74,641,608.27
58,607,479.22
54,815,620.84
34,492,078.07
1,276,359,274.81

5,807,290,602.33

RMB
AR BT
Incurred in

previous period

LHEB A

1,089,350,349.80
822,731,615.94
450,868,867.83

349,511,589.30
156,771,097.04
175,626,287.71
54,896,447.02
165,603,394.48
37,719,123.73
145,703,659.80
19,939,309.08
84,798,337.09
60,590,623.58
535,324,525.71
122,241,537.78
22,800,667.56
1,434,924,031.84

5,729,401,465.29
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 ik 3R B 5 (4
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi % 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (5)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related () A ATERNEBRS
parties (Continued) (%)
Receiving services from related parties BB T EREH
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in
Company this period previous period
A REA B AR FHAB A
Tonghui Transportation MmiE YR Note 1 £ 1 190,368,169.61 157,104,932.61
Shaanxi Industry BRAEE 68,610,899.60 38,995,858.79
Others Hih 61,351,394.76 135,726,695.48
Total &&F 320,330,463.97 331,827,486.88
Rendering services to related parties [ [ B 7 PR R &5
RMB
AR BT
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
1EH IREA B A EE FHAR A
Others HAb 23,699,719.49 77,032,523.22
Note 1: Tonghui Transportation provided comprehensive services 21 BEVMRARNARZFRAIRK
including agency procurement, warehousing, logistics AERTEFRAARERE
distribution and receipt and payment services to Shaanxi Heavy- wE - Bl WREXRRA
duty Motor Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company. W FERE RS ©

The prices for the Group's sale of goods and rendering

services to related parties as well as purchase of goods and

receiving services from related parties were determined with

reference to market rates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 1R

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions + ~B 5 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (4)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (48)
(2) Leasing with related parties (2) BEAFHEE
RMB
AR BT
Lease revenue for Lease revenue for
[tem Type of leased property {415 olsidlele | the previous period
EE HEEEREE AEFAEBRA FHEERA
As lessor Buildings, equipment & land
EREEA e ] 13,589,799.11 25,940,177.62
The prices for the Group's leasing with related parties were AEEHBEBRFHEXZBER
determined with reference to market rates. SDEMBERRE -
(3) Transfer of assets with related parties (3) BBt EEEE
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem Particulars of transaction this period previous period
HE RHGAR REREEE EHEAEE
Others Purchase of fixed assets
Hth BERBETEEE 7,340,111.01 12,507.50
Others Sale of fixed assets
Hth HERTEEE 1,612,994.97 152,669.44
The price for the Group’s purchase and sale of fixed assets AEBEWBEEHFHBENEE
from and to related parties were determined with reference EAEBRE2EMSERRE
to market rates.
Except for the transactions with associates, all the above BREEEEE N BHETT 2R F N -
transactions of goods and services with related parties, FrE LatEEes h ;M B
leasing with related parties and transfer of assets with related 5  B@BSHEEREHSTEE

i =3 1A

&R LTARD
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

(4)
(a)

(b)

Other related party transactions

Deyin Leasing provides Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, with services of
financial leasing. It was agreed among Deyin Leasing
and third-party distributors that for the vehicle monies
of related business to be receivable by the Group from
distributors, Deyin Leasing may take up the payment
obligation on behalf of the distributors. In this period,
the amount of vehicle sales through this business mode
amounted to RMB1,351,288,300.00 (previous period:
RMB1,211,735,300.00).

Shanzhong Finance Leasing provides distributors and
ultimate customers of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, with services of
financial leasing. In this period, the amount of outright
vehicle sales in cash to distributors through this
business mode amounted to RMB2,686,952,218.00
(previous period: RMB1,137,160,000.00). For details,
see Note XII.3.

S5 ik A W R ()

20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+ B Bk 5 B AR S R 5 ()
5. AKEEERBELINEER

2 (&)
(4)
(a)

HEB X5

BEMAEREARRZFA
AIpRAER AEERAA
RUNEHEES 2R
HMENE- TRHEERE
MHRAEKOER - AJAE
RASRACHAAEAR
B AIBBREER
BAHENERSERA
R ¥ 1,351,288,300.00
oo (£ A AR ¥
1,211,735,300.007%) °

LWEmEEEREARQA
ZFRBRAEERTE
ERAFRMNEHEBEE
RemEPRHERERE
X% AHBBZER
BEAASHETH &
REANERSE/A
K ¥ 2,686,952,218.00
T(EH: AR®

1,137,160,000.00 7T ) °
ERER2ANET= -
3 o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(4) Other related party transactions (Continued)

()

On 30 March 2016, the Group entered into the
Financial Services Agreement with Shandong Heavy
Industry Finance Co.. Pursuant to the agreement,
Shandong Heavy Industry Finance Company provided
deposit, credit, accounting and clearing services as
well as other financial services to the Company and
its controlling subsidiaries. The interest rates for
credit relating to financial services as well as fee rates
are determined according to the Financial Services
Agreement and based upon the relevant requirements
of the People’s Bank of China’s under which the
lending rate shall not exceed the minimum level
permitted under the interest rates and fee rates for
money lending of similar types and categories available
to the Group from other major commercial banks in
the PRC.

Shandong Heavy Industry Finance Co. provides
distributors of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, with credit line
to apply for establishing bank acceptance bills for
the purchase of products from Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Co., Ltd.. In 2019, the credit line amounted to
RMB3,000,000,000.00 (2018: RMB3,000,000,000.00).
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the
difference between amount of notes and guarantee
money. As at 30 June 2019, open position of
outstanding acceptance bill was RMB716,437,563.00
(31 December 2018: RMB577,192,190.00). For details,
see Note XII.2.
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5. AEEHEHBABEINEER

% (&)
HEm@@s AR5 (&)
(@)

(4)

REBMERSETHHR
AIF20164F3 A30H %5
(CERBURB ) - BRIEW
% WHRELUBAAA
AR RERTRARET
FEE - #ERHEME
BAREE - BB SR RS
FEEMEMBERE(S
AR ) im R R B A
RIFTTEBAERFEIEE
REMER ETRRASE
EEEtFrEBRANEER
ERTREHREREX
FEMERBEA TR
KK FHEE ©

IWRETHBRARRAER
RlZFRRAIRBEERNR
BEERARMLCHEEIR
HIREEE - RERLR
TR IES AN EERRA
BRREBRARER
2009 MBEEEEARAA
R # 3,000,000,000.00
T (2018 F + AR ¥
3,000,000,000.007T) ©
PREER RE AR A A
REERRMEERESE
HRFL 2B EFMNE
FIRFEMT - HE2019
F6H308 © MK
MALEZHROEAA
R ¥ 716,437,563.00
gL (20184 12 A31H

AR % 577,192,190.00

- ABEBR2AWE
-|—: s 2o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 A1 HZE6H30H 1F

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi 5 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (4)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBRINIER

related parties (Continued) 2 (48)

(4) Other related party transactions (Continued) (4) EMBEB AR5 (E)
Amounts of transactions with Shandong Heavy Industry AN g B RE T %A a %
Finance Co. are as follows: EHFREISHEMOT

RMB
AR #r
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
15 H AHAB AR FHIE A
Bank deposit placed GFERERITI7 3K Sy rlarb A lE e 58,136,428,982.61
Interest income B YA 129,606,533.75 63,875,295.98
Interest expenses FEZH 6,052,878.37 8,988,583.65
Acquisition of short-term borrowings I35 BB fE 5K = 50,000,000.00
Acquisition of long-term borrowings WS REER 103,400,000.00 -
Establishment of bank acceptance bills B B $R 17 /& 4 [EZ 2,024,557,623.02 1,724,692,266.07
Balances of accounts with Shandong Heavy Industry Finance AEBERNRSETIHBREN
Co. are as follows: FIEMERERFELOT ¢
RMB
AR BT
[tem (OB kBN 31 December 2018
EERE| PORCEAFENN=IN 20186 12H831H
Cash and cash equivalents placed with ~ FHR B F N EEE S
related parties 19,155,319,155.49 19,312,738,649.89
Interest receivable FEWLFI B 73,092,745.48 10,662,718.08
Balance of short-term borrowings HHIBRRE 30,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
Balance of long-term borrowings REE R AR 272,627,751.45 326,327,751.45
Balance of bank acceptance bills F B AR 174 7 [E ZERREE
established 2,439,794,994.97 1,892,130,226.70

Note: Other than the aforementioned finance businesses, Shaanxi Jn
Hande Axle Co., Ltd. (“Hande Axle”, a subsidiary of the Compan
entrusted Shandong Heavy Industry Finance Co. to i
term loan to Hande Axle (Zhuzho 3

of Hande Axle), and the balar

30 June 2019 was RMB160,000,000.0C i

RMB160,000,000.00). The entrusted loan was

of consolidated financial stat nt
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions + ~B 5 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (4)

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAHATEWENRIEERE
RMB
AR
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
2019%6H30H 201812 A31H
Gross carrying Provision for Gross carrying Provision for
[tem amount credit losses amount credit losses
BH IR E &R ER ERBXES IR ERER EREXRER
Accounts receivable
PR R
Weichai Import and Export
HELSE R O 355,385,580.96 6,364,170.88 86,540,109.87 2,616,946.43
Yangzhou Yaxing
B 2 275,982,239.31 4,028,476.40 6,537,120.57 149,143.86
Weichai Electric
HLEE S 266,217,176.78 ACHEREEA S 120,444,708.97 2,411,155.44
Shaanxi Automotive
BT EE 156,632,572.20 = =
Beigi Foton
it)5tE | 148,944,872.99 5,738,134.12 57,282,725.62 2,488,017.14
Shaanxi Wuhai
D SREpi=: 101,214,746.99 5,060,737.35 16,731,547.57 836,577.38
Shaanxi Automotive Commercial Vehicles
BRI A E 96,664,408.29 4,833,220.41 47,639,575.16 2,380,236.93
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
SR E 95,161,476.64 AR 105,452,900.67 3,885,614.79

Changsha Huantong

EORB

Shengda Special Vehicles

RERFES
Others
EHAfth

Total

att

66,381,668.78

51,213,349.95

705,761,086.80

2,319,559,179.69

66,381,668.74

1,023,004.42

83,866,587.92

185,064,631.05

66,364,433.92

3,990,428.02

751,911,854.15

66,364,433.92

86,497.26

66,109,885.76

1,262,895,404.52

147,328,508.91
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BrREWEMNRIERE
(Continued) (#8)
RMB
ARET
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
20196 H30R 2018%F12A31H
Gross carrying Provision for Gross carrying Provision for
ltem amount credit losses amount credit losses
HH AR AR EE ERBXER AR ARE ERBERER
Other receivables
Hitb WK
Others
E 1t 198,267,757.01 (ETTIESTAOHNE S 160,739,314.17 13,781,499.60
RMB
ARET
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
EH 2019%6H30H 2018512 A31H

Notes receivable (Bank acceptance bills)
BRRE(RITEALER)

Yangzhou Yaxing

BN E

Deyin Leasing

Shantui Engineering

LT3R

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery

Dezhou Degong

fEMET

Shengda Special Vehicles

BEREE
Others
HAit

Total

At

494,613,553.15

222,000,000.00

119,137,493.19

99,957,350.09

66,908,000.00

52,278,443.14

29,962,673.64

1,084,857,513.21

555,179,790.70

140,885,358.49

259,000,000.00

"""""
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 /A1 HZE6H30H 1F A

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions + ~Bi % 7 B8 X HAZ 5 (5)
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAB T EWENRIBESRE

(Continued)

ltem

B H

(%)

30 June 2019
201956 H30H

Receivable financing
AR E
Shaanxi Wuhai
pRASE

Shantui Engineering
e T A2

Others

HAh

RMB
ARBT

31 December 2018
2018412 A831H

32,688,000.00

32,912,509.36

30,551,426.20

Total

At

96,151,935.56

[tem

JHH

30 June 2019
2019%6H30H

Prepayments
A RIE

Weichai Import and Export

HESHE O
Ballard Power
BREE N
Huazhen Services

EER
Others

Hitb

RMB
ARET

31 December 2018
2018412 A831H

61,009,291.04

57,696,058.34

41,978,419.84

33,192,751.18

Total
At

3,114,516.65

35,433,591.57

193,876,520.40

- 38,548,108.22
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties

6. BELTEWENREKRE

(Continued)

[tem

B H

(%)

RMB
ARBT

31 December 2018
20184 12H31H

30 June 2019
201946 HA30H

Accounts payable

FE TR X

Westport New Energy

AT BER 868,095,803.55 525,150,338.93
Shaanxi Automotive Commercial Vehicles

oA RS 715,758,884.41 399,807,389.51
Shaanxi Wanfang

pRFE A 438,315,234.15 376,818,608.10
Shaanxi Wuhai

ORI 390,846,831.02 281,620.95
Fast Gear Transmission

ETREE 285,436,452.17 316,120,154.79
Weichai Import and Export

HMSEEL O 245,383,310.76 159,308,692.25
Tongli Special Purpose

BAIEH 212,245,443.25 235,693,024.87
Huazhen Component

EHRT M 174,570,848.50 172,479,139.72
Wanfang Tianyun

B RE 157,410,920.71 122,952,914.97
Deshi Components

EATE 138,416,681.71 =
Xi'an Cummics

FaZc FRAAHT 133,412,077.11 142,269,805.90
Tonghui Transportation

mEEY R 113,302,997.46 77,481,497.07
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special

pRESRER 97,874,421.83 =
Jiahe Huaheng

EMES 82,217,923.71 65,215,202.39
Lantong Transmission

EimEEE 76,699,343.22 54,326,102.70
Tianxingjian Vehicle Networking

RAITHEE B 51,276,037.45

Oude Rubber

BRiE iR B 41,817,419.37

Others

Hfth 470,703,591.95

Total

Bt

4,693,784,222.33 __—=épte
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1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)
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6. BT EWENREKRE
(%)

RMB
ARBT

[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018

HH 20196 HA30H 201812 A31H

Notes payable (Bank acceptance bills)

EREB(RITEALIESR)

Westport New Energy

B B R 1,622,496,999.63 768,230,794.38

Shaanxi Automotive Commercial Vehicles

BTE A E 140,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Huazhen Component

EHTAM 122,000,000.00 19,340,000.00

Others

Hth 26,178,996.70 38,355,075.73

Total

At 1,910,675,996.33 826,925,870.11

RMB

AR T

[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018

1HE 201946 H30H 201812 A31H

Contract liabilities

EEAE

Shaanxi Wuhai

B S 63,787,027.16

Others

Eh 7,138,525.58 466,533.80

Total

&t

7,138,525.58 64,253,560.96
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi 5 5 B8 X HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAB T EWENRIESRE

(Continued)

ltem

B H

(%)

30 June 2019
201956 H30H

RMB
ARBT

31 December 2018
2018412 A831H

Other payables
Hp 1R
Shaanxi Industry
B

Others

HAh

39,292,088.49

84,266,984.34

33,161,581.34

76,052,439.22

Total

At

123,559,072.83

109,214,020.56

[tem

BH

30 June 2019
2019%6H30H

RMB
ARBT

31 December 2018
2018%12A831H

Dividends payable
P& BR R

Weichai Group Holdings
Fast Gear Transmission
ETRES

Shaanxi Automotive

BT

393,708,000.00

107,365,860.26

124,222,012.00

Total

At

393,708,000.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

ltem
HEH
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6. BT EWENREKRE
(%)

RMB
ARBT

31 December 2018
2018F12A31H

30 June 2019
2019%6H30H

Lease liabilities

HEEE
Fast Gear Transmission
ETREE 8,797,359.80 -
Shaanxi Industry
PROAE 3,397,271.01 -
Total
S 12,194,630.81 -
RMB
AR
ltem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
5 H 20196 A30H 2018%12A831H
Long-term payables
REIENR
Other immaterial associates
EfhIEE RH & 2 326,930,391.00 262,774,687.80
RMB
AR
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
IHE 201956 H30H 2018412 A31H

Non-current liabilities due within one year
—FREPNFERBEE
Other immaterial associates

HpIFERB & DX

200,404,429.00

151,437,195.40

Other than long-term payables and non-cu
due from/to relate

BRMENE S R - S
A E R -
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1 January to 30 June 2019

XI. Share-based Payment

Share-based Payment Project Applicable to Staff
Members of KION

As at 30 June 2019, 43,159 (31 December 2018: 43,655) bonus shares
granted by KION were outstanding. The decrease in the number of
shares from last year was due to the lapse of 496 shares (2018: 1,386).
For this period, total costs recognized in respect of equity-settled share-
based payments in relation to the project was EUR351,000.00, equivalent
to RMB2,670,231.01 (previous period: EUR382,000.00, equivalent to
RMB2,973,730.97).

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Managers

As part of the share incentive scheme of KION, managers were granted
virtual shares over a fixed period of time (3 years). Such virtual shares
were apportioned in proportion to the total annual remuneration of
the respective managers who were granted such shares. At the end of
the performance period, the number of the virtual shares so granted is
amended depending on the degree to which the relevant targets are
achieved. The resulting number of virtual shares multiplied by the price
of KION shares at the end of the performance period determines the
amount of cash actually paid finally. KION has the right to adjust it at the
end of performance period when results or development performance is
outstanding. The maximum amount payable is limited to 200 per cent of
the fair value of the virtual shares allotted to an individual at the grant

date.

KIONE I K#HZ{F1EH

H Z=2019% 6 A30H * KION 2 17 £ 4p
B 4T B% 43,159 8% (2018 F 12 A 318
43,6550%)  RER LFR O RHANEAF
496 % B k4 (2018 4F : 1,386 %) » &
HEZEEMABOAREREENRNG X
NHRNER#% R IT351,000.00 ¢
A ARM2670,231.01T( L8 : BT
382,000.00 ' T & AR ¥ 2,973,730.97
7T e

KION 4% 28 B R 8 B 51 &1

{ERKION R A By =t & By — 8B 0~ 32
E—EEENHEARGE) KR T EHRK
o ZEBRBRNIZRELLERER T RO
B B AR FF AL OETT DA - X
BERER BRTERBRONBESRR
HEBRNTREBEETER - BFTEMN
B AR B2 R LAKIONTE 2B Z K
MBRERAERKERTEINNESER
KIONEAEXEXRRLBERREQNBERT
EEZHRMAE - ZRBROXNESEAE
BENMNETFTHERDAEBEN200% A
ER-
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

XI. Share-based Payment (Continued)

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Managers (Continued)

In 2019, a Share Incentive Scheme implemented by KION became
applicable to managers from 1 January 2019, for a term of three years
(KION 2019 Senior Management Long-term Incentive Scheme). On 1
January 2019, 266,179 virtual shares with specific fair value were granted
to managers. Such virtual shares were apportioned in proportion to the
total annual remuneration of the respective managers who were granted

such shares.

The cash-settled share-based payment granted in 2016 is subject to
appraisal for business performance during a period ended 31 December
2018, and was settled in March 2019.

As at 30 June 2019, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled
share-based payments amounted to EUR9,000,000.00, equivalent to
RMB70,353,000.00 (31 December 2018: EUR7,659,000.00, equivalent
to RMB60,102,470.70). In particular, EUR3,800,000.00 belonged to the
2017 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB29,704,600.00 (31 December
2018: EUR2,438,000.00, equivalent to RMB19,131,717.40), and
EUR3,100,000.00 belonged to the 2018 tranche, which was equivalent
to RMB24,232,700.00 (31 December 2018: EUR1,426,000.00, equivalent
to RMB11,190,249.80). EUR2,100,000.00 belonged to the 2019 tranche,
which was equivalent to RMB16,415,700.00.

KIONAE R B &8 (&)

fE2019% - KIONE KB E i T 52019
FI1ATBRAS =-FOHRBEIEE
(KION2019F mE R st &l) - &
2019F1A1H » &£BEE F266,179H A
EREAABENERRKRSG - ZEERRKRN
RREBULEERTROKEALERTD
TEE L BlETT AL ©

2006 F B FHUNIRG EHOR M ZHHE
EEZHE2018F12A431B&R 2
R2019F 3 A -

HZEZ2019F6 A30R ' UWBE2EFE
MR EXNEEANRABEBEESER
B 7t 9,000,000.00 e AR
70,353,000.00 st ( 2018 & 12 A 31
B : Bl Jt 7,659,000.00 @ T & A R
¥ 60,102,470.70 L ) * E F - B T
3,800,000.00 B M 2017 W& T 058 -
fr& AR #29,704,600.007T (20184 12
A318 : Biyr2,438,000.00 ' fTA AR
19,131,717.40 7t ) + B 7T 3,100,000.00
BR2008FHMETMHE  TEAR
¥ 24,232,700.00 7t ( 2018 & 12 A 31
H : BUJT 1,426,000.00 - #r& AR
11,190,249.80 7t ) * [ 7T 2,100,000.00
BR22019FHETHE TAEARE
16,415,700.007T °
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XI. Share-based Payment (Continued) = e AT (4)

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Executive Board

As part of the share incentive scheme of KION, members of the Executive
Board were granted virtual shares over a fixed period of time (3 years).
The remuneration component measured over the long term of members
of the Executive Board is on the same basis of the share incentive scheme
applicable to managers. On 1 January 2019, 111,544 virtual shares with
specified fair value were granted to members of the Executive Board and
apportioned in ways stipulated in the service contract of each member of

the Executive Board.

The cash-settled share-based payment granted in 2016 is subject to
appraisal for business performance during a period ended 31 December
2018, and was settled in March 2019.

As at 30 June 2019, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled
share-based payments amounted to EUR4,200,000.00, equivalent to
RMB32,831,400.00 (31 December 2018: EUR3,780,000.00, equivalent
to RMB29,662,794.00). In particular, EUR1,900,000.00 belonged to
the 2017 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB14,852,300.00 (31
December 2018: EUR1,138,000.00, equivalent to RMB8,930,227.40), and
EUR1,400,000.00 belonged to the 2018 tranche, which was equivalent to
RMB10,943,800.00 (31 December 2018: EUR544,000.00, equivalent to
RMB4,268,931.20). EUR900,000.00 belonged to the 2019 tranche, which
was equivalent to RMB7,035,300.00.

KION# 1T Z E SR E R BT &

YERKIONIR #E B 5T 86 — 35 - B 1T
ZzagXBE—EEEHHAEANGE)H
BTEEHRKRN HITZEEKENREAR
B e 5+ 2 B _E il A 38 AR M R D R B 5 vk —
Be 2019118 - ITEZEBEKEW
BFI11,5440 BB HE AR EENE R
B ZEBRBROEBRBEMHITEZESN
ERRBEAERPRENTRDE -

2016 F R TFHNR S EENRD I E
EEZHN2018F12831B&EER T2
R2019F3 A M I -

HE2019F6 308 LLBES2EEHE
WRHDEINEENRITEBESER
B JT 4,200,000.00 e AR B
32,831,400.00 7t ( 2018 & 12 A 31
B : B Jt 3,780,000.00 © #T &4 A B
¥ 29,662,794.00 ) - H - E T
1,900,000.00 B 2017 F W% F 1D 58 -
A AR B 14,852,300.007C (20184 12
A318 : BJc1,138,000.00 ' TA AR
#8,930,227.407t) * BT 1,400,000.00
BR2018EFEHNETHE  TAEARK
10,943,800.007t (2018412 A318 : &
J0544,000.00 * #f1& AR #4,268,931.20
JL) * BL78900,000.00 B 2019 FE K % T
%8 - #1& AR%7,035,300.007T °
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XII. Commitments and Contingencies +o ok EE A B
1. Significant commitments 1. EEARER

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

ltem
BH

Capital commitments

BAAGH

Exposure to confirmation risks

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tri-party cooperation agreement with distributors
and endorsing bank. Distributors will deposit guarantee money
of no lower than 30% to the bank and apply for establishment
of bank acceptance bill for the purchase of products of Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. according to the amount of credit
facility provided by the bank. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd. assumes security obligation in favour of the distributors
for the difference between amount of notes and guarantee
money. Products are delivered to distributors and revenue is
recognized when Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. receives
the amount representing the aforementioned difference from the
distributors. As at 30 June 2019, open position of outstanding
acceptance bills was RMB3,129,202,703.00 (31 December 2018:
RMB2,482,464,077.00). Further, pursuant to the tri-party indemnity
agreement entered into among Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd., the distributors and the guarantors of the distributors, the
distributors shall indemnify Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. in
respect of the aforesaid security obligation for the said difference
in amount or losses suffered, and their guarantors shall be jointly
liable for the same. To date, distributors under this arrangement
have hardly had any default. The Group is of the view that the risk
exposure related to the provision of these security obligations is

minimal, and thus no accruals and provisions have been made.

RMB
ARET

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
201946 A30H 2018412 A831H

3,993,246,687.34 3,583,748,911.89

R 5 A O =
RABZFRARRASR AEFRA
AR ARRIT=FFT=
FalEmE  SHEEmmRITEATNK
R30%MRES - BREBELRTHTH
—EEAREE - PERIRITEALE
EHARBERAERNREARA A
Em RAERTEERLA ALK
HAREERSHFRRIZIECHE
EHRAREEML RAFEAR
ERARERIIGHEEFEALRE
EMEeR  MEEBARNERIL
ERKA - HZE2019F6H308 -
MRS EASEZHOEAAR
#3,129,202,703.00 7T (20184 12
HA318 : AR#%2,482,464,077.00
JT) e bkAh - REBRAER RERR
NE] > EHEBPREHEPAHREAN=S
FREER - LHEEEEREER R
HERABIARENEZREREENE
ZHEL  ERBAREETREER
EoBIEBER - LETBE TN
FRRFEEBENSEN  AEERR
HREZERFETEBANRRR
N B AR ERTEF BE -
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1 January to 30 June 2019

XII. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

3.

Business related to finance lease company

Regarding the outright product sales to distributors in cash by
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. entered into a cooperation
agreement with Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.. It is agreed
by and between the two parties that Shanzhong Finance Leasing
Co., Ltd. shall provide finance lease service to distributors or
ultimate customers of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. shall jointly guarantee repurchase
of physical assets upon presentation in respect of the leasee’s
(ultimate customers’) failure to pay the instalment payments and
interests under the finance lease, on condition that product quality
required by Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. is satisfied. As at
30 June 2019, risk exposure in respect of possible guarantee for
joint liabilities was RMB2,865,695,077.00 (31 December 2018:
RMB2,303,128,504.91). To date, the Group had not received any
request for repurchase under this sort of business. The Group is
of the view that the risk exposure related to the provision of these
guarantees for joint liabilities is minimal, and thus no accruals and

provisions have been made.

Guarantee

[tem
IHEH

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+

ﬂ%&iﬁ%

Other guarantee

H b ER

813,034,444.50

The aforementioned guarantee represents the guarantee provided
by KION in respect of the obligations of its subsidiaries under
defined benefit plan(s).

{(#)
HEEHEARNBEBMNE
%
HRARRZ FARIRAZER REHR
BERTL%%%%E%? KPR E
CREBERREAR NG HELER
éfz“ﬁiéfm?\f’ﬁﬁ% CERFHNEILE
MEREARAZTH REFR AL
L kA KREPIRERERER
% RAENSEERARARATE
ERFEREL (BIHEP)REZNRME
HESBNRRFEH - EmEREA
ENAEEARARNENEREER
HTREETHRYBEST BE
20196 A30R » EEBEMTRE
B0 & AR%2,865695077.00
L (2018F 12 A31H : AR
2,303,128,504.9170) » &1 B Al -
REEERWDBILEEL TH DO
Bk AEBERAERHZEETE

ERBEEORBEN - Bt KR
AL -
BREE

RMB

ARHT

30 June 2019
2019%6H30H

31 December 2018
20184%12A31H

702,192,098.60

L ERREKIONBE FARRER
et BB RHEHELR -
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XIIL Subsequent Events S EEAMEKHREN
Distribution of interim dividend for year 2019 TKEE2019F P HAALF

On 29 August 2019, under the authority granted by the shareholders R2019F8A29H » AR ARARAEEEIR
BREEXE FEZBBURTERHK
7,933,873, 895 REH - MEBKRRE
TORRBERSAFARBEI.50T(EH)

TERAESEERA -

of the Company, the Board considered and approved the distribution to
all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.50 (including tax) for every
10 shares held, based on the total number of shares of the Company of

7,933,873,895 shares, without any capitalisation of reserve.

XIV. Other Significant Events I JH At T BRI
1. Leases 1. &
As the lessor EAEEA

Finance leases: As at 30 June 2019, the balance of unrealized
finance income was RMB912,415,874.00 (31 December 2018:
RMB845,829,077.80) and was apportioned to the leasing period

BMEME : ®R2019F6HA308 -
RERBMENENRER/RARE
912,415,874.007C (20184 12 A 31
H : AR¥845,829,077.807T) &
AEBEBRRZAERE A S @R E
under non-cancellable leases are as follows: T8 - RIBEARAZITINHES
A TAIREEENREREWRRE
LU

using effective interest rate method. Pursuant to the leasing

contract signed with the lessee, the minimum lease receivables

RMB
ARHT

Lease period

k=it

Within (and inclusive of) 1 year 1EAA(E1E)
1 to (and inclusive of) 2 years 1ER2E(E24F)
2 to (and inclusive of) 3 years 2EE3IF(F3F)
Over 3 years 3FE

Total a5t

For fixed assets leased out under operating lease, refer to Note V.17.

30 June 2019
201946 H30H

2,846,199,686.70
2,636,930,815.40
2,140,172,083.69
3,147,727,309.14

10,771,029,894.93

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

2,488,425,913.80
2,318,759,440.50
1,881,939,486.00
2,767,860,419.50

9,456,985,259.80

KEMEBEEEE  28MaER -

17 »
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XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) T A T B UE ()

2. Segment reporting 2. 7WHRE

Operating segments 1 BB
The Group organizes and manages its operating business in AEEMKLEEBRIBEEFAMELG LA
accordance with the nature of business and provision of products FETIRHME R MRS S BAGZME
and services. Each operating segment of the Group is one operating B REBNFEKLE DA —EE
group, providing products and services with risks and rewards BEE  REERTRNEMEED
different from those of other operating segments. FB &Y [ fex I BRAF A [R5 H A 45 & o5 3D

B 3R M ) 2 o MR A o

The details of operating segments are as follows: AT RE &S EFAE S HE

(@) manufacturing and sale of engines and related parts (a) HENEEEHBNERAZTS
(“Engines”); (2]

(b)  manufacturing and sale of automobiles and major automobile by H£ERBEERBEREBAREE
components other than engines (“Automobiles and other EH (T EIEESE) ([AER
major automobile components”); HihF ZFETHF]) ¢

(©  manufacturing and sale of other automobile components (00 £EMBEEEMTBEZIMH
("Other components”); (TEMZZBHE])

(d)  provision of import and export services (“Import & export (d) IWEELHORBK(IEL DR
services"); %)

(e)  forklift trucks production, warehousing technology and () XNHEAE - - AERMEEERE
supply chain solution services (“Forklift trucks and supply R ERS ([ X B L EHE

chain solution”). FRRAR]) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

Management monitors the results of operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted total
profits. The adjusted total profits are measured consistently with
the Group’s total profits, except that finance expenses, investment
income, dividend income, gains from changes in fair value of
financial instruments as well as head office expenses are excluded

from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss for the current period, derivative instruments,
dividends receivable, interests receivable, equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income, long-
term equity investments, deferred tax assets and other unallocated

head office assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative instruments, borrowings,
income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
head office liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

Inter-segment transfers are transacted with reference to the prices

used in the transactions carried out with third parties.

DEEE (&)

REDEB(E)
EREEHNEEERMTEEENR
FAEW  HEEBETHNEEXRS
FETTEIR - DEEE  UAREND
A AEMEITE - ZIBEERY
MEABETAEZNER  RIAE
EUBER &Rz - BRAKA -
SRTAEAREAZDH N EUREAE
BRI ZIEERRNEETERRE

— B Hy o

DWEETBEUNAREEFESAE
BHHATHMBENERERE - 17
ETE - BREF - BEFIE - BE
RARABEFEEHEEHFARM
FElRNERERE  REOBRER
B RERSHEEMEMRDEN
mHEE REENELEESIHAN
SEZE—FE-

DMEETBENETR A&
RHEH  BEMSHBERAREM

ANEWBTAE REERELR

BEHRASER—ERE -

DEREHNEEEE  2RAE=T7#E
TR SHARMBEEBRGIE °
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XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) T At EE B R E (4)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DEHE (&)
Operating segments (Continued) wEDEB(LE)

RMB
AR T
Automobiles Forklift
and other major trucks and
automobile Other Import & supply chain
Item Engines components components export services solution
RERLM XER{tEE
L BB TERERRAE B 254 phal:iy BARR
Amount incurred in the current period TEREE
Seqment revenue: APRA -
Sale to external customers NIZPHE 1891582874343  37,977,73317637  1,103,232,32050 113,769,326.77  32,751,932,953.41  90,862,496,52048
Inter-segment sale HPEHE 7,186,202,237.09 35,279,525.10 712,789,488.08 22,564,054.88 11232442654 8,669,159,732.29
Total it 26,702,030,98052  38,013,012,70207  1,816,021,808.58 136,333,381.65  32,864,257,379.95  99,531,656,252.77
Adjustment: gE:
Elimination o inter-segment sale BEoBMEE (8,669,159,732.29)
Revenue WA 90,862,496,520.48
Seqment results pEET 1,611,270,456.86 86,223,300.61 (10.271,765.03)  1,995,591,584.17  8459,509,605.26
Adustment: HE
Elimination of inter-seqment results R ES (439,148,151.95)
Interest income HERA 479,664,629.04
Divdend income and unallocated income R EMA R A S B 502,015,37059
Corporate and other unallocated expenses  AEREMASFHRT (30,391,826.11)
Finance expenses HERA (621,007,2005)

Profit before tax HafE 8,350,642,426.58
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XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) T Al R BE SR (4
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. PMwE(E)

Operating segments (Continued)

IZ\éTE'L‘/_\_LB(I/\)

RMB
AR

Automobiles Forklift

trucks and

and other major

automobile Other Import & supply chain

Engines components components  export services solution

REREM XER HEE
CEL Yk LA EHARE BAnE

45,009,117,71097  38,720347,442.06  22,886,005,508.29  13,568,673,440.80  89,342,719,807.85 209,586,863,909.97

- (30,683,881,446.11)
- 5344433924439

- 232,347,321,708.25

39,338,447,02200  2301,346,402.29  2,605,836,157.55  46,297,374,51433  127,781,922,993.10
- (14795,032,219.59)

- 53,499,497,000.22

- 166,486,387,782.73

[tem
i
30June 2019 2019564308
Seqment assets AHEE
Adustment: g
Eimination of inter-segment assets BEADMEEE
Corporate and other unallocated assets ¥R EMAAEEE
Total assets 4EE
Seqment liablties AHEE
Adjustment g
Elimination of inter-segment liabilties BEABEAR
Corporate and other unallocated iailfies A2 REHAIRERE
Totalibiftes haf
Amount incurred in the currentperiod ~ AEBEE
Other segment information: AlAHER -
Share of proft and loss from: EiETSIARNERER :
Gain/{loss) from associates and joint ventures B 14 2 b
i/ (B%)

Loss of impairment of inventories FERERL
Reversal/loss) of credit impairment of UGS R ERSE

accounts receivable and other receivables %R/ (1B%)
Loss of impairment of non-current assets — FEHEERERR
Depreciation and amortzation F’Tﬁ&%’
Gain/oss)from disposal of fieed assets ERENG/(BX)
Investment in associates and joint ventures yvsﬂl ENEMRE
Capital expenditure EARR

60,137,591.48
(15,517,989.09)

42,852,741.48
(153,198,783.13)

(954891.99)  (57,837,407.39)
(11,316,303.78) =

19,526,724.34
(87,049,020.40)

123,724,757.92
(267,082,096.40)

(52,674,844.34
(16,729.52
(397,085,706.86
(3,302,61981
1,311,115,102.06

(75,718,597.63) (6,354,628.77) (90,085.20)  (49,339,100.20)
(154,384.74) - - (171,114.26)
(93,998,794.90) (8,995,064.36)  (2910916,050.75)  (3,963,094,017.78)
20,720,907.09 - 22,909975.75 43971,693.4
275713407 1892652,846.22 73562450453 4,658 941,420.65

102,130,003.34 13539,857.75 444354800560  7,350,206,621.70

(184,177,256.14)

(552,117,400.91)
364343021
116,791,833.77
1,297,151,906.07

)
)
)
)

1,493,836,848.94
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2. Segment Reporting (Continued)

Group information

Information about products and services

Revenue from external transactions

[tem
HH

Engines, complete vehicles and key

HEH  EBRERTHS

components
Other non-major automobile components H i 3 = B ;58 T2 4
Forklift trucks and supply chain solution X EE f fH FE $8 fif R 77 22
Others Hpth
Total a&h
Geographic information
Revenue from external transactions
[tem
1HE
Mainland China A B K BE
Other countries and regions H i B R T4 [
Total &t

2B E (&’
EWESR

Emn M %= 8

HINZHWA

Amount

incurred in the

current period

REBAEHE

49,840,061,101.56
5,838,628,524.31
32,751,932,953.41
2,431,873,941.20

90,862,496,520.48

HIEE 8
HIZZBA

Amount
incurred in the
current period

A AR

55,447,227,495.42
35,415,269,025.06

90,862,496,520.48

M ﬁﬂiﬂﬁ%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)

&)

RMB

AR BT
Amount
incurred in the

previous period

EHAEE AR

43,747,122,826.09
5,374,539,079.42
29,821,237,966.54
3,321,007,036.83

82,263,906,908.88

RMB
ARETT

Amount
incurred in the
previous period

FHA AR

49,809,908,688.78
32,453,998,220.10

182,263,906,908.88




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

XIV.

2.

Other Significant Events (Continued)

Segment Reporting (Continued)
Group information (Continued)
Geographic information (Continued)

Total non-current assets

Interim Report 2019 FHEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201918 1HZ6H30H 1F 7

4 ﬁﬂﬂi%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)

DE R E (&)
SEELS(E)
(58 (&)
FnBEERTE
RMB
AR

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
20196 H30H 2018412 A31H

19,445,058,684.25 17,812,200,295.51
70,204,237,675.99 66,908,369,846.00

[tem

=

Mainland China A B K R

Other countries and regions HAth B R A [
Total &t

89,649,296,360.24 84,720,570,141.51

Non-current assets are attributable to the areas where the assets

are located, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

During the Period, revenue of RMB4,533,581,828.41 (previous
period: RMB3,425,111,762.01) was derived from sales by Engines
segment and Automobiles and other major automobile components
segment to a single customer, including sales to a group of entities

which is known to be under common control by that customer.

Comparative figures

As stated in Note .33, in compliance with the requirement under
the Notice on Revising and Circulating General Corporate Financial
Statement Formats 2019 (Cai Kuai [2019] No.6), adjustments
have been made to the accounting treatment and presentation
of certain items in the financial statements and the amounts in
financial statements in order to conform to the new requirements.
Accordingly, certain prior year data have been adjusted and certain
comparative data have been reclassified and restated to conform

with the requirements on presentation and accounting treatment in

the current period.

;‘Fiﬁiﬂ%?zﬁ% RZBEEMRRE -
BRESBEENECHSHEE -

FEEFFE

N OH g ¥ B A AR E
4,533,581,828.4170( L8« AR
3,425,111,762.01 7% ) 3 B 7 3 B #
DEMABREMEFETEEHHS
HHE-—BEATF(REEANZZE
PEGITRRAEE)HRA -

3. HREIE

MK =~ 33FTH AR AEEH
TCRAMMERTEN S 2019 E — R ¥
B mA KN ABA) (1 €[2019]6
SOMER  MMEAFETHEHED
SREEMIFRURABREPNS
BOEBENR  WFEHMER 1]
it ETUNFERECLAE

EThHREBRELREEWSEM -
A ARSI R E SRR E K o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2019

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements
1. Notes receivable
Classification of notes receivable

ltem

BEH

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

IEAVAEES JU Rl £ SIS

1. EREE
FEU Z 15 4
RMB
A R #T

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
201946 HA30H 2018412 A831H

Bank acceptance bills RITHEAIEE

25,805,610,482.40 21,026,407,121.15

Notes receivable pledged by the Company at period end

[tem
EH

HIR AR ERNEWNERE

RMB
ARET

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
201946 A30H 2018412 A831H

Bank acceptance bills HRITHEH R

11,476,754,848.66 11,313,090,186.43

Notes receivable endorsed by the Company at period end
and not yet expired as at the balance sheet date

HARALRICEEBEEERE
=B RARI N RERE

RMB
ARET

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
20196 HA30H 2018%12A31H

[tem
EH
Bank acceptance bills RITHARHIEEZ

165,170,952.79 246,466,363.93

As at 30 June 2019, the Company had not transferred any notes
into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure in performance
(31 December 2018: Nil).

MN2019F6H30H ' KRARIEREE
- AENBAMEZEE SEKERN
= dm) o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 1R

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 3 B B % 3 % 386 H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)

2. Accounts receivable 2. EBWER
The Company trades with its customers primarily on credit terms, RAFEEFENE SBEIUAEAR
and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new SAHE  B—REJFEFTENMNKK
customers. Credit period for credit customers is generally one to six ERERNZRARNET  BREEPH
months. Accounts receivable is non-interest bearing. EAPREEIZ6MEA - BWER

W B -

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is BIEFER A - EURERRER ST
presented as follows: T
RMB
AR T
Age 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
AR 201956 H30H 20184128318
Within 1 year 1F A 3,402,556,760.98 1,056,756,196.25
1 to 2 years 1FEE2F 29,558,978.48 27,568,188.67
2 to 3 years 2FEFE3F 370,500.00 17,531,501.58
Over 3 years 3FLA F 3,536,750.03 4,486,414.67
Total at original amount REEE 3,436,022,989.49 1,106,342,301.17
Less: Provision for credit loss in respect of i : fEULBRE Z = 1B K EE

accounts receivable 79,677,269.03 36,582,733.17

Total at net amount FEEAE 3,356,345,720.46 1,069,759,568.00

Disclosure by category of provision for credit losses RERBEIR T EDEIRE

RMB
AR

30 June 2019
201946 H30H

Gross carrying Provision for
amount  Proportion credit losses  Percentage
i Item AR [E 85 2R e 41 ERBXRER sT R EE Bl
— EH (%) (%)

Items assessed for expected 1% {2 FH & & HF & ;
 HANGES

—

credit losses by group

3,436,022,989.49 100.00 79,677,269.03
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 2R

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial %/ 7 % B % H % E H 518

Statements (Continued) (%)
2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2. EBWER(E)
As at 30 June 2019, the Company’s accounts receivable for which MR2019F6A30H AR EKAKRER
credit losses are provided for using aging analysis are presented as DT REHIR(E 1B R EE A FE W BR 3
follows: BT
RMB
AR BT
30 June 2019
201946 H30H
Expected credit
Carrying amount Expected loss during
estimated to credit loss the entire
be in default rate (%) subsistence
AT REED EHER BEFENAE
Age BRI K BRTE A5 BRE HEABX
(%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 1,237,291,514.26 3.41 42,208,643.48
1 to 2 years 1224 26,080,529.67 15.00 3,912,079.45
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 370,500.00 30.00 111,150.00
3 to 4 years 3E4%F 150,100.00 50.00 75,050.00
Over 5 years S5EA E 3,386,650.03 100.00 3,386,650.03
Total A% 1,267,279,293.96 3.92 49,693,572.96
As at 30 June 2019, provisions for credit losses for the Company’s MR2019F6A30H © AR a{zArk
accounts receivable with good credit history are presented as BENEKRFEASTIRERELE
follows: HOBERAT
RMB
AR%T
30 June 2019
201946 H30H
Expected credit
Carrying amount Expected loss during
estimated to credit loss the entire
il be in default rate (%) subsistence
S EERLAEON EHEAR B {8 17
Item R == IREERER BA®E FHEREX

(%)

Accounts receivable with good credit : a - 7
history e 7E LUk 1.38 29,983,696.07




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)

2.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a sum of closing balance of RMB1,135,235,541.65
(31 December 2018: RMB535,763,169.18), accounting for 33.04%
(31 December 2018: 48.43%) of the total of closing balance of
accounts receivable. The closing balance in respect of credit losses
provided for the top five amounted to RMB14,121,699.10 (31
December 2018: RMB11,192,370.14).

Provision for credit losses:

Increase upon
acquisition by way

[tem 31 December 2018 of absorption
R 2018F12A31R TR & G2 i
Provision for credit losses ~ {ERIB%KER 36,582,733.17 10,183,528.86

As at 30 June 2019, no accounts receivable had been pledged to

secure bank borrowings of the Company (31 December 2018: Nil).

Interim Report 2019 A HAR&E

PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201918 1HZ6H30H 1F 7

T2 ) BB B R I H Rk

(
2

)

PE Wt BR K (48D

R201946 4308 @ EBATARK
EWESHEBARBREATAARE
1,135,235,541.65 7T ( 2018 F 12
A318 : AR®535763,169.18
L) HERERERBREASGH
B Lt Bl 5 33.04% (2018 4 12 A 31
H:48.43%) ' #Z Al A & AEEHR
MiERBRERIARBEAARYE
14,121,699.10 7T (2018 4 12 A 31
H: AR¥11,192,370.147T) °

ERBERERNER

RMB
AR

Change during the period

FHBDER

32,911,007.00 =

Provision

Collected
or reversed

hEHEE

30 June 2019

it 2019F6H30A

79,677,269.03

H2019F6 A30H + AR A E A E U
BRF(2018F12A31H « &)L
REVGIRITERNIBR -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
3. Receivable financing
Classification of receivable financing

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+14 ﬁgﬂigﬂ?f%‘ﬁ%ﬁ H &k B
3, BWHERE

FEM AR E D18
RMB

AR®BT

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
201946 HA30H 2018412 A831H

[tem

EH

Bank acceptance bills at fair value NARBEFEDN
RITEEESR

22,318,583.87 -

Receivable financing endorsed by the Company as at
period end and not yet expired as at the balance sheet

HARARRIEEEAEEERER
B i R B B 0 FE WK TR B B

date
RMB
AR BT
[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
BB 201946 A30H 20184 12H31H
Bank acceptance bills at fair value NAREEFED
RITHEHESR 27,539,686.68 -

As at 30 June 2019, no receivable financing had been pledged
(31 December 2018: Nil).

4. Other receivables
Presented by categories

[tem
HH

Interest receivable
Dividend receivable

Other receivables

Total

M2019F 6 A30H * AR RIEDE
R R RERME (2018412 A 31
B:&E)-

4. EHtEUR

DIRIIR

RMB
ARKT

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
201946 A30H

73,092,745.48 | 2 718.(
59,706,315.49 292.560,465.7!
192,244,757.07

325,043,818.04
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019F 1 /A1 HZE6H30H 1F A

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial /2 & 32 % B % 3 % 086 H 5E &

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Other receivables (Continued) 4. HMEWF(E)
Interest receivable JFE USRI B
RMB
AR
ltem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
A H 201946 H30H 20184 12H31H
Fixed deposits FHFER 73,092,745.48 10,662,718.08
Dividend receivable e L % )
RMB
AR T
30 June 2019 31 December 2018
Investee entity WIRE B 2019%6H30H 2018412 A31H
Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. BN N B A FEZE
EREERF 31,516,538.44 51,516,557.89
Weichai (Weifang) Medium-duty Diesel % (437 ) F Y 52 5
Engine Co., Ltd. BERAA 27,606,987.32 =
Weichai Power (Beijing) International B N (L R)BEBRER
Resource Investment Co., Ltd. KEBRAT] 582,789.73 =
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. PR ERTEFR A A 122,839,167.59
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. [ Qihrmu =l ol SN (N /NI 111,748,140.27
Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. PRIEEZEBFB AR A A 6,456,600.00

Total A&t 59,706,315.49 292,560,465.75
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RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 3 B B % 3 % 386 H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (#)
4. Other receivables (Continued) 4, HEWFR(E)
Other receivables H A & UK
E b UG BRI DTN T -

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

RMB

AR

[tem 30 June 2019 31 December 2018
BHH 201946 H30H 201812 A31H
Within 1 year 15 AR 190,244,524.51 196,865,843.17
1to 2 years 1226F 5,943,518.21 4,175,428.86
2 to 3 years 2F3F 407,214.63 -
Over 5 years 5 5,140,794.07 5,459,484.50
Total at original amount FEAGT 201,736,051.42 206,500,756.53

Less: Provision for credit loss in respect of & : £ {th JE UL (= B 18 L 4E

other receivables 9,491,294.35 7,897,223.93

Total at net amount FEAET 192,244,757.07 198,603,532.60

Classification of other receivables by nature: HMEWRIBREE BN

RMB

ARET

[tem 30 June 2019
BH 20196 H30H

31 December 2018
2018%12A31H

Advance to subsidiaries

Reserve fund HERE
Deposits e
Others EAh

Total &5

192,777,894.57
3,239,987.63
485,039.00
5,233,130.22

201,736,051.42

191,459,127.78
7,461,378.03
1,656,955.62
5,923,295.10

206,500,756.53
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48

1 January to 30 June 2019

201918 1HZ6H30H 1F 7

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 3 B B % 3 % 386 H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Other receivables (Continued) 4., HMEWRK(E)
Other receivables (Continued) H A FE R (4B)
Provision for credit losses in respect of other receivables: HEi W=z AEKEFENISN

tem
R

Change during the period
ARRHEE

Adjustment for
Collected Written off exchange

31 December 2018 Provision or reversed or eliminated differences 30 June 2019

20185124318 it KEZER Rk EXZHRE 201956 A30R

Provision for credit losses

ERBXRR 18972393 1,594,507.20 (436.78) 9,491,294.35

As at 30 June 2019, the top 5 other receivables are presented as A2019%F6 300 © HibEW &%
follows: BIREBWT :

RMB

AR BT

Customer

EF

Percentage of Closing balance

total other of provision

Closing balance receivables for credit losses
fhE At
L EN-E

CEE EREAER

MR AR sl #E iR HRERE
(%)

First place
£—%
Second place
F-4

Third place
£=4
Fourth place
Euk

Fifth place
0%

188,036,939.77 CEWA Advance to subsidiaries ~ Within 3 years
FAEERER 3ENA
4,740,954.80 235  Advance to subsidiaries  Over 5 years 4,740,954.80
FARERERK SEME
2,040,000.00 1.01 Reserve fund Within 1 year 102,000.00
kA 1E R
1,410,000.00 0.70  Reserve fund 1 to 2 years 705,000.00
ik 126
730,000.00 0.36  Reserve fund Within 1 year 36,500.00
BRE 1E R

Total

2t

196,957,894.57 5,584,454.80
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
Long-term equity investments

5.

[tem
HH

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

Non-listed investment under cost method 3F I H 1% & /K A%

Non-listed investment under equity
method

Total at original amount

Less: Provision for impairment of

long-term equity investments

FEMRERS X

REAF
B REREREREER

Total at net amount

T2 ) B B R I H Rk

(%)

5.

RUIKRERE

RMB
AR

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
201946 H30H 2018412 A31H

13,774,303,002.56 13,431,735,143.40

1,308,141,244.10 1,299,388,179.37
15,082,444,246.66 14,731,123,322.77

200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00

14,882,444,246.66 14,531,123,322.77
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2019 2019 1 A1 HZ6H30H 1R

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 3 B B % 3 % 386 H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)

5. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 5. RERERE(E)
As at 30 June 2019, the breakdown of long-term equity investments MH20195F6 A30H » AE R B #
under cost method was as follows: RERBMT

RMB
AR

Changes during the period

K589

Carrying amount
at beginning Increase in Carryingamount ~ Distribution of
of period investment ~ Otherincreases  Other decreases  at end of period cash dividend
BIEE HXEE
Investee entity BREER fi BMRE Bftis B RHB KA

Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International BLEN(ER)EEXEERAT 2,087,069,782.12 2,087,069,782.12
Development Co,, Ltd.
Shaani Heavy-duty Motor Co, Ltd RAEHEERAA 1,992,116,000.85 - 1,992,116,000.85
Huzhou Yingean nvestment Partnership LLP BHERRERBLE(ARAT) 1,138,365,000.00 - 1,138,365,000.00
Shaani Fast Gear Co, Lid. REETREREREALT 1,082,558,680.59 - 1,082,558,680.59
Weichal America Corp. 25 TI0408 1112018129 743,099,22857
Weichal Power (Shanghal) Technology #4897 (L) RRERARAT 55850000000 42,770,000.00 601,270,000.00
Development Co,, Ltd.
Zhuzhou Gear Co, Ltd. i EREREAAR 532,334,431 - 530,334,74321
Weichal Power (Weifang) Casting Co,, Ltd. BE9 (85 BHERAA 460,150,000.00 - 460,150,00000  54,977,893.55
Weichal Power (Chongging) Western #4928 ERERARAR 38950450000 28,350,000.00 417,854,500.00 -
Development Co,, Ltd.
Weichal Power (Beiing) Intemational Resource BEBH(t R AR EEREARAT 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00 582,789.73
Investment Co,, Ltd.
Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co, Ld. WRAEAEEEREERR 245,574,85840 - 245,574,858 40 -
Weichal (Weifang) Medium-uty Diesel Engine Co, Ltd. %5685 ) A& it ER AR W 71247583 - WATN24T543 2760698732
Weichal Ballrd Hycrogen Eneray Technology EYERETRNRERAR 102,000,00000 102,000,000 204,000,000.00 -
Company Limited
Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive Control #4587 (BN BERITARAT 150,000,000.00 150,000,000.00
Technology Co, Ltd.
Weifang Weichai Power Technology Co, Ltd BRI HREREELA 140,770,000.00 - - 140,770,000.00
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co,, Ltd. KR EEREERRELAR 130,898,993.14 - - 130,898,993.14
WeichalPower (Weifang) Reconstuction Co., Ltd. E49 (45 BEERRAT 122,000,00000 - - 1220000000 2371630191
Shandong Synergy Ol o, Ltd. WREEARERAR - - 10950945868 - 10950945868 6870649296
Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology Co, Ltd. A== 100,000,000.00 - - - 100,000,00000  297,417,016.36

Other subsidiaries = - EpTR — 272320106238 211,650,000.00 - 162,83178081  2,772,019,28157 6,831,592.87

S R BBUBIB0 I 9509488 IS8 BSANBONG 4798900
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2019

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
5. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
As at 30 June 2019, breakdown of long-term equity investments

under equity method was as follows:

Increase upon
acquisition

Opening Increase in

e

balance investment absorption

Investee entity BREER BuaE BnRE  RKAHENR

Assocites BELE

Shandong Heavy Industry Group LRETEEE 802,775716.67 =
Finance Co,, Ltd. ERAT

Shanzhong finance Leasing Co, Ltd. EEY-3 0N 241,544,833.55 -

Other associates EfthELE 255,067,620.15 -

Totel ait 1299,388,179.37 -

6. Revenue and cost of sales

Incurred during this period

FHBER

REEE

LON

[tem
HH

24,089,726,331.93
318,836,879.08

Principal operations

Other revenue

Total 24,408,563,211.01

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+1 /A\z; FEM BB R IEHE B
(ID‘ )
5. RERERE(E)
M2019F6A308 » AR E
RERBWT

RMB
AR# T
Changes during the period
K549

Investment

gains and losses Other Closing

arrying
amount

Declaration of

cash dividend

underthe  comprehensive Disposed and

equity method income transferred out

BT
RERE  AbFakE  ERRERA

REEY  AAREEE

62,251,304.33 865,027,021.00

6,573,185.23 =
(8,686,898.08) 51,384,526.75

248,118,018.78
194,996,204.32

60,137,591.48 51,384,526.75  1,308,141,244.10

6. EREWARKAE

RMB
ARET

Incurred in previous period

FHEARE
Revenue Cost
2% e A B
RSl 20,076,439,211.19  14,146,989,456.06
227,724,301.54 728,926,586.11 632,309,300.10

17,599,138,838.21
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 3 B B % 3 % 386 H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
6. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) 6. EEWARKAK(E)
Revenue is listed as follows: EEWATIRAT -
RMB
AR T
[tem Incurred during Incurred in
this period previous period
HHE AHRAEE LHAEE AR
Motors BEE)H PRIl e P 19,555,263,207.66
Components T A 1,390,344,389.47 516,235,727.76
Sale of raw materials JRME & 212,388,805.69 267,764,617.04
Leasing of fixed assets AR EE A E 57,912,410.82 63,070,739.33
Others Hith 48,535,662.57 403,031,505.51
Total =Er 24,408,563,211.01 20,805,365,797.30
7. Investment income 7. REWZ:
RMB
AR#¥T
[tem Incurred during Incurred in
this period previous period
=] AHA A LHARE AR
Gain on long-term equity investments IR ER
under the equity method REAMRAER & W 60,137,591.48 53,294,536.99
Investment income arising from RERBREREEEDN
disposal of long-term ®E W=
equity investments 70,909,153.25 151,035,130.29
Gain on long-term equity investments A EZ B B R B
under the cost method ®E Wz 479,839,074.70 370,561,718.80

Total A&t 610,885,819.43 574,891,386.08
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2019

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
8. Supplement to cash flow statement

[tem

BEH

RS i R B 5 (48D
20191 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

Net profit

Add: Impairment loss of assets

Impairment loss of credit

Increase in special reserve

Depreciation of fixed assets and

investment properties

Amortization of intangible assets

Losses/(Gains) on disposal of fixed

assets,

intangible assets and

other long-term assets

Finance expenses

Investment income

Increase in deferred tax assets

Increase in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in operating

receivables

Increase in operating payables

k ZaINE

e BERERK
ERBERSX
BRI
BEBEERKEMN
FHEHE
B EE#H
BREBETEEE
BIZEEM
Htp R HEED
/R (Has)
MBER
BEW S
EEFTSHEEMNE N
F R IE N
eI R M
B (Em)
RS REATIR B B3 0

Net cash flow from operating activities

REEPELNRSREFR

T2 ) B B R I H Rk

(78)
8. BHeEREXRBAER
RMB
AR BT
Incurred during Incurred in

this period
AHA AR

4,466,571,934.85
5,423,751.68
34,505,077.42
9,307,762.39

270,210,784.44
5,033,723.81

3,500,499.47

(610,885,819.43)
(162,785,653.80)
(200,064,764.82)

(7,898,766,040.51)
4,739,120,416.02

661,171,671.52

previous period

HI AR

3,786,152,453.71
1,480,858.42
5,008,399.61
9,575,450.60

286,573,482.12
4,322,418.36

(196,809.34)
(11,389.25)
(574,891,386.08)
(155,318,902.33)
(406,309,159.19)

140,340,028.60
1,962,824,215.78

5,059,549,661.01
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Supplemental Information 7t &k

1. Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss 1~ FEACH P E 5 W AR

RMB
AR #BT
Incurred during
Item this period
BH TERER
Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets, including JERBEEEREEZD @ BEDTIR
the offset portion of impairment provision for such assets BEREEGBNFELD 115,463,636.22
Government grants charged in profit or loss for the current ATAERBIEEMBUTMEE (RIES
period, except for those closely related to the ordinary KEEBZYRE  FEEX
operation and gained constantly at a fixed amount or BRAE BB —TEREFEL
quantity according to certain standard based on state EEFBEZXNBRMHBIRIN
policies 90,120,492.57

Profit and loss on the changes in fair value generated from BRERQAIESEE XEBEBNE N
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading and EHREEBI  HEXRSER
investment income received from disposal of financial assets ~ FEE - X HM SR A BEED
held for trading, financial liabilities held for trading and AREBEEEZHEZ  UREER
investment in other equity instruments, other than effective ShemEE RHEEMAR
hedging business relating to ordinary operating business of MEMEZTAKRERNESEHRE

the Company & 215,305,579.90
Non-operating income and expenses other than the above B bl & I8 2 SNR E M ZE A0

items WA FISZ W 73,418,008.36
Tax effect TR 28 (104,214,315.09)
Effect on minority interests VYR REBERTEH (55,048,159.09)

Total A5F 335,045,242.87

The Group recognized extraordinary profit and loss items in accordance RNEBHIELEHIERTEHNBERERB(A
with the provisions in Explanatory Announcement on Information HEITEAN AR ZEREREEEAESE
Disclosure for Companies Offering their Securities to the Public No. 1 — PR FERLBHEER)(FEEAE[2008]43

Extraordinary Items (CSRC Announcement [2008] No. 43). AR E AT ©
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Supplemental Information (Continued) T E R (

i

2. Return on Net Assets (“RONA”) and 2 - F% ks M8 8K
Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

1 January to 30 June 2019 201918 1HZ6A30H It
&
RMB
AR T
Weighted
average RONA
hn#EF 5
FEEKRZE
ltem (%)
EHE
Net profit attributable to the BN ARLER
Company’s ordinary shareholders A% 8 #9)% 518
Net profit attributable to the MBI B EmE

Company's ordinary shareholders (2B A 71 & @A
after extraordinary profit and loss % B A

1 January to 30 June 2018 2018 1A 1HZ6A30H LLH
&
RMB
AR#T
Weighted
average RONA EPS
hn#E 715
FEERGEE FAR W=
[tem (%) Basic Diluted
1HE R ke
Net profit attributable to the HERAREER
Company's ordinary shareholders % 3R 89 F 7 11.77 0.55 0.55
Net profit attributable to the MR IFLEE B E
Company’s ordinary shareholders FBERAR LB .
after extraordinary profit and loss % R 89 A1 H 11.19 0.52 0.52

The Group holds no potential ordinary shares that are significantly dilutive.

The Group presents RONA and EPS in accordance with Compilation "'__'_:.':- ke 2 iy 2% R A

No. 9 for Information Disclosure by Companies Offerin ) the % B b 6] 2
el =

Public — Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net A

,,,,,,



Other Information

Directors’” and Supervisors” Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 30 June 2019, the interests and short position (if any) of the directors,
the chief executive and the supervisors in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies (the “Model Code"), were as follows:

Number of

Interim Report 2019 A HAR&E

oAt &R

o M B T B A B AH B i A
Y BE 2
RZB-NAFRA=TH EF SREEBAER
REERAQBRREBBEER(EERLES LY
EEOI(T 787 IR GRS D BEXVER) @ Bm - 48
BMEROLEST  BARBESFRBEEIE
3S2FMEARBAFENELMALE - iR
BEMAREBERETERRZNRETR([1RE
SADRECHNEARR REABIMOER R
RREAEIWT :

Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital

Name of Director Capacity “A" shares held “H" shares held of the Company
EEAEE
EEpgA 514 iR TAl BREE  Fi% [H] REE BITRABDH
Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 58,842,596 (Note 1) - 0.74%
s BB A (BFF&ET)
Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
R IR BB A (BFF&ET)
Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
R E EnlEEA (BFF&ET)
Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
ROE EmEAA (BFF&ET)
Yuan Hongming Beneficial owner 1,000,440 - 0.013%
N EnlEA
Interest held by spouse 444 = 0.000006%
[N EESE o 5o
1,000,884 = 0.013%
Yan Jianbo Beneficial owner 1,052,404 - 0.013%
EREE IR EnREEA
~ Wen Daocai Beneficial owner 21,940 - 0.0003%
& EnEEA
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Other Information (Continued)

HoAty EOR (A1)

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares # 35 J¢ B 25 it e 4y 2 FH A e 4y

and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Y R 2 (%)

Percentage of

the issued
Number of Number of share capital of
Name of Supervisor Capacity “A" shares held "H" shares held the Company
AR EE
EEENR 54 s TAl RE(B fi%s TH] REE BITRAADL
Lu Wenwu Beneficial owner 600,000 - 0.0076%
B EREEA
Wu Hongwei Beneficial owner 4,789,516 - 0.06%
R EREEA
Notes: B3

1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The IS =R A BAATINER - AR S A AT B

domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi- FHEE - LA RS E - SEEEARE0

denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in NS TN e g}z%%

Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A” shares of the Company B A ETA%&}%QII%%?&%F)’TJ":%&EJZEZSQ
N R a

upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

2. All the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position.

A2 AR -

2. EXRMIINMARERSA /TR -

3. The percentage shareholding is calculated on thle.ba5|s of 7,933,873,895 issued shares 3 EREALREBEAATR T — L& XA
of the Company as at 30 June 2019 (comprising 5,990,833,895 “A” shares and =+ B #7,933873.895 2 %G (6 IE
5,990,833,895 A% Afik ) 1,943,040,000 K HA% ) 5T &

8
T e

1,943,040,000 “H" shares).




Other Information (Continued)

Interests in the Shares of Associated
Corporations of the Company
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HoAt R (21)

TP A 2 ] A R 2 M oy 4 2

Approximate

Class and percentage
number of interest in the
securities entire issued
interested share capital
Name of associated or deemed of associated
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest to be interested corporations
HEERRE HHEEEE 2R
RAEFEREN ERITRAN
HEEHE HEEE AR ERME EHERREA EREENEIL
Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG (“KION") Beneficial owner 144,060 ordinary shares 0.12%
(P&E) BanlEBA s AR
Interest held by spouse 93,940 ordinary shares 0.08%
M EF AR s 5B A
238,000 ordinary shares 0.20%
& AR

Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 144,060 ordinary
shares in KION and he was also deemed to be interested in 93,940 shares in KION which
were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, none of the Directors, the chief
executive nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to
the Model Code.

Ff5E : JE#17TE EGordon Riske 2KION#) 144,060 % i (7
WESEAA - LR ANREZE FBenita RiskeZ +
B AM93,940KIONR (D R A HEE °

BEXHEEEN  RZFE-AFXNA=1AH"
MEEE SRTBRABXESENARALEME
AABEENRD HARORESTEERE
&7 KRG RDI 35215 R E AL BN & B AR
AEFENBLMANERIRE - HBRBELEST
AIEMEARRIMERIORR °
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth &R (4)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Bt % B Ain 3= 28 B o0 35 I A% O
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings

() Changes in share capital () BEEHER

Changes in share capital (as at 30 June 2019) BARESHERR(BEE_ZE—NLFAS
A=+1H)
Before the movement Increase/decrease in the movement (+, -) After the movement
FREBH EREHEH (+-) LY B Y
Percentage  New shares Capitalisation Percentage
No. of shares (%) issued  Bonusissue of reserve Others Sub-total ~ No. of shares (%)
#E H(%) BiTHR ¥R DREER i gt H8  HAI%)
. Resticted circulaing shares ~ EREKEER 1746994773 21.84% - - S 19628 19628 17AST%15 200%
1. State-owned shares 1. BEREE - - - - - - - - -
2. State-owned legal person shares 2. BEEARR 142,531,008 2054% - - - - - 1,642,531,008 2070%
3. Shares held by other domestic entities 3. HtRERR 104,463,765 1.30% - - - 1,196,628 1,196,628 103,267,137 1.30%
including: Shares held by domestic non-state-owned H BREEE - - - - - - - - -
legal persons EARR

Shares held by domestic natural persons BRERAER 104,463,765 130% - - - 11968 -119%628 103267137 130%
4 Shares held by foreign entities 4 IERR - - - - - - - - -
including: Shares held by overseas legal persons e EOEARR - - - - - - - - -
Shares held by overseas natural persons EHARARR - - - - - - - - -
Il Non-restricted circulating shares 2 ERERHRA 6,250,43,783 78.16% - - - 62168033 62,168,033 6,188,075,750 78.00%
1. RMB ordinary shares 1. AREBEER 4307,203,783 53.86% - - - -62,168033 62,168,033  4,245,035750 5351%
2. Domestic isted foreign shares 2. BREmEINER - - - - - - - - =
3. Overseas listed foreign shares 3. EOLTMIER  1,943,040,000 2430% - - - - - 1943040000 24.49%
4. Others 4 Efy - - - - - - - - -

Riheg 7,997,238,556 100% - = - 63364661  -63364661 7933873895 100%

[Il. Total number of shares




Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial

Shareholders” Shareholdings (Continued)

(1) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2019)

Total number of Shareholders The number of shareholders is
194,770 among which 194,515 are

Interim Report 2019 A HAR&E

HoAt R (21)

%;%Eﬂi%&%%%%m
(l“ )
() EERREFERBER(R=2—H"
F£FXA=+AH)
BRAH #£194,770F - HAhARKRE
194,515F « HER AR 255

shareholders of “A" shares and 255

are shareholders of “H" shares.

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

J=I

A0 IR R K 1B

Approximate
percentage of Number of Number of
sharesheld  Total number of restricced  shares pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder (%) shares held shares held or frozen
BRENEAL BRERHE ERARER
BRRER BRRUE (%) BREY Ro#E Ry #E
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.43% 1,938,412,316 - N/A
EERREEREAGRAT MERR A
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 17.72% 1,406,100,000 1,345,905,600 -
REEREEARAT BAEA
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited Overseas legal person 4.56% 361,525,646 - -
EERREEARAT BINEA
Weifang Investment Group Company Limited State-owned legal person 3.74% 296,625,408 296,625,408 -
EHTRESEERAR BBEA
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited Domestic non-state-owned legal person 2.06% 163,608,906 - -
mEESERRABRAT BRFEEEA
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. ~ Overseas legal person 1.58% 125,265,203 - -
B MIVMR T A& A ERA R BINEA
Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited ~ State-owned legal person 137% 108,492,800 - -
MARESEEERAREMLAR BAEA
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Domestic non-state-owned legal person 0.82% 64,697,460 - -
Company Limited
LRERETELERNEBAT BRFEEEEA
Tan Xuguang Domestic natural person 0.74% 58,842,596 44,131,947 -
Bl - .

FRERA
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth R} (48)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial i 7 % B i1 32 2 B 5 #5 B O

Shareholders’ Shareholdings (Continued) (#)

(I) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as (Il) FERERFRBER(R=2—Hh
at 30 June 2019) (Continued) EXAZ=1+RH)(E)
Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders AT 104 SR & R IRERFFAR 1B

Number of
the non-restricted

Name of shareholder shares held Types of shares

REREHE FEEREFRTROBE ROESE

HKSCC Nominees Limited 1,938,412,316 Overseas listed foreign shares

ERRREAREABRAA BN ETINERR

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 361,525,646 RMB ordinary shares

ERRREEARAA AR E B

China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 163,608,906 RMB ordinary shares

FEES RN ARADF AR LB K

IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. 125,265,203 RMB ordinary shares

BT IVME T A th B IR A 7 AR EBR

Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited 108,492,800 RMB ordinary shares

FRIECEEEEERAEMTAR AR EBR

Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited 64,697,460 RMB ordinary shares

IWEREPEFELERNDBRAF AR E B

Weichai Group Holdings Limited 60,194,400 RMB ordinary shares

SRR E AR AR AR EBR

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. - Dong Fang Hong Rui 45,999,954 RMB ordinary shares

Feng Flexible Allocation Mixed Fund (LOF) AR E @R

BRERTRNERAG - RAIMTLEERE
BERBELAREES(LOF)

Hu Zhongxiang 43,511,756 RMB ordinary shares
ik AR E B
National Social Security Fund — 101 Portfolio 35,254,023 RMB ordinary shares

EEMRES—Z 448

Notes:

1.

Among the aforesaid shareholders, Mr. Tan Xugl‘J'a g is th
Holdings Limited. It is not certain whether there is any conne
top ten shareholders and the other top ten non-restricted sh
any acting in concert relationship among them.

No earmarked repurchase transaction has bgéhj
and the top ten non-restricted shareholders of th



Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange) shows that as at 30 June 2019, the following persons (other than the

directors, chief executive and supervisors) had the following interests and the

short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:
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oAty BB (A1)

FEEBER

ARAMRB(EZ R EGIIE336F)FENE
BEEREBLM(BEMEEHIAMBRNF )
BR RZZE-AFRA=+RH - TIAL(E
= EREEBABREEHRINEARTRND K
MEBRN P HEE TSGR (INE)

Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital total
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only Ashares Hshares  only H shares share capital
FARKRK FEHRER RESS
R 5 e/ %% ARSE BAl HR&E BAl EHER
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 1,406,100,000 2347% - - 17.72%
BEAREEERLA ERfEA i
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co,, Ltd. (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation Long 1,406,100,000 2347% - - 17.72%
WRETSEARAR (Mit1) BREEEEE 2
Brandes Investment Partners, LP (Note 3) Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 16.18% 3.96%
(B3E3) RESE e
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio (Note 4) Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 143%
GED) KEmR i
Barclays PLC (Note 3) Person having a Security interest in shares ~ Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%
(B33) HROFEREERNA i
Interest of corporation controlled by Long = = 25,453,050 5.24% 1.28%
the substantial shareholder
RIRGR A e E B & iy
25,978,602 5.35% 1.31%
Interest of corporation controlled by Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 1.22%
the substantial shareholder
PN EXipd oy &
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth &R (4)
Substantial Shareholders (Continued) FEER ()
Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital total
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only Ashares Hshares  only H shares share capital
FARKAK FEHRER RESS
£ 5t R/ %A AREE Bk HER#A Bk L ER
Morgan Stanley (Note 2) Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 49,335,508 5.08% 1.24%
(B3k2) the substantial shareholder
pERied Loyt 4 i
Interest of corporation controlled by Short - - 42,078,545 433% 1.06%
the substantial shareholder
YT Xipd oyt 4 e
Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long - - 366,078,002 18.84% 4.61%
RESE it
BlackRock, Inc. Interest of corporation controlled by you ~ Long - - 191,118,721 9.84% 241%
{REEHE AN ES i
Interest of corporation controlled by you ~ Short - - 61,000 0.00% 0.00%
ligasab kol 5 e
Citigroup Inc. Interest of corporation controlled by you ~ Long - - 4,907,308 0.25% 0.06%
{REEEHE AN ES e
Person having a Security interest in shares ~ Long - - 45,000 0.00% 0.00%
HERDHRZERNA iy
Approved lending agent Long - - 109,935,259 5.66% 1.39%
HREEREA i
114,887,567 5.91% 1.45%

Interest of corporation controlled by you ~ Short

Ulesons a5 ]
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth &R (4)
Substantial Shareholders (Continued) EHERHR(H)
Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital total
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only A shares Hshares  only Hshares share capital
FARKRK FEHREX RS
% 5 e/ %8 AREE BA HE&E BAk EHER
JP Morgan Chase & Co. Person having a Security interest in shares ~ Long - - 1,292,074 0.07% 0.02%
HERDHREERNA e
Interest of corporation controlled by you ~ Long - - 27,535,910 142% 0.35%
gl 5 i
Investment manager Long - - 24,132,081 1.24% 0.30%
REme i
Trustee Long - - 238800 0.01% 0.00%
RHA g
Approved lending agent Long - - 46,191,199 2.38% 0.58%
BRELRBA i
99,390,064 5.12% 1.25%
Interest of corporation controlled by you ~ Short - - 17,815,512 0.92% 0.23%
fREEHE EE g e
Investment manager Short - - 7,485,000 0.39% 0.09%
REER e
25,360,512 131% 0.32%
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation Interest of corporation controlled by you ~ Long - - 74,655,640 3.84% 0.94%
{RAEHNEE R e
e .
—s Approved lending agent Long - - 61,575,927 317% 0.78%

RERLREA e
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

1. Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd., being a subsidiary of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province, held the entire share
capital of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Weifang Diesel Engine
Works).

2. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation
under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial
shareholder.

3. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017 and 20 August 2015 as there is no disclosure of
interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings
for a substantial shareholder.

4. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017, 20 August 2015 and 17 August 2012 as there is
no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage
of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2019.

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the Period was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

HoAt &R (2)

E R (5)

Bt -

1. WRBEEZNHBRARILRETEMERARARKA
SR I SR BA TR A B (A7 2 M 07 SR ) B 2
BRARA o

2. PRI ZEBEERRFTA ZHREA (REBR
BEA) Y EARARAR T —LFLA=+—
AMARKETS  HLIERBREES RS K
Bl MEZREZREES LI EES) - ABAER
B o

3. B2y HETERRFE ZHREE (RABR
BEADL)TEA RARTAR _E—tF LA+ —
AR-ZE-—AFNA-TENABRIKETE @ WD
MRREEFEREGD  HEIERRZBERS
Lo ) - AIBAR RS o

4. B2 eEEEERRFE ZHREE (RABK

BEA) W EFARARAR-_TE—LtFLA - +—
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EO
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Other Information (Continued)

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of the
Company

A total number of 63,364,661 A shares were repurchased by the Company on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from 8 October 2018 to 28 December 2018 at
an aggregate consideration of RMB499,911,217.21. All of these repurchased A

shares were cancelled by the Company on 7 January 2019.

During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
five independent non-executive Directors of the Company. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Wang Gongyong, an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules for the purpose of this appointment. During the Period, the Audit
Committee discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial
results and internal control matters of the Company. In accordance with the
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has

reviewed the reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

Throughout the Period, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan”), and that
certain directors of the Company did not attend the Company’s annual general
meeting held during the Period due to other essential business engagements,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate

Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The Company
considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company'’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through the
supervision of its board and its independent non-executive Directors, there is

adequate balance of power and authority in place.
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= A R TN N
I
ARARZE—N\F+ANBE-B—N\F+=
A=+/\BHR - ERYIEER D FEEREA
K#499,911,217.217t » #EH#E63,364,661 /%
AR ARATER-F—NE— AL BBHEH
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Other Information (Continued)

Compliance with the Model Code

During the Period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the

required standard set out in the Model Code for the Period.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Auditors
On 20 June 2019, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public

Accountants LLP ({2 gy k @t B 15 FT (S @A 5 )) were appointed as
the auditors of the Company.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period were approved by
the Board on 29 August 2019.

Publication of the Interim Report on the
Websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company

The 2019 interim report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as made
available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk

and the Company’s website at www.weichaipower.com in due course.
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WEICHAI POWER CO..LTD.
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g = : +86-536-8197073

E:ilf im 1 261061

PR 7% £ 4% : 400 618 3066

EFEHM : weichai@weichai.com

#3 HE . http://www.weichaipower.com

Address : Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province
Tel : +86-536-8197777 (Gen)

Fax : +86-536-8197073

P.C. 1 261061

Service hotline : 400 618 3066

E-mail : weichai@weichai.com

Website : http://www.weichaipower.com
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